
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
October 12, 2011 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public comments. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the September 28, 2011 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution authorizing the execution of an agreement with Ernst 

and Young for audit services for the State Water Project. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 

5. Bills 
 

6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes 
b. Executive Committee Minutes 

 
7. Resolution approving a grant from the California Department of Boating 

and Waterways in the amount of $80,000 for a new patrol boat and trailer 
for Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 
 

 1
 



 2

8. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch 
in the amount of $29,997.15 for the purchase of live rainbow trout. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion Approving Recommendation 
 
9. Resolution setting the time and place of a public hearing for input 

regarding the proposed changes in fees for the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 
 
10. Resolution awarding a contract  to Oilfield Electric Company in the amount 

of $140,650 for the Upper Ojai Pump Plant Electrical Upgrades, 
Specification 10-347. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 
 
11. Recommend approval of the Sanitary Survey Update - 2011. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion Approving Recommendation 
  
12. Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Recreation Area Report for August, 2011. 
c. Information pertaining to the Ojai FLOW request of the District to 

acquire Golden State Water Company’s Ojai water system. 
d. News Articles. 
e. Investment Report. 

 
13. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
September 28, 2011 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held September 28, 2011 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Kaiser, Baggerly, Word, Hicks, 
and Bergen were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, Bob Krimmer.  
There were four staff members and no members of the public in attendance.  
President Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public comments. 
 
 None 
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 
 Mr. Wickstrum reported that he had received a letter from the Bureau of 
Reclamation stating they had received our appeal regarding the recreation 
reform act forms and fines the Bureau assessed and it may take some time for 
the Bureau to come t o a determination.    He then informed the Board that the 
Ojai Chamber of Commerce will hold their mixer on October 27th at Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
 Director Hicks reported on his water issues meeting which included a tour 
through the tomato plant on Laguna Road.  It is 125 acres under roof and they 
collect water and recycle 66% of their water.  They produce 17 times more 
tomatoes inside than outside.   

 
Director Word reported his attendance at the Ventura County Regional 

Energy Alliance on Tuesday.  In October the VCREA will be reviewing how they 
operate and are organized and how they are funded.  They are currently funded 
from the PUC through the utility companies.  The utility companies don’t want to 
spend the money.  The energy alliance is a clearing house and reference point 
for energy related items.  There is a push to expand it and include water issues 
with it.  After the October meeting we will find out if it is viable for us and we 
might want to consider continuing on.  The current restrictions preclude us from 
participating with projects.  Additionally they are looking at combining counties.   
 

Director Kaiser reported an informal meeting he and Mr. Wickstrum had 
with the Chair of the San Lorenzo Water District.  He also mentioned a book, 
Dollars and Cents that includes information on a FLOW issue up in Felton that he 
is reading and can make available to the board members to read.  Mr. Wickstrum 
added that as we discussed in Water Resources we are gathering information 
and background regarding Ojai Flow and there will be things we need to consider 



 2

coming to some direction and will be working through that in the next couple of 
months.  

 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the September 14, 2011 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution directing execution of a joint funding agreement 

between United States Geological Survey and Casitas Municipal 
Water District 

 
The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 

Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 11-19. 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 

 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the bills were approved. 
 

6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes 
b. Finance Committee Minutes 
c. Water Resources Committee Minutes 

 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 

the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
 
7. Signing of the Management Agreement for the Administration, Operation, 

Maintenance, and Development of Recreation Uses and Facilities at Lake 
Casitas between the United States and Casitas Municipal Water District. 

          APPROVED 
 

  Mr. Wickstrum mentioned the hard work that was put in by Director 
Baggerly, Director Word and Park Services Manager Belser.  This agreement 
establishes how we are going to work with the Bureau.  It is a living document 
and we have created a document we can live with and are proud and happy that 
we are at this point with this agreement.  Director Bergen congratulated them for 
the hard work and stated it is a great accomplishment.  Mr. Wickstrum added 
there have been some positive changes in their personnel who want to work with 
us and trust has been developed on both sides of the table to get an agreement 
that fits our lake.  Director Word gave a lot of credit to Cheryl and her ability to 
understand our situation and to explain that we are right.  Without that they had a 
hard time grasping that Casitas is different.  Director Baggerly added that the 



 3

Bureau usually owns the reservoir and the water and have a non federal partner 
running recreation.  Everything in the Ventura River Project was transferred to 
this district in 1958.  We have run it for over 50 years.  We own the water.  It took 
some time for them to understand that we are different.  We created a document 
that will serve this district well for this term. 
 

On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word, the 
signing of the Management Agreement for Lake Casitas Recreation Area was 
approved by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 11-20. 
 
8. Report to the Board regarding the Dog Bite Incident.   
 

  Mr. Wickstrum provided information to the board regarding an incident that 
involved an employee being bitten by a loose dog.  The safety incident report has 
been completed and we are looking at ways to reduce these risks and request 
your support in improving our safety.   
 
 Park Services Manager Belser explained some of the resources and 
training that staff has received and showed some of the equipment that is 
available.  Dog bite issues have been discussed with staff and training is set up 
with animal control.  The employee has returned to work.  She also mentioned 
flyers that have been developed in English and Spanish and permanent signs are 
on order.  She also explained that both of their responding units have contained 
restraint poles for a number of years. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the report was approved for filing. 
 
9. Information Items: 
 

a. News Articles. 
b. Investment Report. 

 
 Attorney Bob Krimmer announced that we would be moving to closed 
session at 3:50 p.m. regarding anticipated litigation under section 54956.9 b on a 
claim filed by Stanley Revell. 
 
10. Closed Session 

 
a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.9) 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation    



 4

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of 
Section 54956.9 Number of potential cases: 1. 

 
 The meeting was reconvened in open session at 3:57 p.m.  
 
 On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word and 
passed, the claim of Stanley Revell was rejected. 
 
11. Adjournment  
 

President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 3:58 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      Secretary, James Word 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AND ERNST AND YOUNG FOR 

AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE STATE WATER PROJECT 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the State Water Contractors annually require audit services from an 
independent auditor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State Water Contractors has required that the audit firm of Ernst 
and Young perform these services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the cost of these services is pro-rated between the carious users who 
have entitlements to the State Water; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these costs are shared between the three agencies of United Water 
Conservation District, the City of Ventura and Casitas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the cost in 2010 was $5,677; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby 
authorized and directs the President of the Board to sign the audit agreement for Casitas 
approving Exhibits A and B only at a cost not to exceed $5,677. 
 
 ADOPTED this 12th day of  October, 2011. 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Pete Kaiser, President 
       Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
James Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 





































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 6, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of October 3, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Kaiser and Hicks 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser  

Public – Gary Wolfe ,  
 

2. Public comments. 
None. 
 

3. Board/Management comments. 
Director Kaiser commented on the excellent job of staff on the recent cross-country 
event held at Lake Casitas.   
 
PSM Carol Belser reported that the first weekend of bow fishing had no participation.  
It was noted that Ron Merckling has submitted a press release that may stimulate 
interest from the public. 
 

4. Review of the Power Machinery Club Cart Lease Agreement. 
PSM Belser presented the explanation of the lease program, the staged leases and 
current status of the leases.  Director Hicks expressed concern that there appears to 
be some unfairness in the terms of the leases.  PSM Belser stated that staff has 
worked with the owner of Power Machinery to improve the terms of the leases.  There 
are no buy-outs on the leased carts. 

 
5. Department of Boating and Waterways Patrol Boat Grant.  

PSM Belser reported that staff would like to pursue another grant for a patrol boat.  
The objective of the grant is to obtain a smaller patrol boat and trailer for less than 
$80,000.  Such a boat was purchased by Monterey County Parks Department.  Staff 
desires to seek the approval of the Board to move forward with the grant application.  
The purchase of the boat is planned to be a reimbursable account that is completed 
during the FY 2011-12 budget, noting that this item is not budgeted. 
 

6. Update on Bureau of reclamation Grant Funding. 
PSM Belser reported that bureau staff has been extremely helpful in acquiring funds 
for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area that will be matched by current budget dollars.  
So far, it appears that approximately $202,000 will be transferred to Casitas for 



recreation improvement projects.  The committee expressed great appreciation to the 
efforts of the Bureau of Reclamation to assist Casitas. 

 
7. Review and discuss LCRA Front Gate Area Improvements. 

The Committee reviewed preliminary sketches of changes to the LCRA front gate.  
The plans change the traffic routes through the gates, provide signaling and access 
control at each gate, and provide a walk-in pathway.  Staff will continue to refine the 
sketch to a set of plans that can be implemented this year.  This is one of many 
projects that will be assisted by Bureau funding. 
 

8. Review and Discuss LCRA User Fees. 
PSO IV Doan presented his review of user fees and recommended several small 
incremental changes to annual boat fees.  The proposal is to increase both the annual 
kayak and boat fee by $5.00.  The recommendation will be prepared and brought to 
the Board for consideration and approval. 
 

9. Cancellation of the Chili Cook-off.  
PSM Belser announced to the Committee that staff has recently been informed by Ojai 
Rotary that they will not be holding the Chili Cook-off.  It appears that financial loss 
during last year’s event was the reason.  Staff is to review the terms of the five-year 
contract and consider cancellation of the contract. 
 

10. Issues regarding the Home Brewers event. 
PSM Belser stated that there is a disagreement between the Home Brewers and the 
Alcoholic Beverage Control regarding the requirement of a ABC license for the Home 
Brewers event.  The ABC is the enforcing agency.  The Home Brewers have been 
informed that they must comply with ABC or Casitas will not permit the event.  The 
requirement to comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations is a 
condition stipulated in the five-year contract between Casitas and the Home Brewers.  
The Committee will be kept informed of any develops in this regard. 
 

11. Update on the sunken vessel. 
Staff has received notice of possible assistance from the US Navy to use side-scan 
sonar to locate the vessel.  The Committee and Board will be apprised of any updates 
on this matter. 
 

12. Discussion regarding insurance requirements. 
The General Manager suggests that staff investigate further whether to require boat 
owners to have liability insurance in order to operate on Lake Casitas.  This suggestion 
is made in consideration of a recent boating accident and the recent boat sinking that 
occurred on Lake Casitas.  Staff will survey requirements on other lakes of California 
and discuss this proposal with local insurance agents and legal counsel.  The 
Committee was supportive of the investigation. 
 

13. Update on Concessionaire Agreements. 
PSM Belser has prepared initial draft agreements for the review by the General 
Manager.  The Committee discussed various reasons for short and long term 
agreements, which may be different for the different concessions and may need to 
coincide with the twenty-five year term of the Bureau-Casitas recreation agreement. 
 
Mr. Wolfe commented that he interprets the current contract for the Park Store to be 



entirely under his Bait and Tackle concession agreement, and that would provide a 
“first-right-of-refusal” to the Park Store’s future contract selection process.  Mr. Wolfe 
noted that he had been asked this question by the current sub-concessionaire.  The 
General Manager stated that the intent in re-opening the park store was not to 
continue the “first-right-of-refusal”, as that concluded with the original park store 
contract.  A document review will follow and an answer provided at the time of 
finalizing the craft concession agreements and request for proposal. 

 
14. Review of Incidents and Comments. 

There were no major incidents to report. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 4, 2011 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of October 4, 2011 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 

1. Roll Call.  Director Kaiser, Director Baggerly 
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

The General Manager reported that staff has obtained 2010 census numbers and 
district director boundary maps.  Staff is independently reviewing the population 
balances between director boundaries and will bring recommended changes to 
the Board.  It is anticipated that all changes will be accomplished before the 
County begins to develop the voting rolls.  Staff is developing a timeline in which 
to accomplish the changes to the director division boundaries. 
 

4. Membership in Southern California Water Committee in the amount of $850. 
The Committee reviewed the invitation to join the Southern California Water 
Committee.  The Committee questioned the need to extend the district’s lobbying 
beyond current memberships in ACWA, CSDA and AWA.  The Committee does 
not support the additional membership in the Southern California Water 
Committee and recommended that this item be considered by the Board of 
Directors. 

 
5. Information from U.S. Business Executive.   

The District has received a solicitation from US Business Executive, a quarterly 
magazine, to print a case study on the Casitas Municipal Water District.  The 
telephone solicitor stated that there would be no charge to the District and there 
would copies of the story provided to the District.  While this sounds good, the 
General Manager is concerned by the statement in the letter which reads “Please 
understand that this is an invitation and that you should only participate if you 
view this as commercially beneficial to your company.”  This article will require 
time from Casitas staff and does not appear to be commercially beneficial to the 
District.  The General Manager will inform US Business Executive that the District 
will decline the invitation. 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Interdepartmental Memo 
 
 
DATE:  October 5, 2011 
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
COPY:  Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
FROM: Suzi Taylor, Park Services Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Grant from California Department of Boating & Waterways for a New 

Equipped Patrol Boat & Trailer for Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the execution of the Standard 
Agreement from the California Department of Boating & Waterways with respect to a grant in 
the amount of $80,000.00 to purchase a new equipped heavy aluminum patrol boat and trailer.  
The existing 1996 Pacific Angler will be used as a back up patrol boat and by the maintenance 
crew. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW 
 
The 1996 Pacific Angler patrol boat has been in service for over 15 years.  The California 
Department of Boating and Waterways has awarded Casitas Municipal Water District a grant in 
the amount of $80,000.00 to purchase a new fully equipped 20’ – 22’ heavy aluminum boat, 
similar to the Pacific Angler and trailer.  Staff identified a similar boat recently delivered to 
Monterey County Parks Department purchased with the same grant funding source.  See attached 
photo.  The cost including trailer was approximately $76,000.  The new boat will be used in 
addition to the Cortez, the vessel we purchased with the same grant funding source in 2009, to 
patrol the lake to maintain the level of service currently afforded to the public, educate and assist 
boaters in safe boating practices, ordinance enforcement and help maintain the water quality of 
the lake. 
 
On Monday October 3, 2011 the Recreation Committee reviewed and supported the grant 
acceptance to forward to the Board. If approved, the grant will allow the Recreation Area to 
purchase the new boat with minimal financial impact. 



cbelser
Text Box
2011 Monterey County Parks patrol vesselfunded by CA Boating and Waterways grant



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2011\10-12-11\PatrolBoatGrantresolution09252011.doc 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A GRANT FROM THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS 

FOR A NEW PATROL BOAT & TRAILER 
AT LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Boating and Waterways has agreed to provide a 

grant in the amount of eighty thousand dollars ($80,000) to the Casitas Municipal Water District for 
the purchase of a new patrol boat and trailer;  and 
 

WHEREAS,  the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water District desires to accept 
the grant funds for the purpose of purchasing a new patrol boat and trailer for the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District authorize and direct the General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum, to execute, 
in the name of Casitas Municipal Water District, an agreement with the Department of Boating and 
Waterways for a grant in the amount of $80,000 to purchase a new patrol boat and trailer for the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area.  Further, that the General Manager be empowered to execute contracts, 
agreements, amendments and requests for payment for the purpose of securing grant funds and to 
implement and carry out the purposes specified in the grant application and agreement. 
 

ADOPTED this 12th day of October, 2011. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
James Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2011\10-12-11\Trout purchase Board Recommed 2011chaulkmound.doc 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Interdepartmental Memo 
                                                     
 
DATE:  October 6, 2011 
 
TO: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
FROM: Park Services Manager, Carol Belser  
 
SUBJECT: Trout Purchase for 2011/2012 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the purchase of live rainbow trout for a total 
amount of $29,997.15 from Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch in Nebraska. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
  
The purchase of live rainbow trout, required to be supplied by distributors approved by the California 
Department of Fish and Game (DFG), was authorized by Dr. Dwayne Maxwell, a DFG representative.  
Bids were solicited from eight suppliers located in California, Oregon and Nebraska.  The total bid was 
for $30,000 made up as follows: 
 
 (a) Live rainbow trout between 3/4 to one (3/4 to 1) pounds per fish, the total cost of which 
was not to exceed twenty two thousand dollars ($22,000), and 
 
 (b) Live rainbow trout between two and twelve (2-12) pounds per fish,  four (4) fish over ten 
(10) pounds and two (2) fish over twelve(12) pounds, the total cost of which was not to exceed eight 
thousand dollars ($8,000). 
 
 Six (6) of the suppliers solicited did not submit a bid.  Two (2) bids were received.  Mt. Lassen 
Trout Farm bid for 8,000 pounds of fish for $29, 920 for both sizes of trout and Chaulk Mound Trout 
Ranch bid 8,478 pounds of fish for $29, 997.15 for both sizes of fish. 
 
While Mt. Lassen Trout Farm bid a lower cost per pound on the smaller trout, Chaulk Mound Trout 
Ranch will supply over 400 additional pounds of fish over the Mt. Lassen Trout Farm bid even with 
adding an additional $80.00 to the purchase price since Mt. Lassen’s bid was for a total of $29,920.     
 
The introduction of additional trout will enhance the recreational fishing experience and increase the 
possibility that new a record trout will be caught at Lake Casitas, one even larger than the trout caught 
in December 2010 that weighed in at 11 pounds 13 ounces.  The record fish was stocked from Chaulk 
Mound Trout Ranch.    







 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 6, 2011 
 
TO:         Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Brent Doan, Park Services Officer 
 
COPY: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Fee Adjustments for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive this report and schedule a public 
hearing for the proposed recreation fee structure. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
Approximately once a year a fee survey is conducted with other recreation areas in the region 
to determine the suitability of Lake Casitas Recreation Area (LCRA) fees.  Fees provide for 
quality levels of services for the visiting public while protecting the water supply and 
preventing the introduction of invasive species.  Ultimately, the goal is for LCRA to be 
financially self-sufficient.  The survey indicates most LCRA fees are higher than those 
surveyed. 
 
The last fee increase was in September of 2008, was some of the most dramatic increases 
seen and a method of funding the boating restrictions with the tamper-proof cabling and tag 
system.  A study was recently conducted on the overall boating costs and revenue derived 
from the boating program at LCRA.  Boating is viewed as a supporting activity of the overall 
recreation experience offered and not as necessarily a profit center itself.  The study 
indicated of $182,584 in costs associated with boating, there was corresponding revenue 
associated with boating of $173,498, resulting in a deficit of $9,086 in the program.  In order 
to bridge this gap, minor increases in some boating fees were taken to the Recreation 
Committee on October 3, 2011 for discussion and a recommendation for some increases was 
approved for Board consideration.  It was recommenced the day use and overnight kayak 
fees not be adjusted as the small number of users of that fee in the past now purchase 
annual decals due to the boating restrictions.  
 

Fee  Current Fee  Proposed Fee Revenue 
Increase 

Daily Boat Permit $10 $13 $4,332 
Annual Boat Permit $125 $130 $2,450 
Annual Kayak $30 $35 $   500 
Overnight Boat Permit $7.50 $10 $   720 
Inspection/Reinspection Fee        $15 $20 $2,250 
TOTAL FROM INCREASES   $10,252 
 



 2 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The study of the boating program and fee survey of other recreation areas indicates a modest 
increase in some boating related fees is justified to help close the gap between boating 
expenses and revenue.  It is requested that the proposed fee adjustments be considered and 
adopted. 
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC 
 HEARING FOR INPUT REGARDING THE CHANGES IN FEES FOR THE 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas is interested in public comments regarding the proposed 
changes in fees for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1.   A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested 
parties regarding the changes in fees for Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 

2. The place of said hearing is hereby fixed at Casitas' Office, 1055 Ventura 
Avenue, in the town of Oak View.  The date and time for said hearing is hereby fixed as 
October 26, 2011, at 3:00 p.m. 
 

3. The Secretary of Casitas is hereby directed to give notice of said hearing by 
publishing a notice of the time and place of the hearing in the local newspapers. 
 
 ADOPTED this 12th day of October, 2011. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
James Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  NEIL COLE, CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AWARD CONTRACT -UPPER OJAI PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADES, SPECIFICATION 10-347 

DATE:  OCTOBER 6, 2011 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution accepting the proposal submitted by 
the lowest responsible bidder and award the contract for the construction of the Upper Ojai Pump Plant 
Electrical Upgrades, Specification 10-347 to Oilfield Electric Company in the amount of $140,650.  It is 
further recommended that the President of the Board execute the agreement for said work and the 
Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The Upper Ojai Pump Station is in need of electrical upgrades to improve the efficiency of the facility 
and bring the facility into current code compliance.  This project will install the previously purchased 
motor control centers, install the Southern California Edison required facilities, and connect the new 
motor control centers to the existing pumps.  Additional work will be completed by Southern California 
Edison crews to replace the existing transformer. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge and on the District’s web site.  Three bidders 
completed the non mandatory job walk. Three firms submitted proposals.  The bid results are 
 

FIRM AMOUNT 
Oilfield Electric Company $140,650 
Coleman-Pacific Inc   $149,000 
Taft Electric Company $168,500 
 
The FY 2011-12 Budget allocated $170,000 for the completion of this project.   
 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2011\10-12-11\Resolution347 Upper Ojai PP Electrical.doc 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE UPPER OJAI PUMP PLANT ELECTRICAL UPGRADES, SPECIFICATION 10-347 

SPECIFICATION 11-347 
 

WHEREAS, the District invited bids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
project, and 
 

WHEREAS, the District received three bids, with the lowest responsive bid submitted by 
Oilfield Electric Company in the sum of $140,650.00 and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District as follows: 
 

1. That the bid from Oilfield Electric Company in the amount of $140,650.00 be accepted 
for the Upper Ojai pump Plant Electrical Upgrades, Specification 10-347 and a contract awarded. 
 

2. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of the 
contract.  

 
 

ADOPTED this 12th day of October, 2011. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Pete Kaiser, President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
James Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: STEVE WICKSTRUM 

FROM: SUSAN MCMAHON 

SUBJECT: 2011 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY 

DATE: 10/07/2011 

 

The 2011 Watershed Sanitary Survey update has been completed. The Surface Water Treatment Rule 
requires that all systems that are subject to the rule shall conduct a sanitary survey of their watersheds at 
least once every five years.  The purpose of a watershed sanitary survey is to identify actual or potential 
sources of contamination in the watershed, and any other watershed-related factors which are capable of 
producing adverse effect on the quality of water used for domestic drinking water purposes. Changes that 
have occurred since the last Watershed Sanitary Survey Update include the following: 
 

 The United States Bureau of Reclamation completed a Final Environmental Impact Statement for 
the Resource Management Plan of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 

 Casitas Municipal Water District developed and implemented the Invasive Species Ordinance; a 
resolution limiting access to Lake Casitas in order to control invasive species. 

 The United States Forest Service revised its Land Management Plan for the Los Padres National 
Forest.   

 During 2009 Casitas Municipal Water District received Water Permit Amendment No: 5610024-
PA-002 from California Department of Public Health for the addition of 
orthophosphate/polyphosphate as a treatment chemical for corrosion control. 

 During 2006 CMWD submitted a grandfathered Cryptosporidium data package to California 
Department of Public Health, and a letter of acceptance was sent during January of 2007.  CMWD 
qualified for the lowest risk category (Bin 1), therefore no additional treatment processes are 
required. 

 CMWD completed the required year of bi-monthly IDSE monitoring and submitted the report to 
CADPH during 2008.  A letter of approval from CADPH was received by CMWD during 2009.  

 
The conclusions from this 2011 update have been summarized as follows: 
 

 The Lake Casitas water supply has not been adversely affected by activities or conditions on the 
watershed within the last five years.    

 The Casitas Municipal Water District water supply continues to meet the current State and Federal 
Drinking Water Standards.   

 There are many protections on the water shed through Casitas Municipal Water District 
ordinances, as well as federal, state and county policies, plans and regulations. 

 
The recommendations from this 2011 update have been summarized as follows: 
 

 Routinely check and analyze information from websites that provide information that is useful for 
watershed protection.  

 Continue to participate in programs or processes that provide protection for the watershed. 
 Remain informed of activities and changes in the watershed. 
 

Please recommend that the board approve the document so it can be forwarded to Department of Public 
Health.   

 



 

 

 

 

 

2011 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY UPDATE 
 

 
 

Prepared by: 
Susan McMahon/Water Quality Supervisor 

June 29, 2011 
 
 
 

 

 
 

www.casitaswater.org 
1055 Ventura Avenue, Oak View, California 93022 

Phone: (805) 649-2251    Fax: (805) 649-3001



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
LIST OF TABLES AND FIGURES.....................................................................................................................4  
LIST OF APPENDICES ..................................................................................................................................4  
LIST OF ACRONYMS USED...........................................................................................................................4 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY................................................................................................................................6 
INTRODUCTION ...........................................................................................................................................7                  

SECTION 1 2006 UPDATE ............................................................................................................................8 
        1.1 Summary of the 2006 Updated Watershed Sanitary Survey .........................................................8 
      1.2 Conclusions of the 2006 Watershed Sanitary Survey....................................................................8   
      1.3 Recommendations And Progress from the 2006 Watershed Sanitary Update...............................9 
 SECTION 2-DESCRIPTION OF CASITAS WATERSHED ................................................................................11 
        2.1 Natural Setting .............................................................................................................................13 
      2.2 Climate .........................................................................................................................................13 
      2.3 Source of Water ...........................................................................................................................14 
      2.4 Hydrology ....................................................................................................................................14 
      2.5Land Use .......................................................................................................................................15 
Section 3-DESCRIPTION OF THE CMWD WATER SYSTEM ........................................................................17 
      3.1 Description ...................................................................................................................................17 
      3.2 Intake and Treatment Facilities....................................................................................................18 
      3.3 Distribution System......................................................................................................................18 
      3.4 Improvements and Projects..........................................................................................................18 
SECTION 4-POTENTIAL SOURCES OF CONTAMINATION IN THE WATERSHED...............................................20 
        4.1 Lake Casitas Recreation Area .....................................................................................................20 
      4.2 Watershed Waste Disposal Systems ............................................................................................23 
      4.3 Agriculture, Pesticides and Herbicides ........................................................................................24 
      4.4 Animals .......................................................................................................................................24 
      4.5 Mining and Logging.....................................................................................................................26 
      4.6 Erosion and Urban Runoff ...........................................................................................................26 
      4.7 Unauthorized Activities ...............................................................................................................27 
      4.8 Recreation Activities Outside the recreation area …………………………………...…………27 
      4.9 Fire Hazards and Prevention ........................................................................................................27 
      4.10 Traffic Accidents, Spills ............................................................................................................27 
      4.11 Toxic Waste Sites.......................................................................................................................28 
      4.12 Hazardous Materials ..................................................................................................................28 
      4.13 Matilija Dam Removal Project ..................................................................................................28 
      4.14 Anticipated Growth and Changes in Sources of Contamination ...............................................29 
SECTION 5-WATERSHED CONTROL AND MANAGMENT PRACTICE ............................................................30 
        5.1 Casitas Policies and Procedures...................................................................................................30 
      5.2 County of Ventura  ......................................................................................................................32 
       5.3 USEPA .........................................................................................................................................36 
        5.4 CADPH........................................................................................................................................37 
        5.5 SRWQCB.....................................................................................................................................38 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

3 

        5.6 USBR ...........................................................................................................................................39 
        5.7 USFS..........................................................................................................................................   40 
SECTION 6-WATER QUALITY ....................................................................................................................42 
      6.1 Routine Inorganic Chemicals.......................................................................................................42               
      6.2 Physical Quality ...........................................................................................................................42 
      6.3 Nitrate and Nitrite ........................................................................................................................42 
      6.4 Radioactivity ................................................................................................................................42 
      6.5 Asbestos .......................................................................................................................................43 
      6.6 Volatile Organic Chemicals .........................................................................................................43 
      6.7 Synthetic ORganic Chemicals .....................................................................................................43 
      6.8 UCMR..........................................................................................................................................43 
      6.9 SWTR...........................................................................................................................................43 
      6.10 IESWTR.....................................................................................................................................45 
      6.11 LT2 ESWTR ..............................................................................................................................45 
      6.12 Lead and Copper Rule................................................................................................................46 
      6.13 TCR............................................................................................................................................46 
      6.14 CCR............................................................................................................................................46 
      6.15 DBPs ..........................................................................................................................................47  
      6.16 Arsenic .......................................................................................................................................48 
      6.17 Radon .........................................................................................................................................49 
      6.18 Chromium VI .............................................................................................................................49 
      6.19 Perchlorate .................................................................................................................................49 
      6.20 Supplementary Watershed Sampling .........................................................................................49 
SECTION 7-CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS................................................................................51 
        7.1 Conclusions..................................................................................................................................51 
      7.2 Recommendations........................................................................................................................52 
References................................................................................................................................................53 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

4 

 
 

TABLES AND FIGURES 
 
FIGURE 1 WATERSHED BOUNDARY ..............................................................................................................12 
Table 1 Casitas Reservoir Inventory Annual Summary ..............................................................................15 
Table 2 Reservoirs Recoated or Cleaned Since 2006..................................................................................19 
Table 3 Monitoring Results for TTHMs and HAA5s..................................................................................48 
Table 4 Total Coliform and E. coli Monitoring Results From 2008-2010..................................................50 
  
LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
CMWD Ordinance No. 10-01; An Ordinance of the Casitas Municipal Water District Establishing 
Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
 
CMWD Resolution No. 08-08; Resolution of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water 
District Limiting Access to Lake Casitas in Order to Control Invasive Species 
 
Lake Casitas Recreation Area Application for Filming 
 
Resolution 77-8; A Resolution Clarifying the Position of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal 
Water District Concerning Use of Lands Acquired Under the Casitas Open Space Program 
 
LIST OF ACRONYMS USED 
 
CADPH-California Department of Public Health 
CCR-Consumer Confidence Report 
CMWD-Casitas Municipal Water District 
CUPA-Certified Unified Planning Agency 
DBP-Disinfection By-Products 
D/DBPR-Disinfecant/Disinfection By-Product Rule 
DWSAP-Drinking Water Source Assessment Program 
EHD-Environmental Health Division 
EIS-Environmental Impact Statement 
ERP-Emergency Response Plan 
FOB-Field Operations Branch 
HAA5-Haloacetic Acids (5) 
IDSE-Initial Distribution System Evaluation 
IESWTR-Interim Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule 
LCRA-Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
LPNF-Los Padres National Forest 
LT2 ESWTR-Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

5 

MCL-Maximum Contamination Level 
mg/L-milligrams per liter 
MRDL-Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level 
NEPA-National Environmental Policy Act 
NPDES-National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
OEHHA-Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 
pCi/L-picoCuries per liter 
PHG-Public Health Goal 
RMP-Resource Management Plan 
RWQCB-Regional Water Quality Control Board 
SDWA-Safe Drinking Water Act 
SOC-Synthetic Organic Compound 
SWRCB-State Water Resources Control Board 
SWTR-Surface Water Treatment Rule 
TCR-Total Coliform Rule 
TTHM-Total Trihalomethanes 
UCMR-Unregulated Contaminants Monitoring Rule 
ug/L-micrograms per liter 
USBR-United States Bureau of Reclamation 
USEPA-United States Environmental Protection Agency 
USFS-United States Forest Service 
VA-Vulnerability Assessment 
VCFD-Ventura County Fire Department 
VCWPD-Ventura County Watershed Protection District 
VOC-Volatile Organic Compound 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

6 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

There are numerous changes that have occurred since the last Watershed Sanitary Survey Update. 
  

 The United States Bureau of Reclamation completed a Final Environmental Impact Statement 
for the Resource Management Plan of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 

 Casitas Municipal Water District developed and implemented the Invasive Species Ordinance; 
a resolution limiting access to Lake Casitas in order to control invasive species. 

 The United States Forest Service revised its Land Management Plan for the Los Padres 
National Forest.   

 During 2009 Casitas Municipal Water District received Water Permit Amendment No: 
5610024-PA-002 from California Department of Public Health for the addition of 
orthophosphate/polyphosphate as a treatment chemical for corrosion control. 

 During 2006 CMWD submitted a grandfathered Cryptosporidium data package to California 
Department of Public Health, and a letter of acceptance was sent during January of 2007.  
CMWD qualified for the lowest risk category (Bin 1), therefore no additional treatment 
processes are required. 

 CMWD completed the required year of bi-monthly IDSE monitoring and submitted the report 
to CADPH during 2008.  A letter of approval from CADPH was received by CMWD during 
2009.  

 
The conclusions from this 2011 update have been summarized. 
 

 The lake casitas water supply has not been adversely affected by activities or conditions on the 
watershed within the last five years.    

 The Casitas Municipal Water District water supply continues to meet the current State and 
Federal Drinking Water Standards.   

 There are many protections on the water shed through Casitas Municipal Water District 
ordinances, as well as federal, state and county policies, plans and regulations. 

 
The recommendations from this 2011 update have been summarized. 
 

 Routinely check and analyze information from websites that provide information that is useful 
for watershed protection.  

 Continue to participate in programs or processes that provide protection for the watershed. 
 Remain informed of activities and changes in the watershed. 

 
 
 

 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

7 

INTRODUCTION 

The Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR) requires that all systems that are subject to the SWTR 
shall conduct a sanitary survey of their watersheds at least once every five years.  The purpose of a 
watershed sanitary survey is to identify actual or potential sources of contamination in the watershed, 
and any other watershed-related factors which are capable of producing adverse effect on the quality of 
water used for domestic drinking water purposes.  The Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) 
presented the finding of the first sanitary survey in June 1994.  The original CMWD Watershed 
Sanitary Survey reviewed the entire Lake Casitas watershed in great detail. The actual and potential 
contamination sources in the watershed were identified from literature searches and regulatory agency 
file sources. The field survey included all potential sources of contamination on the watershed. All 
private waste disposal systems were surveyed, as well as all livestock corrals, and a detailed report was 
written on each installation.  The results of the investigation were tabulated and a determination was 
made of the effects on the drinking water quality.  The results were documented in the June 1994 
sanitary survey. 
 
The California Department of Health Services has requested that updates of the survey be conducted 
every five years.  An update was done in March 2001 along with another update in 2006.  This 2011 
update presents the Department with a summary of the 2006 update, a description of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District watershed and system, potential sources of contamination, control and 
management practices, water quality, and conclusions and recommendations.  The 2011 update also 
includes field surveys, as well as an internet research of files provided by regulatory agencies. 

 
Casitas Municipal Water District has prepared this document with consideration of changes that have 
occurred in the watershed since the last update, and of future requirements that protect and provide 
safe drinking water to customers.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

8 

SECTION 1- 2006 UPDATE 

1.1 SUMMARY OF THE 2006 UPDATED WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY 

The main source of water for Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) is Lake Casitas.  The water 
from Lake Casitas receives filtration and chloramination prior to distribution to the customers. CMWD 
has an emergency disinfection plan to alleviate any breakdown of the treatment process. 

 
CMWD has provided finished water in compliance with all of the current regulations, except the 
copper tap sampling action level.  The copper sampling results were elevated due to the corrosive 
nature of the finished water. After reviewing the available options it was decided that the addition of an 
orthophosphate/polyphosphate blend would be used on a trial basis for a corrosion control study, with 
the intent of selecting this method as a treatment process if acceptable corrosion control was achieved.   
The phase l study results indicate that the addition of phosphate/orthophosphate will reduce the copper 
levels in the distribution system to an acceptable level. 

 
The regulations which have the greatest potential regulatory impact on CMWD are the Stage-2 
Disinfection By-Product Rule and the Long Term-2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule.   
CMWD changed the disinfection method from chlorine to chloramines in order to meet the Stage-l 
regulations during December of 2002.   The monitoring results indicate that CMWD will be in 
compliance with the Stage 2 rule.  The results of the Individual Distribution System Evaluation will 
assist in determining this. 

 
CMWD has been monitoring for Cryptosporidium and Giardia since 2001.  The results have revealed 
very infrequent detections, and when present the levels have been low. CMWD is optimistic that it will 
be assigned to a low risk category with minimal treatment processes required for Cryptosporidium log 
removal/inactivation. 
 
1.2 CONCLUSIONS OF THE 2006 WATERSHED SANITARY SURVEY UPDATE 

1.  The Lake Casitas watershed is not impacted by public waste disposal systems or private waste 
disposal systems. 
 
2.  The Lake Casitas Recreation Area is operated and regulated in such a manner that it poses no threat 
to the quality of the water supply. 
 
3.  Areas on the watershed where there is grazing or penning of animals and livestock are monitored on 
a regular basis. 
 
4.  Mining, oil drilling and logging pose no threat to the safety of the water supply at this time. 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

9 

5.  Body contact sports are prohibited at Lake Casitas.  Unregulated access (body contact) in the 
Ventura River has minimal impact on the safety of the water supply. 
 
6.  The limited access to the Casitas watershed by the US Forest Service effectively prevents illegal 
dumping of hazardous and solid waste in the watershed. 
 
7.  The Casitas water supply meets the current state and federal drinking water standards.  In June 
2004, CMWD started a corrosion control study using a 30% Ortho and 70% Poly Phosphate blend.  
The Phase 1 of the study is near completion, and the preliminary findings suggest an optimal 
phosphate dosage levels in the 1.0 – 1.5 mg/L range for effective corrosion control.  CMWD is also in 
the design stage of a caustic soda addition facility for pH adjustment. 
 
8.  CMWD is meeting the Stage 1 D/DBPR and LT2ESWTR after changing from free chlorine to 
chloramines as the residual disinfectant in the distribution system. 
 
9.   The use of pesticides and herbicides on the Lake Casitas watershed is almost nonexistent, so there 
is minimal potential for pesticide or herbicide contamination. 
 
10.  CMWD should continue to move towards the protection of the watershed through the removal of 
homes by the United States Bureau of Reclamation. 
 
11.  CMWD has requested the introduction of legislation that would prohibit the transportation of 
hazardous waste materials on State Highway 150.  
 
12.  Construction projects on the watershed must be reviewed by the Ventura County Planning 
Department.  Best management practices to prevent erosion are included as part of the permit process. 
 
1.3 RECOMMENDATIONS AND PROGRESS FROM THE 2006 SANITARY SURVEY 
UPDATE 

1.  Recommendation: CMWD opposes mining leases in the watershed and should continue to request 
that the United States Forest Service keep mining leases out of Casitas Reservoir Watershed area, and 
notify CMWD if there is any interest in mining.  
Progress: CMWD opposes mining leases in the watershed and has continued to request that the 
United States Forest Service keep mining leases out of Casitas Reservoir Watershed area and notify 
CMWD if there is any interest in mining 
 
2.  Recommendation: CMWD should continue the corrosion control study and move toward the 
implementation of permanent corrosion control facilities. 
Progress: CMWD completed the corrosion control study and has received the permit amendment.  The 
permanent corrosion control facility is in the capital budget for 2011-2012. 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

10 

3.  Recommendation: CMWD should continue to move towards the protection of the watershed 
through the removal of homes by the United States Bureau of Reclamation in coordination with the 
United States Forest Service.  
Progress: CMWD has continued to protect the watershed through the removal of homes by the Bureau 
of Reclamation in coordination with the US Forest Service. One residence is left that is used by the US 
Forest Service. 
 
4.  Recommendation: CMWD will continue to solicit efforts to close Highway 150 to hazardous 
chemical and hazardous waste hauling.  
Progress: CMWD has been unsuccessful in attempts to close Highway 150 to hazardous chemical and 
hazardous waste hauling. This has not been achieved, because of lack of legislative support. 
 
5. Recommendation: CMWD will contact the County of Ventura regarding grading permits in the 
watershed and the implementation of best management practices for erosion prevention.  
Progress: CMWD has contacted the County of Ventura regarding grading permits in the watershed.  
The Ventura County Public Works Department Engineering Services enforces best management 
practices for erosion prevention. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

11 

SECTION 2 –DESCRIPTION OF CASITAS WATERSHED  

 
The CMWD Watershed Sanitary Survey covers the land and streams that drain into Lake Casitas.  The 
watershed is 108 square miles of which 33 square miles discharge directly into the lake and 75 square 
miles drain into the Ventura River diversion facilities (See Watershed Boundary Figure 1). 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

12 

2.1 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

13 

Natural Setting 
Topography 
The Ventura River portion of the watershed is characterized by rugged mountains in the upper 
basins transitioning to relatively flat valleys in the lower downstream areas. The areas to the east 
and west of the lake are particularly steep and are considered undevelopable. Most of the 
northwest portion of the watershed is located in the Los Padres National Forest. This land is very 
mountainous and covered by chaparral and sage brush. 

Geology and Soils 
The Ventura County Watershed Protection website also has a good description of the Ventura 
River watershed: “The Ventura Watershed lies within the western Transverse Ranges in 
California, an active tectonic region that contributes some of the highest sediment yields in the 
United States. The range is composed almost entirely of highly folded and faulted marine 
sedimentary rocks. Steep slopes in the upper portion of the watershed produce a large portion of 
sediment supplied to the Ventura River. 
Mass wasting from erodible, colluvial soils on hillsides, including slides, slumps, debris flows and 
earth flows, is a common mechanism by which sediment is transported to the river channels. 
Sediment production in the area is also impacted by the occurrence of forest fires that clear the 
normally dense vegetation and greatly increase the erodability of land surfaces”. 
 
In the original 1996 Sanitary Survey, information on soil texture for the Lake Casitas area was 
obtained from a cooperative report by the Soil Conservation Service, United States Department of 
Agriculture, and the University of California.  According to the report, the soils that had been 
classified were complex and varied widely in thickness, texture, composition and erodability, and 
were categorized as very fine sandy loam to clay loam. Most of the region’s soils are easily eroded 
by precipitation and runoff. 
 
Vegetation 
According to the Lake Casitas Final Resource Management Plan/Environmental Impact Statement 
completed in 2010 by the USBR, vegetation in the watershed area is categorized as upland and 
wetland types. Native and non-native plant species are found in both categories.  Of the upland 
types, chaparral, coastal sage scrub, and oak woodland are the dominant vegetation types,  
 
followed by grassland.  The most dominant of the wetland types are oak or sycamore riparian 
woodland. 

 
2.2 CLIMATE 
 
Ventura County weather is characterized by the extremes of hot summers and cool winters.  Daytime 
summer temperatures range from the high 70s to the low 90s, and occasionally exceed 100 degrees 
Fahrenheit.  Winter temperatures generally range from the 40s through the 60s.  Winds from the ocean 
have a moderating effect on the climate near the coast.  Frosts are rare in the coastal region, but 
common in the inland valleys and mountains.  In general, the higher elevations receive more rain.  



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

14 

During the period from 2005-2010, the average annual rainfall for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
was 19 inches, with a maximum of 29 inches and a minimum of 7 inches. There is seasonal variation 
in the rainfall, with more of the rainfall occurring between the months of November and April. 
 
CMWD maintains a temperature and recording station at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  During 
the period from 2005-2010, the maximum temperature was 112 degrees Fahrenheit, and the minimum 
temperature was 8 degrees Fahrenheit.  Air temperature affects the amount of water use from the lake 
for domestic water and agriculture.  Air temperature also affects algal growth in the lake. 
 
2.3 SOURCE OF WATER 
 
Coyote and Santa Ana Creeks are the major tributaries draining the direct watershed. The streams flow 
from north to south and receive tributary water from smaller streams. Matilija Canyon and Matilija 
Creek contribute to the Casitas Watershed indirect inflow.  This water is first impounded by the 
Matilija Dam, and then discharged into Matilija Creek.  Matilija Creek flows into the Ventura River 
between the Matilija Dam and the Robles Diversion Dam. 
 
The Robles Diversion Dam is located on the Ventura River approximately two miles below the 
Matilija Reservoir, and diverts water from the Ventura River to Lake Casitas. The water flows by 
gravity into the lake by way of a 5.4 mile long canal.  The canal has a total capacity of 550 cfs.  From 
July through December a minimum of 20 cfs must be permitted to flow down the Ventura River past 
the Robles Diversion to supply the city of Ventura, and for the health of the fishery.  From January 
through June an additional 10 cfs is allocated for fisheries. During storm events, additional water is 
released. 
 
The fish passage facility (fish ladder) at the Robles Diversion facility was constructed by CMWD in 
2005. It allows the endangered Southern California Steelhead to travel upstream of the Robles 
Diversion facility to spawning areas, and allows fish to migrate downstream to the ocean. This 
federally mandated project has been a collaborative effort by multiple agencies and community 
organizations. 
 
When the lake is full there is a large island located in the lake with an area of 244 acres.  A smaller 
island also emerges when the lake level drops.  The lake capacity is 254,000 acre feet and the spillway 
elevation is 567 feet.  At this contour the shoreline extends for approximately 30 miles 
 
2.4 HYDROLOGY 
 
Precipitation supplies Lake Casitas with water in the forms of runoff, rainfall directly on the water 
surface, and water from the diversion.   
 
The Ventura County watershed is subject to a Mediterranean type climate, with long periods of no 
rainfall, followed by short periods of intense rainfall, and high run off peaks.  The runoff peaks are 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

15 

usually short duration flash floods, with very sharp drops in flow to minimum levels. The events are 
usually associated with erosion in the watershed and elevated turbidity levels. 
 
See the table 1 for the Casitas Reservoir Inventory Annual Summary: 

TABLE 1 -CASITAS RESERVOIR INVENTORY ANNUAL SUMMARY: 

Lake Casitas Inflow 

Year 
Direct 
Inflow 

Ventura 
River 

Diversion 
Total 
Inflow 

Released To 
Distribution 

System 

Rainfall 
On Lake 
Surface 

Water-year 
Rainfall at 

Matilija 
Dam 

2005 53115 26906 79906 17673 7798 74.44 

2006 9382 12070 22191 17253 5534 34.58 

2007 -1450 0 -386 21326 2253 9.23 

2008 15470 9916 26462 18325 5538 33.62 

2009 428 498 926 17259 3646 16.56 
 
The safe annual yield of the reservoir is 20,840 acre-feet during a 21 year drought period, as 
determined from the “Water Supply and Use Status Report” December 7, 2004. 

2.5 LAND USE 
 
The watershed area is owned and managed by several different entities (see Figure 1).  In 1956 the 
United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) purchased a portion of the watershed as part of the 
Ventura River Project.  The project area included Casitas Dam and Lake, and the Robles Diversion.  
The USBR has retained ownership of the dam, the lake, and a strip of land extending along the 
shoreline of the lake.  CMWD manages the recreation area adjacent to the lake, and maintains the 
water distribution system. In 1974 the USBR purchased 3,500 acres of land north of the recreation 
area.  In the past this area was identified as “Casitas Reservoir Watershed” (CRW) or “Teague 
Memorial Watershed”, and is now identified as “Casitas Open Space”. Between 1976 and 1980 the 
USBR acquired private parcels in the open space land.  This resulted in the purchase and removal of 
homes in the Santa Ana Creek watershed. 
 
The Lake Casitas Recreation Area (LCRA) is located at the northwest section of the lake.  It includes a 
water playground, lazy river, café, marina and boat docks, launch ramps and campgrounds.  Activities 
in the recreation area include camping, fishing, hiking, bicycling, model planes, and the usual activities 
found in camping areas.   
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

16 

Another portion of the watershed north and northwest of the lake is managed by the US Forest Service 
(USFS) which has developed multiple use guidelines for protecting and controlling these lands.  There 
is a USFS Campground at Wheeler Gorge. 
 
Other portions of the watershed consist of private homes located on the Ventura River above the 
Robles Diversion and homes located along Matilija Creek, which is also located above the Robles 
Diversion. 
 
There are also several citrus and avocado farms, and a citrus packing plant located north of the 
diversion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

17 

SECTION 3 DESCRIPTION OF THE CMWD WATER SYSTEM 

3.1 DESCRIPTION 
 
The CMWD water supply is obtained from direct local runoff into Lake Casitas, and a diversion canal 
from the Ventura River, with supplemental supply from Mira Monte Well. This Watershed Sanitary 
Survey pertains to the surface water sources of supply. Mira Monte well is addressed in the Drinking 
Water Source Assessment that was done with the Department of Public Health during March of 2003. 
  
CMWD serves a population of approximately 60,000 through 3,070 direct service connections, 258 
agricultural connections and 113 commercial or industrial connections. The District serves 
approximately 8,000 people directly.  Most of the population is served through wholesale connections 
to other utilities. 

 
The primary components of the water system include the source, the treatment facility, and the 
distribution system.  The treatment facility starts at the reservoir intake structure and includes pre-
treatment, filtration, chlorination, ammoniation and corrosion control treatment facilities.  Distribution 
includes pumping stations, distribution storage reservoirs, the water distribution pipelines, and finally 
the customers’ meters.  The CMWD has an emergency connection with the Carpinteria Valley Water 
District. 
 
3.2 INTAKE AND TREATMENT FACILITIES 
 
The Casitas Reservoir intake structure conveys water from the lake to the treatment plant (The Marion 
R. Walker Pressure Filtration Plant).  It has gates at twenty-four foot intervals from the surface of the 
lake to the bottom of the lake.  This allows for selective withdrawal from the various elevations in the 
lake to secure the best water quality. The intake structure conveys water from the lake to the treatment 
plant. 
 
CMWD operates a high-rate, deep-bed, dual-media, in-line pressure filtration treatment facility.  The 
first step in the process is the addition of polymer and ferric sulfate to aid in the coagulation of 
particulate matter and turbidity.  The water is then pre-chlorinated prior to filtration through eight 
horizontal pressure filters.   Following filtration more chlorine is added and the water moves into a 
122” diameter section of pipe that serves as horizontal storage for meeting disinfection requirements.  
After the requirements have been met, aqueous ammonia is added to stop the formation of disinfection 
by-products. 
 
The treatment facility has achieved the optimization turbidity goals of the California Department of 
Public Health (CADPH) Cryptosporidium Action Plan. 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

18 

3.3 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
 
The finished water is fed into a 54” line at a maximum capacity of 100 cfs.  The line divides into two 
sections. The western branch is pumped to the Rincon pipeline. The eastern branch is distributed to 
customers in the Ojai Valley area and the City of Ventura. 
 
CMWD has ten reservoir locations, ten pump plants, and approximately ninety-seven miles of pipeline.  
The distribution system covers the area from the Upper Ojai Summit to the Rincon and also serves part 
of the City of Ventura. 
 
3.4 IMPROVEMENTS AND PROJECTS 
 
There were many improvements to the CMWD water system during the last five years. 
 

 The radio modems for the distribution SCADA were replaced. 
 The 4M pump plan Flow tube was replaced. 
 The Ojai Valley Pump Plant mainline meter was replaced. 
 The interior coatings for pressure filters 3, 5, and 6 were redone.        
 The CADPH permit was amended for the addition of orthophosphate. 
 Phase 2 of the Rincon Pump Plant Upgrade Project was completed. 
 The interior coating of the lamella clarifier was redone. 
 Cathodic protection was installed in Rincon Balancing Reservoir # 1 & Oak View Reservoir 

#1. 
 Electrical systems were upgraded at Ojai 4M Pump Plant. 
 Phase 3 of the Rincon Pump Plant Upgrade Project was completed. 

 
See Table 2 for reservoirs recoated or cleaned since 2006. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

19 

Table 2- Reservoirs Recoated or Cleaned since 2006 
 

Tank:  Name or ID 
Capacity 

(MG) 
Last 

Inspection 
Last Cleaned Recoated Other 

Oak View #1 3.5 2006 2006 2009  

Oak View #2 3.5 2006 2006 2011  

Villanova 6.5 2006 2006 N/A  

Fairview #1 1.0 2006 2006 2006 Roof Replaced 2007 

Fairview #2 1.0 2006 2006 2010  

Ojai East 3.0 2006 2006 N/A  

4M #1 1.0 2006 2006 2011 Roof Replaced 2011 

4M #2 1.0 2006 2006 2010 Roof Replaced 2010 

Upper Ojai 1.8 2006 2006 N/A  

3M 1.0 2006 2006 N/A  

Rincon Control 0.25 2006 2006 N/A  

Rincon Balance #1 1.1 2006 2006 2008  

Rincon Balance #2 1.5 2006 2006 2010  

Fortress #1 0.05 1998 2000 N/A  

Fortress #2 0.14 N/A N/A N/A  

Gardens 0.01 N/A N/A N/A Roof Replaced 2007 
 
More projects have been completed or planned during 2011. 
 

 The interior of filter vessel #7 was recoated and repaired. 
 A portion of Rincon 2M pipeline was replaced. 
 The electrical systems at 4M pump plant were upgraded. 
 Ojai 4M Reservoir had the interior recoated and the roof replaced. 
  The interior of Oak View Reservoir #2 was recoated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

20 

CHAPTER 4 – POTENTIAL SOURCE OF CONTAMINATION IN WATERSHED 

4.1 LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
 
The Lake Casitas Recreation Area (LCRA) provides many recreational opportunities.  Amenities 
include a water playground and lazy river, boat marina with docks and launch ramps, campsites, 
restaurant, bait and tackle store, gasoline sales, marine repair services, and boat and slip rentals. 
  
The LCRA is managed with the goal of protecting the integrity of the water supply.  See the Appendix 
for Ordinance No. 10-01- An Ordinance of the Casitas Municipal Water District Establishing Rules 
and Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. The LCRA is inspected 
annually by the Department of Public Health. Since Lake Casitas is a drinking water supply reservoir, 
it is a non-body contact reservoir, and animals are not allowed within 50 feet of the shoreline. The 
LCRA is inspected annually by the Department of Public Health. 
 
The LCRA features well designed and maintained facilities for day use and camping. 

 
 There are twelve designated campgrounds containing approximately 450 campsites. 
 There is one overflow campground containing approximately 200 campsites. 
 There are two main shower facilities, one with a holding tank, and one with an on-site septic 

tank and leaching system. 
 
Sewage and waste water disposal are the most critical concerns associated with large numbers of 
people recreating near a drinking water supply.  To handle these priorities, the LCRA has numerous 
facilities. 
 

 There are ten vault toilets (2 tanks per building) throughout the park. 
 There are two vault-type RV dump stations. 
 Four restrooms at picnic #12 (Coyote Ramp) which are pumped to Coyote Dump Station. 
 A 500 gallon holding tank serves the event area and one camp host. 
 A 500 gallon holding tank serves host site E-1. 
 Two- 5000 gallon tanks serve the restaurant and RVs at snack bar area. 
 Two-1800 gallon holding tanks serve RVs in F camp area. 
 A vault holding tank serves the basketball court area and the RVs near Picnic Area 1. 
 There is an 1800 gallon holding tank for the sink at Picnic Area 8. 
 The two fish cleaning facilities have vault holding tanks. 
 There are three floating restrooms (USS Reliefs) on Lake Casitas. 
 Eighty chemical toilets are found throughout the LCRA. 

 
The CMWD maintenance team keeps a constant check on the level of waste in the toilet vaults and 
holding tanks, making sure tanks are routinely pumped and overflow is prevented.  All vaults, 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

21 

chemical toilets, floating restrooms, fish cleaning vaults, and RV dump stations are maintained by 
CMWD, which operates its own waste pump truck and hauls the waste to the Ojai Sanitary District 
Waste Treatment Facility on a daily basis.   
 
Trash, litter, and refuse are collected on a regular basis from bins and containers throughout the park.  
Trash is also placed in a large roll-off out of view from the public and away from the water supply.  
The roll-off is emptied on a regular basis by contract with a trash disposal company. 
 
Hazardous waste, such as motor oil and unused paint, are collected by the employees on a regular basis 
and stored in the maintenance yard.  These wastes are normally disposed of through the Ventura 
County Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators Hazardous Waste drop-off day.  
Occasionally hazardous waste disposal is contracted out for items not accepted by the county.  The 
County of Ventura Environmental Health Division regulates hazardous materials and hazardous 
wastes, and inspects the maintenance yard on an annual basis. 
 
An urban storm water collection system has been installed between the main parking area and the lake 
to provide water quality protection. 
 
Recreation activities that can potentially impact water quality include boating and fishing, commercial 
filming, special events, camping, hiking and biking.  Also, some visitors bring animals to the LCRA.  
Water quality protective measures are associated with each of these activities. 
 

Boating and Fishing 
Boating and Fishing activities occur through out the year on Lake Casitas.  The LCRA has 
facilities and policies that help protect water quality. 

 
 A permit is required to operate a boat at the LCRA; prior to issuance of a permit the boat will 

be inspected for integrity and evidence of invasive species.  
 Signs are posted near fishing, docking, and public access areas to prevent illegal dumping and 

accidental rollover of vehicles into the lake.  Park personnel maintain a supply of petroleum 
spill clean up materials, and have the ability to respond to spills should they occur.  In the event 
of a larger spill, a professional clean up company will be contracted.  California Department of 
Public Health is notified of any spills that are beyond incidental. 

 Fuel dock facilities are constructed and maintained for spill prevention.  Three double walled 
tanks with secondary containment are located on shore, and two pumps with emergency off 
switches are located on the dock.  For additional safety there are manual valves that can be 
closed.  The fueling facility is inspected on a daily basis by the concessionaire. The County of 
Ventura Environmental Health inspects the tanks on an annual basis. 

 A spill response plan has been developed by the LCRA.   The staff maintains a supply of 
petroleum spill cleanup materials.  In the event of a larger spill, a professional clean up 
company will be contacted. 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

22 

 There are three floating restrooms (USS Reliefs) located on Lake Casitas.  They are the 
standard design used by the State Department of Parks and Recreation and were approved by 
the California Department of Public Health. The structure has a double hull and inspection port. 
If the internal hull leaks, waste material will be retained by the outside hull. If a leak should 
occur, the structure will be taken off the lake and the inner hull will be repaired. The floating 
restrooms are towed to the launch ramp and pumped out by the Casitas waste pump truck on a 
regular basis. 

 Two fish cleaning sinks are located in parking areas, set back from the high water level of the 
lake and maintained by LCRA staff. 

 A closed zone is maintained approximately 1,700 feet from the Casitas Dam intake.  A buoy 
line and posted signs separate the fishing area of the lake from the closed area surrounding the 
intake. The LCRA staff patrol the lake to make sure that no boats enter the closed area at any 
time. Shorelines for both the lake and islands are designated as off limits to boaters through 
posting and buoy lines. The LCRA staff patrol these areas on a regular basis. 

 CMWD adopted Resolution No. 0-08, which restricts boats from entering the recreation area 
until successfully completing a “clean and dry” inspection and a quarantine period of ten days. 
Another option is to store the boat at the LCRA and participate in the tamper proof tag program 
that verifies the boat has not visited any other lakes. See appendix for CMWD Resolution N0. 
08-08. Because of the invasive species problem, float tubes have been temporarily banned since 
March 2008.   When, and if, the restriction is lifted, use of float tubes is subject to certain 
conditions.   

 The boat concessionaire collects fees, and tallies the number of people canoeing or kayaking.  
The Recreation Area Inspection Report submitted to California Department of Public Health 
includes any body contact incidents associated with these activities.   

 A monthly report that is submitted to CADPH  includes daily visitor counts, inspections, 
problems encountered, corrective actions, and incidents or violations involving body contact or 
water quality problems. 

 
Commercial Filming 
Commercial Filming and Recreation Events occasionally take place at Casitas. No body contact is 
allowed, and a formal agreement is made beforehand to ensure compliance with the CMWD 
Policy for Filming/Commercials at Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  The policy provides guidelines 
and procedures for commercial filming at LCRA while recognizing the importance of maintaining 
water quality.  The application involves the completion of a checklist which is reviewed by 
CMWD prior to approval of the project, and review/approval by the USBR. See appendix for the 
CMWD Application for Filming. 
 
Special Events 
During special events staffing is increased to handle the increased visitor load.  The LCRA staff 
patrols the event area in order to limit access to the shoreline area. Depending upon the nature of 
the event, security is increased by hiring a private contractor, or the Ventura County Sheriff’s 
Department. Rental chemical toilets are placed in convenient locations.  Parking is off site and 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

23 

across the road from the LCRA.  Immediately following the event, the area is cleaned and returned 
to the original condition.  The event coordinator is required to report waste amounts to Ventura 
County Integrated Waste Management Division. 
 
Camping, Hiking and Biking 
Campers must acquire a permit prior to camping at the LCRA.  Camping, hiking and biking 
activities occur throughout the year.  Facilities for campers include bathrooms, shower house, 
sewer hookups, trash, and waste hauling.  LCRA staff patrol the shoreline area and patrol the lake 
by boat. 
 
Animals 
Animals must be leashed and kept 50 feet from the lake shore, with the exception when dogs are 
allowed on boats.  It is unlawful for any person to bring a horse into the recreation area without a 
valid special event permit or written permission from the General Manager. 
 
In conclusion, most of the recreational and restroom facilities are located on the north shore of the 
lake. These activities and facilities present potential sources of contamination, but they are 
managed and maintained by CMWD in a way that prioritizes water quality. 

 
4.2 WATERSHED WASTE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 
 
Private Waste Disposal Systems 
There are four different areas of the watershed where private waste disposal systems can be found. 
 

 Private waste disposal systems are found in the LCRA.  For more information see the 
discussion in section 4.1. 

 Portions of Coyote and Santa Ana Creek are in the Casitas Open Space area. Private residences 
with waste disposal systems have been removed with the exception of one remaining life lease, 
and one residence managed by the USFS. 

 Residences with private waste disposal systems are found on private in-holdings within the 
USFS boundary  

 There are approximately 150 cabins and homes with private waste disposal systems located in 
Matilija Canyon and the upper Ventura River watershed area. All private sewage disposal 
facilities were inspected during the original 1995 Watershed Sanitary Survey and found to be in 
satisfactory condition.  Any new systems installed since that time have been inspected by the 
County of Ventura Environmental Health Department (EHD).  The County of Ventura EHD 
Individual Sewage Disposal System Program is responsible for reviewing septic system design 
proposals and design criteria. This agency is also responsible for inspection of new septic 
systems and repairs of existing systems to determine conformance with applicable codes. 

 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

24 

Public Waste Disposal Systems 
The USFS Campground at Wheeler Gorge uses concrete vaults for sewage waste containment. These 
vaults are pumped and waste is hauled off the watershed. All other waste generated at the campground 
is also hauled off the watershed. 
 
There has been an issue documented involving the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB) and USFS Fire Station located near the northwest shore of the lake.  The USFS facility was 
issued a notice of violation of waste discharge requirements, April 29, 2011, involving a failure to 
submit monitoring reports, and, a failure to submit monitoring reports on time.  The violation states 
that some semiannual reports for 2007 were late, and some semiannual reports for 2008-2010 had not 
been submitted. A report detailing corrective action and preventative actions taken to come into full 
compliance with Board Order No.95-102 has been requested.  The USFS station is planning beneficial 
future improvements that include a new leach field that will be located further away from Station 
Creek and Lake Casitas. 
 
Wastewater Collection Systems 
Ojai Valley Sanitation District operates the wastewater collection system for the Ojai Valley. 
However, there is no portion of these waste water collection systems on the Casitas Watershed or the 
Ventura River above the Robles Diversion.  The Ojai Valley Sanitation District Wastewater Treatment 
Plant is located near the Ventura River, downstream of any area that would affect the Lake Casitas 
Water supply. 
 
4.3 AGRICULTURE, PESTICIDES AND HERBICIDES 
 
There is some use of pesticides and herbicides in the Casitas Watershed area, so a pesticide use report 
was obtained by the Ventura County Agricultural Commissioners Office.  Avocados are the main crop 
in the watershed area listed in the report.  The CMWD LCRA uses small amounts of herbicides and 
pesticides that are applied according to the label directions.  Roundup herbicide is used to spot control 
weeds. It is not applied during times of rain run off.  Gas pesticides are used to control the ground 
squirrel population.  The amount and type of herbicides and pesticides used by CMWD LCRA are 
reported to the Ventura County Agricultural Commission.   CMWD is in the process of finalizing a 
comprehensive Pest Management Plan.   
 
The county of Ventura Watershed Protection has been using glyphosate for the removal of Giant Reed 
(Arundo donax).  The sampling program results have shown non-detect for glyphosate. 
 
4.4 ANIMALS 
 
A wide variety of wild and domestic animals inhabit the watershed.   Livestock grazing and wildlife 
grazing have the potential for contaminating the water supply.  Any runoff from the livestock grazing 
will predominately enter Lake Casitas from the tributary streams of Coyote Creek and Santa Ana 
Creek and the Ventura River Diversion. These tributaries enter the lake at the extreme north end of the 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

25 

lake, which is approximately three miles from the south end of the lake where the domestic water 
intake structure is located. 
 
Wildlife 
The naturally vegetated areas of the watershed provide shelter, food and nesting for a wide variety of 
animal species. The USFS 2010 Revised Land Management Plan and Final Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) lists the following wildlife populations for the Casitas Watershed: Birds, fish, reptiles, 
and mammals such as opossum, skunk, raccoon, mountain lion, bobcat, coyote, fox, wild pigs, black 
bear, and black-tailed mule deer.  There is wildlife grazing along the periphery of the reservoir.  
However, the numbers are not significant from the standpoint of potential contamination. 
 
Grazing Practices 
The USFS has one small grazing lease in the LPNF within the Lake Casitas Watershed.  The number 
of permitted animals is limited to twenty, and the grazing season is limited within the time period 
between March and August.  The grazing lease location is not close to the lake, and the cattle do not 
have access to the lake.  
 
Livestock Use and Control 
There are no permitted authorizations for livestock use on lands controlled by the USBR and/or 
CMWD.  The USFS has issued one grazing lease in a portion of the Los Padres National Forest 
(LPNF) that is near Santa Ana Creek.  There are also three private landholdings within the LPNF on 
which horses or cattle are maintained by the property owners.  There are no commercial feedlots 
within any of the local watersheds. 
 
The CMWD has sought cooperation with the private property owners and the USFS to implement Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) for the protection of water quality within the direct watershed.  CMWD 
has also been engaged in a water quality monitoring program within each specific area of the local 
watershed. 
 
The State Water Resource Control Board (SWRCB) has established minimum guidelines for protection 
of water quality from animal wastes. The regional water quality control board uses these guidelines in 
the preparation of water quality control plans and waste discharge requirements for the protection of 
water quality from the disposal of animal wastes. 
 
The SWRCB and the Ventura County Resource Conservation District have been working with one 
individual property owner on implementing Best Management Practices.  The property owner has 
received an Environmental Quality Incentives Program cost share from the National Resource 
Conservation Service.  Recommendations for engineering necessary for accomplishing the BMPs have 
been made and work is in progress. 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

26 

4.5 MINING, OIL AND GAS, LOGGING 
 
Mining, Oil and Gas 
The Lake Casitas Watershed lands that are controlled by the USBR and CMWD are closed to all 
mining.   A portion of the watershed on USFS land is open to mining, but if any mining activity is 
proposed, the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) would be initiated, and an environmental 
assessment or environmental review would be required.  It is expected that CMWD would provide 
significant comments if mining was proposed in the watershed area.  The USFS does have some 
regulatory control of mining operations and the claimant would be required to submit a plan of 
operations.  The USFS would then set conditions on the process. 
 
On USFS land CMWD and the USBR had formerly obtained a 20-year mining withdrawal of 
approximately 65,000 acres that expired in 2004.  The withdrawal area was approximately 5 miles 
northwest of lake and included part of the drainage basins of Coyote, Santa Ana, and Matilija creeks.  
The original withdrawal was initiated because Homestake Mining Company had staked a claim with 
intentions to mine uranium ore.  Since the mining withdrawal has expired, the watershed area is now 
open for mineral claims.  However, there is no history of interest in the area, except for the original 
claim that initiated the withdrawal. 
 
Logging 
There is no history of logging on CMWD watershed lands and the USFS has not issued any logging 
permits in the area in recent history. There is no marketable timber on the watershed.  
 
4.6 EROSION AND URBAN RUNOFF 
 
The impact of erosion on water quality within the Lake Casitas Watershed is directly related to the 
erodible soils, rainfall intensities, natural occurrences (fire), and land use.  The primary impact of 
erosion is to the water quality of Lake Casitas.  Specific water quality impacts resulting from erosion 
are elevated turbidity and increased nutrient loading that may lead to algal blooms.  The Lake Casitas 
Pressure Filtration Plant (constructed in 1995) operates to remove turbidity and particles from the 
drinking water, but it is recognized that the plant has physical and performance limitations that can 
result in deficiencies in water quality and quantity.  
 
There is very limited urban storm water runoff from the Casitas Watershed into Lake Casitas because 
of limited urban development on the watershed or on the Ventura River above the Robles Diversion. 
The USFS Wheeler Gorge Campground on the Ventura River and the LCRA are the only areas of 
major development on the watershed. 
 
The SWRCB regulates urban runoff using the NPDES permit.  The permit covers discharges from the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems in the Ventura County Watershed Protection District 
(VCWPD), the county of Ventura, and all of the incorporated cities. 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

27 

4.7 UNAUTHORIZED ACTIVITIES 
 
There is an occasional occurrence of unauthorized dumping within the Casitas Watershed.  Most of 
these events are limited to the sides of county or state roads, and are primarily unwanted household 
furniture and appliances.  Enforcement and removal is generally under the jurisdiction of federal, state, 
and local authorities. CMWD personnel inspect tributaries to Lake Casitas on a regular basis in 
conjunction with sampling and stream flow data collection. 
 
Body contact is prohibited at Lake Casitas and the Robles Diversion Canal. There is unregulated public 
access in the Ventura River above the Robles Diversion, in Matilija Creek, and in the North Fork 
Matilija Creek. This body contact is an incidental use and occurs only during the summer when water 
is not diverted through the Robles Diversion to Lake Casitas. 
 
4.8 RECREATIONAL USE OUTSIDE THE RECREATION AREA 
 
Recreational use of the watershed outside the recreation area consists of hiking, horseback riding, and 
hunting. A number of trails for backpackers are located in the Los Padres National Forest. Backpackers 
and other campers in the Los Padres National Forest must obtain permits from the US Forest Service 
for campfires.  
 
4.9 FIRE HAZARDS AND PREVENTION 
 
A large portion of the watershed is designated as a potentially hazardous fire area by the Ventura 
County Fire Department (VCFD). This is due to a combination of factors. First, a large portion of the 
watershed is in the Los Padres National Forest, which includes large areas of very dense vegetation in 
rugged terrain. Second, there is also the Mediterranean-type climate of the area, featuring wet winters 
and very dry summers. These two factors, combined with the phenomenon of Santa Ana winds (very 
dry winds originating in the interior deserts to the east of Ventura County), all contribute to the 
hazardous fire conditions of the area.  The last significant fire in this watershed occurred in 1985.  
There were no major brushfires in the watershed from 2006-2010. 
 
The US Forest Service provides fire control and prevention on the major portion of the watershed 
which is in the LPNF.  The VCFD controls fire prevention activities on the rest of the watershed. 
CMWD manages the Casitas Open Space Area 
 
4.10 TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS 
 
State Highway 33, also called the Maricopa Highway, is closed to all hazardous waste haulers. 
Highway 150, which runs adjacent to Lake Casitas, is not closed to this activity.  Efforts have been 
made to change this situation without success. 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

28 

4.11 TOXIC WASTE SITES 
 
The Department of Toxic Substances Control “EnviroStor” environmental database provides a listing 
of and information on toxic waste sites.  A search of the site produced no active or inactive sites in 
close proximity to the lake. 
 
4.12 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
 
The Ventura County Environmental Health website was accessed for the following searches: 
 
Inactive Hazardous Material Sites 
Certified Unified Program A Facilities (Business Plans) 
Leaking Underground Fuel Tank Clean up Sites 
Inactive Underground Tank Sites 
List of Voluntary Clean up Program Sites 
 
The search produced no information suggesting that any of these sites have caused a surface water 
quality problem during the last five years. 
 
There were no major chemical spills in the vicinity of the lake during 2006-2011.  The Ventura County 
Environmental Health Division website can be accessed for a weekly hazardous spill report entitled, 
“Hazardous Materials Discharge Summary Report.” 
 
4.13 MATILIJA DAM REMOVAL PROJECT 
 
The Matilija Dam was constructed in 1948 for the purpose of water storage and flood control.  The 
Matilija reservoir had an initial capacity of 7,000 acre feet.  A large amount of siltation has occurred 
since that time. The reservoir now has a capacity of less than 1,000 acre feet. The US Army Corps of 
Engineers has developed proposals to remove the dam. The removal of the dam has the potential to 
release approximately 2 million cubic yards of fine silt that has built up behind the dam.  Depending 
upon the method of silt removal that is chosen, the silt could possibly enter the CMWD water system 
through diversions at the Los Robles Canal.  Efforts are being made to ensure that the project is carried 
out in a manner that won’t impact water quality through the release of silt laden with nitrogen, 
phosphorous and organic material.  These nutrients become part of the lake ecosystem.  Algal blooms 
will be enhanced and cause problems with lake clarity, finished water taste and odor issues, and 
filtration plant performance problems.  CMWD is participating in the planning process and is 
collecting baseline data samples for nutrients and inorganic compounds. 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

29 

4.14 ANTICIPATED GROWTH AND PROJECTED CHANGE IN SOURCES OF 
CONTAMINATION 
 
The construction of new homes within any part of the watershed is not expected to occur or increase 
substantially. In the Casitas Open Space area there is only one remaining life lease, and one residence 
has been reserved by the USBR for housing an on-site USFS security officer. 
 
The areas to the east and west of the lake are particularly steep and rugged, and are considered 
undevelopable.  Most of the northwest portion of the watershed is located in the LPNF.  This land is 
very mountainous, and is covered by chaparral and sage brush. The value of this land for development 
is quite limited. However, it creates an open space that is valuable to the people living in the area, as 
well as the people using the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  The Ojai Area General Plan, the USBR 
RMP, and the USFS all limit or control growth. 
 
The grazing of livestock in the National Forest is not expected to change substantially. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

30 

SECTION 5 -WATERSHED CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 

5.1 CASITAS POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 
Recreation Area 
Casitas Reservoir is open to the public for non-body contact recreational activities. The average 
number of visitors per day from 2006-2010 was 2,041 people, and the maximum number of visitors per 
day for the same time period was 22,264 people.  
 

Ordinance 10-01 
The Casitas MWD operates the Lake Casitas Recreation Area in conformance with Casitas 
Municipal Water District Ordinance No. 10-01, Ordinance of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
establishing rules and regulations for the public use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area (see 
appendix).  This ordinance establishes rules and regulations for the public use of the area.  

 
 Section 5.1, The Sanitary Regulation of the Ordinance protects the sanitary quality of the lake 

and covers bodily contact, animals, children, trash disposal, fish cleaning, waste discharge from 
boats, gas or oil discharge from boats, and boat integrity.   

 Section 5.2 of Ordinance 10-01 covers the boating Regulations and permitting. 
 Section 5.4.5 of Ordinance 10-01 covers the use of fireworks, preventing possible pollution 

from fireworks which contain perchlorates. 
 It shall be unlawful for any person within the park to receive, bring or cause to be brought into 

the Recreation area, or use, possess, or discharge, fireworks, firearms, or other explosives other 
than fuels except when authorized by the General Manager. 

 
Ordinance 08-08 
A key change in the LCRA ordinances is the adoption of the Invasive Species Resolution.  During 
2008 CMWD passed a resolution limiting access to Lake Casitas in order to control invasive 
species, mainly Quagga and Zebra Mussels.  It is “The CMWD Resolution No. 08-08 Resolution 
of the Board of Directors of CMWD limiting Access to Lake Casitas in Order of Control Invasive 
Species”.  According to the resolution, boats that are stored, moored, or docked in the LCRA can 
be launched at Lake Casitas as long as the vessel remains within the recreation area. Any vessel 
that is currently in the designated recreation area storage location or moored at docks in the Santa 
Ana arm of Lake Casitas, and then is removed for any purpose, may only re-enter the recreation 
area by maintaining current status for storage or mooring.  This includes remaining current on all 
storage or mooring fees, passing the clean and dry inspection at the recreation area, and submitting 
to a 10-day quarantine storage at the recreation area before being allowed to launch into Lake 
Casitas.   CMWD will deny public access to the Park based on any potential of any contamination 
by any vessel. Float tubes have been temporarily banned because of potential contamination from 
Quagga and/or Zebra mussels.   
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

31 

CMWD also has a Quagga/Zebra Mussel early detection program that includes substrate 
monitoring in the lake, and microscopic analysis of plankton tows.  The purpose of the resolution 
08-08 is to protect water quality of the lake and distribution system, and to protect CMWD's 
customers from escalating costs for equipment maintenance and replacement.    

 
Resolution No. 77-8 
This is a resolution clarifying the position of the board of directors of Casitas Municipal Water 
District concerning use of lands acquired under the Casitas open space program. 
 
This resolution was developed by the CMWD’s board of directors in 1977 during the USBR 
acquisition of the Teague Watershed (Casitas Open Space).  The purpose of the resolution was to 
specify the intent of CMWD to have watershed lands remain in their present natural condition, and 
the desire to protect the watershed from uses detrimental to water quality.  See the Appendix for 
Resolution No. 77-8. 

 
Watershed Management Ordinance 81-2 
The Casitas MWD enacted Rules and Regulations for the Management of the Charles M. Teague 
Memorial Watershed on June 24, 1981.  This ordinance has been replaced by the USBR Resource 
Management Plan.  
 
Lake Management 
Enhancement, protection, and maintenance of water quality within the Casitas Watershed has always 
been a major goal of the district.  One factor influencing the decision of CMWD to protect water 
quality is that recreational usage of the lake is very high.  CMWD has continued to maintain its 
position on watershed control and management practices, even though the water supply is filtered and 
disinfected.  Routine lake and watershed monitoring includes: bacteria (total coliform and E. coli), 
algae, dissolved oxygen, temperature and turbidity profiles. The aeration system, intake structure, and 
algae control have been important tools used by CMWD for lake management.   
 

Aeration System 
The aeration system prevents the formation of anaerobic waters in those portions of the lake near 
the intake structure, thus enhancing CMWD’s ability to utilize the intake structure effectively.  
The aeration system helps prevent the formation of hydrogen sulfide and manganese, both of 
which can have adverse affects on the water treatment process.   It also helps prevent the recycling 
of phosphorous from the bottom sediments.  Phosphorous can enhance algal growth, causing taste 
and odor problems and filtration issues at the treatment plant. 
 
The aeration system is normally operated continuously from April-November of each year. A new 
aeration system was installed during 2005. 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

32 

Intake 
A major feature of the water supply system at Lake Casitas is the multi-level intake structure 
which provides water to the distribution system, and includes nine hydraulically operated gates 
located at 24 feet vertical intervals. The variable intake structure allows selection of the depth at 
which the best water quality exists for delivery to the distribution system.   While taste and odor 
problems still occur in surface waters on occasion, water quality remains good at depths from 
which water is drawn into the system.  The multi-level intake structure has been a valuable tool for 
avoidance of water affected by algal blooms.  Managing water quality using intake selection is not 
as effective when the lake is mixing, or if algal growth is heavy. 
 
Algal Control 
During spring, summer, and fall, samples are taken at specified locations in the lake and algal 
species are identified and enumerated.  Monitoring is increased if organisms linked to taste, odor, 
or treatment plant problems are identified. If the amount of algae increases to the point where a 
problem is identified, the lake will be treated with an algaecide. A lake treatment using sodium 
carbonate peroxyhydrate was done during the summer of 2010 for algae control.  Copper sulfate 
has not been used for algal treatment since 1999. 
 
Invasive Species (Quagga/Zebra Mussels) 
CMWD has a Quagga/Zebra Mussel early detection program that includes substrate monitoring in 
the lake, an annual underwater survey, and microscopic analysis of plankton tows.   
 

CMWD Emergency Response Plan 
The Emergency Response Plan (ERP) is a comprehensive plan that describes the actions CMWD 
would take in response to various major events such as natural disasters or security problems that can 
damage or disrupt the ability to serve the public potable water.  The ERP is filed at the CMWD’s main 
office. 
 
5.2 COUNTY OF VENTURA 
 
The County of Ventura has several agencies that are involved with the protection of the watershed, 
including the Resource Management Agency, the Public Works Department, and the Ventura County 
Fire Protection Department. 
 
The Resource Management Agency 
The Resource Management Agency has the stated goal of protecting health, safety and welfare through 
administration and enforcement of County ordinances, Board policy, state and federal laws regarding 
land use, and commercial and environmental regulation.  The RMA Division that most directly affects 
the watershed is the Environmental Health division (EHD).  Building & Safety, Code Compliance and 
the Planning Division are involved to a lesser extent. 
 

 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

33 

County of Ventura Environmental Health Individual Sewage Disposal Systems Program: 
At the time of the first Watershed Sanitary Survey in 1996, the Ventura County Critical Watershed 
Ordinance of January 14, 1958 was in effect.  This ordinance regulated the construction, repair and 
alteration of sewage disposal systems in the watershed area and was enforced by the County of 
Ventura EHD.  The ordinance applied to the Casitas Watershed and a portion of the Ventura River 
above Robles Diversion Dam.  The Critical Watershed Ordinance has been superseded and 
overlaid with similar county code rules that are more protective, but it has not been formally 
rescinded at this time. 
 
Currently, the County of Ventura EHD Individual Sewage Disposal Program is responsible for 
protecting public health and the environment from adverse impacts associated with onsite 
wastewater treatment systems (OWTS).  An OWTS is used for the disposal of wastewater from 
structures that do not have access to a public wastewater treatment facility.  The County of 
Ventura EHD carries out this responsibility through review of septic system design proposals and 
criteria; and the inspection of new and existing systems under repair, to determine conformance 
with applicable codes.  Before any person is issued a plumbing permit for original construction, 
alteration, repair or relocation of any sewage disposal system, approval of the proposed sewage 
disposal system by the County of Ventura EHD is required.   The California Health and Safety 
Code requires that the most recent addition of the Uniform Plumbing Code be used as criteria for 
the design and construction of individual sewage disposal systems. 
 
The County of Ventura EHD offers a technical manual, for owners of privately owned and 
maintained sewage disposal systems titled “The Onsite Wastewater Treatment System Technical 
Manual”. It is available on the County of Ventura EHD website.  The Manual provides guidance 
to owners, designers, and installers of onsite wastewater treatment systems, and facilitates 
successful applications for the design, upgrade, and repair of these systems.  The Manual also 
describes procedures and standards necessary to adequately protect public health, safety, and water 
quality, because household wastewater may contain many types of contaminants, such as harmful 
bacteria, viruses, nitrate and chemicals.  As the Manual states, the purpose of an OWTS is to 
provide treatment of wastewater by removing contaminants through physical, biological, and in 
some cases chemical means, in a manner that is protective of human health, safety, and the 
environment. 
 
California is currently in the process of adopting a statewide policy (AB 885) to address the issue 
of OWTS pollution. If county regulations happen to fall short of protecting water quality, the state 
policy works as a back up to protect public health and the environment.  This new policy will 
affect owners of existing septic systems that are adjacent to a nitrate impaired surface water, 
installation of new or replacement OWTS, and existing systems in need of repair.  The policy is 
currently in draft form, and will most likely be adopted sometime before the next Watershed 
Sanitary Survey Update is due. 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

34 

 
County of Ventura Environmental Health Hazardous Materials Program: 
The Ventura County Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) Hazardous Materials Program 
provides regulatory oversight for the following six statewide environmental programs: Hazardous 
Waste, Hazardous Materials Business Plan, California Accidental Release Prevention Program, 
Underground Hazardous Materials Storage Tanks, Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tanks/Spill 
Control and Countermeasure Plans, and Onsite Hazardous Waste Treatment/Tiered Permit. 
 
For the above programs, the CUPA implements State and Federal laws and regulations, county 
ordinance code, and local policies.  Compliance is achieved through routine and follow-up 
inspections, educational guidance, and enforcement actions.  The CUPA also is involved with 
hazardous materials emergency response, investigation of illegal disposal of hazardous waste and 
public complaints. 
 
The County of Ventura EHD requires the recreation area to file a business plan because it stores 
and uses chemicals over certain threshold amounts.  The business plan identifies the amounts, 
types, and locations of hazardous materials, and this information is shared with the fire department 
in case emergency response is needed. The County of Ventura EHD conducts annual inspections 
of the recreation area to verify compliance with the business plan, hazardous waste laws, and 
emergency response regulations.  Also, the County of Ventura EHD inspects the underground 
tanks and their leak alarm systems on an annual basis. The County of Ventura EHD also 
investigates possible cases of illegal disposal of hazardous waste. 

 
County of Ventura Public works Department 
 

County of Ventura Watershed Protection District 
The Public Works Department oversees the Watershed Protection District (WPD). The WPD’s 
mission is “to protect life, property, watercourses, watersheds, and public infrastructure from the 
dangers and damages associated with flood and storm waters”. Goals of the WPD include 
comprehensive long range watershed planning, collaboration with watershed stakeholders, 
administration of adopted regulations and policies and resolutions, responsible and accountable 
use of public resources. 
 
County Building and Safety Division and Code Compliance 
The County Building and Safety Division provides oversight and review on construction projects 
in areas of the watershed that are regulated by the county.  Grading projects require a permit and 
plan review by this agency.  Code compliance handles complaints regarding illegal dwellings. 
 
Planning Division 
The Planning Division regulates the use of land within the unincorporated areas of the county.  
This division issues permits for land uses and structures, enforces permit conditions, and maintains 
consistency with county zoning ordinances, the General Plan and the Ojai Area Plan.  The 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

35 

Planning Division also engages in long range community planning through the Area Plans.  All 
discretionary development (e.g., subdivisions, conditional use permits and private developments) 
in the county must meet criteria for the protection of biological resources, soil stability, and storm 
water quantity and quality including the avoidance of erosion, flooding, fire hazards, and adverse 
impacts on human health. The unincorporated portion of the watershed area is zoned Open Space 
(OS).  According to Sec. 8104-1.1 of the Ventura County Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of this 
zone is to provide for the preservation of natural resources, and public health and safety.  This 
includes watershed areas which require special management or regulation for the protection of 
water quality and water supply. 
 
Scenic Resource Protection Overlay Zone: 
The Ventura County General Plan section 8104-7.1 also designates the watershed around Lake 
Casitas as a Scenic Resource Protection Overlay Zone. The purposes of this zone are: 
(a)   To preserve and protect the visual quality within the view shed of selected county lakes, along 
the county's adopted scenic highways, and at other locations as determined by the Area Plan 
(b)   To minimize development that conflicts with the value of scenic resources 
(c)   To provide notice to landowners and the general public of the location and value of scenic 
resources which are of significance in the county. 
 
The boundary of this area includes the lake and the viewshed extending from the lake to the 
highest surrounding ridgeline. Additionally, a small portion of the Lake Matilija view shed has 
also been designated as a Scenic Resource Protection Zone. Within a Protection Overlay Zone, the 
county can regulate the uses that may adversely affect the area's scenic qualities. The Lake Casitas 
Scenic Resource Protection Overlay Zone encompasses approximately 4,592 acres (excluding 
Lake Casitas). 
 
Any request for significant grading (excavation or fill greater than five feet in height,  a 
cumulative area of 1,000 square feet or greater, or 1,000 sq ft or more of native vegetation 
removal) must be evaluated through the discretionary permit process.   No new use may be 
permitted which could significantly contribute to the degradation or destruction of the scenic 
resource 
 
Ojai Area Plan: 
The CMWD watershed is located within the Ojai Area Plan. This plan specifies the distribution, 
location, types, and intensity of land uses.  This area includes approximately 74,000 acres of 
unincorporated portions of the Ojai Valley and the Ventura River Valley. The plan was reviewed 
by the Ventura Planning Commission, adopted by the Board of Supervisors, and is implemented 
by county staff. The goal of the Ojai Plan, as it relates to water quality is to ensure that water 
which currently meets state standards shall not be degraded and also ensure that water quality 
which does not meet state standards (turbidity) is improved. 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

36 

The plan requires new developments generating sewage in aquifer recharge areas to hook up to 
sewers if available. Existing homes with private waste sewage disposal systems that operate 
improperly, and new developments, shall be required to make necessary modifications or to 
convert to a sewer system if available. The plan specifies that new oil and gas exploration activity, 
and production activity, should not affect the quality or quantity of the present water supply. The 
unincorporated portion of the watershed is closed to all oil and gas exploration. Also, alternatives 
to chemical methods of pest control and fertilization are encouraged. 
 

Ventura County Fire Department (VCFD) 
The VCFD provides fire prevention, fire suppression, fire investigation, a hazardous materials 
response team, emergency medical services rescue, and related emergency services activities within 
the Casitas Open Space portion of the watershed.  The USFS provides fire control and prevention on 
the LPNF portion of the watershed.  The Casitas Open Space portion is served by Battalion No.2 with 
fire stations at the Summit, and the cities of Ojai, Meiners Oaks, and Oak View. 
 
The VCFD requires annual brush clearance around structures in high fire severity zones, and is also 
responsible for reviewing development permits to ensure that an adequate level of fire protection is 
provided.   One method of fire hazard management in Ventura County has been the prescribed burn 
program. This method has not been used in the Lake Casitas Watershed. 
 
Other Fire Protection Agencies 
Fire protection for the Los Padres National Forest area is provided by the USFS. A USFS Station with 
engine companies and a helicopter pad is located on the west side of Lake Casitas. The nearest USFS 
station at Wheeler Gorge is located north of the boundary near Wheeler Springs. There is a mutual aid 
agreement between the county and all other fire services agencies in the county which allows for 
reciprocal aid if necessary. These mutual aid agreements are important in the event a major event 
occurs which requires fire suppression resources in excess of that available from the VCFD.  The 
mutual aid agreement also provides for emergency backup fire protection when the fire protection 
district equipment is out of the station. 
 
5.3 UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (USEPA) 
 
The USEPA works with state and local regulators to maintain drinking water source and finished water 
quality. 
 
Source Water Assessment 
One of the main tools used by the USEPA is the Source Water Assessment Program.  This program 
was developed by the USEPA, but CADPH is required to develop and implement the program.  One of 
the goals of these assessments is to give water utilities and the public the information they need to 
decide how to protect their drinking water sources. 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

37 

Pollution prevention NPDES 
The Water Permits Division within the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Office of Wastewater 
Management leads and manages the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit program in partnership with USEPA and the SWRCB.  The permit program plays an important 
role in minimizing the wastes and pollution load released into receiving bodies. 
 
Vulnerability Assessment (Security of the Watershed and Treatment Facilities) 
The Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002 (Public Law 
107-188) requires public water systems to conduct vulnerability assessments.  Casitas has conducted a 
Vulnerability Assessment (VA) and submitted it to the CADPH and the USEPA.  The purpose of the 
VA is to help water systems evaluate the susceptibility to potential threats and identify corrective 
actions that can reduce or mitigate the risk of serious consequences from adversarial actions.  The VA 
took into account the watershed, water supply, transmission systems, treatment systems, and the risks 
posed to the surrounding communities related to attacks on the water system.  The VA document is 
security sensitive and protected from public dissemination by the USEPA. 
 
Contaminant Monitoring 
The USEPA also develops and implements contaminant monitoring regulations including emerging 
contaminants.  The CADPH implements some of these programs. 
 
5.4 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
According to the CADPH website, “The CADPH's Division of Drinking Water and Environmental 
Management promotes and maintains a physical, chemical, and biological environment that contributes 
positively to health, prevents illness, and assures protection of the public.” 
 
The Northern California and Southern California Field Operations Branches (FOBs) are responsible 
for assuring the delivery of safe drinking water by enforcement of the Safe Drinking Water Act, and 
the regulatory oversight of public water systems.  
 

 The FOB staff performs field inspections, issues operating permits, reviews plans and 
specifications for new facilities, handles enforcement actions for non-compliance, review water 
quality monitoring results, and supports and promotes water system security.  

 The FOB staff are involved in funding infrastructure improvements, and conducting source 
water assessments. 

 The FOB staff work with the USEPA, the SWRCB and RWQCBs, and other parties interested 
in the protection of drinking water supplies. On the local level, FOB staff work with county 
health departments, planning departments, and boards of supervisors. 

 The Technical Programs Branch is responsible for maintaining the scientific expertise of the 
Drinking Water Program. 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

38 

 The Standards and Technology Unit maintains state-of-the-art technology expertise, develops 
monitoring and water quality regulations, and conducts special studies drinking water 
contaminants. 

 The Treatment Technology Unit reviews and evaluates new treatment technologies or 
expansion of operations of existing treatment technologies in drinking water. This section also 
coordinates the Drinking Source Water Assessment Program (DWSAP), and implements and 
ensures compliance of state and some federal regulations. 

 The Treatment Technology Unit reviews and evaluates new treatment technologies or 
expansion of operations of existing treatment technologies in drinking water. This section also 
coordinates the Drinking Source Water Assessment Program (DWSAP), a requirement of the 
Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA).  The Drinking Water Source Assessment Program 
(DWSAP) is a study that defines the land area contributing water to each public water system, 
identifies the major potential sources of contamination that could affect the drinking water 
supply, and then determines how susceptible the public water supply is to this potential 
contamination. Public utilities and citizens can then use the publicly available study results to 
the take actions to reduce potential sources of contamination and protect drinking water”.  The 
Treatment Technology unit also coordinates the Drinking Source Water Assessment Program 
(DWSAP), and implements and ensures compliance of state and some federal regulations. 

 
5.5 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
 
The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Act authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
and the nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards, including the Los Angeles Region to regulate 
water quality in California. The SWRCB and the Regional Board are the agencies primarily 
responsible for protecting the waters of the State, including groundwater, from degradation. 
 
NPDES Program 
 
The SWRCB implements the USEPA's national Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES).  
This program manages many types of urban discharges which may adversely affect water quality.  The 
agency issues permits that require Best Management Practices and monitoring for the prevention of 
pollutants that can be introduced into water bodies. 
 
Basin Plan 
The Ventura River portion of the watershed is regulated by the basin plan for the Los Angeles 
RWCQB adopted during 1994.  The current draft of the plan specifies surface water quality objectives 
that are applicable to Lake Casitas such as color, taste, odor, floating material, suspended material, 
settleable material, oil and grease, biostimulatory substances, sediment, turbidity, pH, dissolved 
oxygen, temperature, toxicity, pesticides, chemical constituents, organics, and radioactivity. 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

39 

5.6 UNITED STATES BUREAU OF RECLAMATION (USBR) 
 
USBR Resource Management Plan 
During 2011, the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) completed a final Environmental 
Impact Statement (EIS) for a Resource Management Plan (RMP) of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  
This area includes the park along with 335 miles of shoreline, approximately 2,700 acres of water 
surface area, 1,200 acres of park land around the lake and 3,500 acres of open space lands north of the 
park.  The open space lands were purchased by USBR to “provide for water quality in Lake Casitas, 
along with the preservation and enhancement of public outdoor recreation, fish and wildlife, and the 
environment”.  The USBR has also purchased privately owned parcels within the Casitas Open Space. 
 
The USBR initiated its preparation of the Resource Management Plan in 2002 by conducting public 
meetings to gather input on the direction of watershed land use.  Three scenarios were formulated, and 
Alternative 2 was selected as the preferred alternative.  The RMP was completed by the USBR through 
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process in cooperation with other agencies including 
CMWD, and the record of decision was signed in April 2011.  Implementing the decision will result in 
the continued operation and maintenance of recreational activities by CMWD and execution of a new 
25 year agreement between the USBR and CMWD for the long-term management of recreation at 
Lake Casitas.  The USBR will manage the Casitas Open Space Area under a future agreement. 
 
The purpose of the RMP as stated in the final EIS is “to provide a program and set of policy guidelines 
necessary to encourage orderly use, development, and management of the lake and the surrounding 
lands”. The RMP proposes recreational uses “that will be compatible with the obligation to operate the 
lake for storage and delivery of high-quality water”. 
 
According to the RMP, “The objective of Alternative 2 is to enhance current recreational uses and 
public access at the park in order to increase recreational opportunities, while protecting natural 
resources with new or modified land and recreation management practices.  These activities propose 
upgrades and improvements for many of the park’s existing facilities and utilities”.  Examples include 
building connectors to the Los Padres National Forest and Ojai Land Conservancy trailheads in the 
Open Space Lands, and expanding boating support by expanding the marina and boat ramp capacity.  
Other infrastructure improvements include allowing camping access to the main island, expanding the 
Water Park, building an amphitheater, and modifying some campsites to be compatible with multiple 
uses.  Park infrastructure improvements are also included in Alternative 2.  These include road repairs, 
relocating and screening the storage area, and improving the park entrance”.  All enhancement actions 
are subject to the limitations of future funding and environmental analysis. 
 
The RMP does not require the implementation of designated recreational usage. Pursuing new 
recreation options depends on public demand, available funding, and the potential for increased public 
benefits and use.  New uses can be discontinued if unforeseen or immitigable problems occur. 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

40 

USBR Fire protection and law enforcement 
Beginning in 2005, the USBR began coordinating law enforcement with the USFS in the Casitas Open 
Space Area (Teague Memorial Watershed at that time).  These two agencies have a Memorandum of 
Understanding for USFS to perform both fire protection and law enforcement on federally owned 
lands.  The District still performs monthly reviews of the watershed to assure water quality aspects of 
the watershed are maintained to standards. 
 
5.7 UNITED STATES FOREST SERVICE (USFS) 
 
The USFS has recently revised its land management plan for the LPNF. Three planning alternatives 
were presented, and Alternative 2 (Enhancement) was the alternative chosen that best balances natural 
resource protection and recreation opportunities. The CMWD provided comments regarding controlled 
burns and the provision of grazing leases in the watershed areas. 
 
USFS Minerals Management 
The USFS LPNF Land Management Plan also covers minerals management.  The goal of the plan is to 
“Administer minerals and energy resources to afford commodities for current and future generations 
commensurate with the need to sustain the long-term health and biological diversity of ecosystems:   
 

 Limit withdrawals from mineral entry in order to maintain opportunities to assess mineral and 
energy resources. 

 Assure long-term access and availability for leasing of oil and gas resources from 
environmentally suitable lands, for regional, statewide, and national energy needs. 

 Use terms and conditions of the operating plan to offset the effects of mining consistent with 
conservation of habitats for threatened, endangered, or sensitive species. 

 Eliminate unapproved and noncompliant minerals operations. 
 Facilitate environmentally and culturally sensitive exploration, development, and production of 

mineral and energy resources on National Forest Service lands open to these activities with the 
planning and management of other resources. 

 Work with California Department of Fish and Game to prohibit suction dredging in areas where 
needed to protect threatened, endangered, proposed, candidate and sensitive species. 

 Work with the USBR to formalize the status of abandoned and idle wells and ancillary facilities 
and the restoration of the land to natural conditions. 

 For approved mining operations within occupied threatened, endangered, proposed, candidate, 
and sensitive species habitat, riparian habitat, or other areas with species of concern, monitor 
mining operations as needed to ensure compliance with plans of operation.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

41 

USFS Livestock Grazing 
The USFS goal for livestock grazing (from the LPNF Land Management Plan) is for grazing areas to 
be maintained and remain sustainable and suitable over the long-term.   
 

 The USFS administers each livestock grazing area to standard within a three-year period. 
Administering a livestock grazing area to standard includes: ensuring compliance with terms 
and conditions of the permit, allotment management plans, annual operating instructions, 
biological opinions, and forest plan standards and guides. 

 The permittees are required to monitor for compliance with the permit standards and 
guidelines. 

 The permittee is required to submit monitoring and allotment management reports to the 
national forest officer in charge when requested. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

42 

SECTION 6 WATER QUALITY 

 
6.1 ROUTINE INORGANIC CHEMICALS 
 
All surface water sources must be sampled yearly for inorganic chemicals.  The chemical analyses of 
Lake Casitas do not indicate any water quality problems except turbidity following periods of high 
runoff.  The turbidity is removed by the treatment process. 
 
Fluoride is not added at the treatment plant, and the fluoride concentration in Lake Casitas from 2006-
2010 averaged 0.3 mg/L; this is well below the 2 mg/L MCL set by the CADPH. 
 
6.2 PHYSICAL QUALITY 
 
CMWD monitors the physical quality (temperature, turbidity, conductivity and pH) of the influent and 
distribution system on a weekly basis.  Odor is monitored at least annually and more frequently as 
necessary.  The physical quality of the reservoir is monitored on an as needed basis.  Sometimes the 
finished water has seasonal taste and odor issues due to algae growth and Lake Turnover.  Casitas 
utilizes the intake structure to find the best quality water during these taste and odor episodes.   Casitas 
also utilizes algaecide treatments, as needed, to reduce algae growth and the associated taste and odor 
or filtration problems. 
 
6.3 NITRATE AND NITRITE 
 
Lake Casitas is on an annual monitoring schedule for nitrates.  Nitrate levels are typically low in the 
lake because of the protected watershed.  The average level in Lake Casitas from 2006-2010 was non- 
detect.  
  
6.4 RADIOACTIVITY 
 
Four consecutive quarters of gross alpha monitoring were completed by August 2004.   Since the 
average of the four quarters of gross alpha analyses was less than 3 pCi/L (picoCuries/liter), only one 
sample for the Lake Casitas source is required every nine years. 
 
The average of four quarters of gross alpha results plus 84% of the gross alpha counting error is less 
than 5 pCi/L, therefore uranium analysis is not required. 
 
Four quarters of Radium 228 sampling were completed for the initial sampling requirements. The 
sample results were non-detect.  Radium 228 is a one time sampling event and no additional 
monitoring will be required. 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

43 

6.5 ASBESTOS 
 
All water systems must sample their sources of supply and the distribution system for asbestos at least 
once every nine years unless a waiver is granted by CADPH.  Lake Casitas was analyzed in 2005, for 
asbestos with non-detectable results.  The next monitoring is due February 2014.  The aggressive index 
of the Lake Casitas source is > 11.5, so monitoring of the distribution system has not been required. 
 
6.6 VOLATILE ORGANIC CHEMICALS 
 
The sampling requirements for volatile organic chemicals (VOCS) are yearly for surface water 
sources. Casitas has been granted a waiver for surface water monitoring and is required to sample the 
surface water source for VOCs every three years. The analyses done during 2006-2010 have been non-
detect. 
 
6.7 SYNTHETIC ORGANIC CHEMICALS 

 
Monitoring for Casitas Reservoir for synthetic organic chemicals (SOCs) has been waived because of a 
history of non-detects. 
 
6.8 UNREGULATED CONTAMINANTS MONITORING RULE (UCMR 1 AND 2) 
 
The Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) requires water systems to monitor for the presence of 
unregulated contaminants. The purpose of this regulation is to collect data to support the USEPA 
decision regarding whether or not to regulate these contaminants. 
 
During 2002 CMWD began UCMR 1 monitoring which included: 4,4-DDE (insecticide), Acetochlor, 
DCPA mono-acid/di-acid degradate, EPTC, Molinate, Terbacil (herbicides), Nitrobenzene, 2,6-
dinitrotoluene,  2,4-dinitrotoluene (explosives), Perchlorate (fuel propellant) and MTBE (fuel octane 
enhancer) with non-detectable results. 
 
During 2008 CMWD began UCMR 2 monitoring which included: 245-HBB, BDE-100, BDE-153, 
BDE-47, BDE-99 (flame retardants); dimethoate (insecticide), terbufos sulfone (insecticide degradate) 
RDX, 1,3-dinitrobenzene and TNT (explosives) with non-detectable results. 
 
6.9 SURFACE WATER TREATMENT RULE 
 
The Surface Water Treatment Rule seeks to prevent waterborne diseases caused by microbial 
contaminants such as viruses, Legionella, and Giardia. These disease-causing microbes are present at 
varying concentrations in most surface waters. The rule requires that water systems filter and disinfect 
water from surface water sources to reduce the occurrence of unsafe levels of these microbes. 
 
The Lake Casitas source water is subject to all aspects of the Surface Water Treatment Rule (SWTR).   



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

44 

 
 Filtered water turbidity is to be less than 0.5 NTU in 95 percent of the samples collected. 
 Monitoring must be done on at least a four-hour basis.   
 The disinfectant concentration entering the distribution system must be at least 0.2 mg/L.   
 The disinfectant residual within the distribution system must be “detectable” in at least 95 

percent of the monthly monitoring samples.   
 Removal and/or inactivation of Giardia cysts must be at least 3.0 logs (99.9 percent). 
 Removal and/or inactivation of enteric viruses must be at least 4.0 logs (99.99 percent). 

 
CMWD is required to achieve certain performance goals set forth by the CADPH in addition to the 
SWTR, because high-rate in-line pressure filtration is considered to be an “alternative” filtration 
technology (the plant can be operated at 12 gpm/sf).  CMWD operates under the guidelines of Water 
Permit No. 04-06-96P.046 issued by CADPH.  The filtration facility has been granted a 2-log credit for 
Giardia removal and a 1-log credit for virus removal, thus the facility must achieve 1-log Giardia 
inactivation and 3-log virus inactivation by disinfection.  Finished water turbidity is monitored with 
continuous on-line turbidimeters at each filter, and at the combined filter effluent.  The requirements 
for the pressure filtration plant as outlined in the water permit and described in the 1998 Summary 
Report. 
 

 The performance turbidity standard is 0.2 NTU or less in 95 percent of the measurements taken 
each month. 

 The turbidity of the filtered water will not exceed 1.0 NTU at any time. 
 The turbidity level of the filtered water will not exceed 0.5 NTU for more than eight 

consecutive hours while the plant is in operation. 
 The plant should be operated to achieve an optimum performance turbidity goal of 0.1 NTU or 

less. 
 When any individual filter is placed back into service, the filtered water turbidity of the filter 

effluent from that filter will not exceed any of the following:  (a) 1.0 NTU at any time, (b) 0.5 
NTU in at least 90 percent of the interruption events during any consecutive 12 month period, 
and (c) 0.2 NTU after the filter has been in operation for 4 hours. 

 Water delivered to the distribution system will contain a disinfectant residual of at least 0.2 
mg/L based on the four-hour or continuous readings but will be enough to meet CT 
requirements continuously. 

 The pressure filter’s filtration rate will not exceed 12.0 gpm/sf, and all available filters will be 
utilized when any filter exceeds 6 gpm/sf. 

 Optimum coagulation will be maintained at all times. 
 
SWTR Turbidity Requirements 
CMWD has consistently met the aforementioned requirements during 2006-2011.  On occasion, there 
were elevated turbidities as a result of power interruptions, chemical feed deviations, higher plant flow 
rates, or limited filters in service during repairs.  These events did not cause a violation of the 
prescribed performance standards. 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

45 

SWTR Disinfection Requirements 
Free chlorine is applied upstream of the pressure filters at a dose of approximately 3.0-5.0 mg/L in 
order to meet the chlorine demand.  The pre-filter chlorine dose also acts as a filter aid.  A chlorine 
dose of approximately 1.0-3.0 mg/L is applied after filtration.   The approximate range of the chlorine 
residual in the water leaving the plant is 4.0–4.7 mg/L.   In 2003 CMWD changed the distribution 
system disinfectant from free chlorine to chloramines in order to reduce the levels of disinfection by-
products.  To accomplish this, ammonia is added at a  4.5:1 chlorine to ammonia ratio after CT 
(concentration of free chlorine concentration multiplied by contact time) requirements are met. To 
prevent nitrification, CMWD has installed mixers in the reservoirs and flushes the distribution system 
on a regular basis. The main reservoirs are monitored on a monthly basis for possible nitrification.  
There have been no nitrification events during 2006-2011. 
 
CT values are calculated daily and logged into a monthly monitoring report.  CT ratios for the plant are 
typically well above 1.0, thus the plant is currently achieving more disinfection than is required by the 
current regulations. 
 
6.10 INTERIM ENHANCED SURFACE WATER TREATMENT RULE (IESWTR) 
 
This IESWTR amends the Surface Water Treatment Rule to strengthen microbial protection.  This 
regulation was adopted and implemented during 2002.  The rule includes treatment requirements for 
Cryptosporidium while continuing to meet existing requirements for Giardia and viruses. 
Simultaneous compliance with the Stage 1 Disinfection By-Product Rule is required. 
This rule, with more stringent turbidity performance criteria and individual filter monitoring 
requirements, is designed to optimize treatment reliability and to enhance physical removal efficiencies 
to minimize the Cryptosporidium levels in finished water. Turbidity monitoring is required for 
combined filter effluent at least every four hours, and continuous monitoring is required for individual 
filters. In addition, this rule includes disinfection profiling and benchmarking to assure continued 
levels of microbial protection while facilities take the necessary steps to comply with new DBP 
standards. This rule requires water systems to conduct watershed sanitary surveys. 
 
6.11 LONG TERM 2 ENHANCED SURFACE WATER TREATMENT RULE (LT2ESWTR) 
 
The purpose of the LT2 rule is to reduce illnesses linked with Cryptosporidium (and other 
microorganisms) by requiring high risk systems to add additional treatment processes. This rule also 
contains provisions to reduce risks from uncovered finished water reservoirs (CMWD finished water 
reservoirs are all covered) and to ensure that water systems maintain microbial protection when trying 
to meet the requirements of the D/DBPR. 
 
The LT2 rule established categories for risk classification based on two full years of data collection of 
E.coli, turbidity, and Cryptosporidium.  Water systems with poor source water quality were required to 
increase Cryptosporidium removal/inactivation.  Watershed protection, pretreatment methods, and 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

46 

improved treatment processes were the options available for achieving the increased levels of removal 
or disinfection.   
 
During 2006 CMWD submitted a grandfathered Cryptosporidium data package to CADPH, and a letter 
of acceptance was sent to CMWD during January of 2007.  CMWD qualified for the lowest risk 
category (Bin 1), therefore no additional treatment processes are required.  CMWD continues to 
monitor Cryptosporidium and Giardia, and has had very infrequent detections because of successful 
watershed protection policies.  CMWD will be required to monitor again in 2015, therefore it is 
important to continue appropriate watershed protection measures. 
 
6.12 LEAD AND COPPER RULE 
 
Lead and copper enter drinking water primarily through plumbing materials.  In 1991 the EPA 
published the Lead and Copper Rule.  The rule requires monitoring drinking water through a customer 
tap sampling program.  If lead concentrations exceed action levels of 15 ug/L for lead or 1.3 mg/L for 
copper in more than 10% of customer taps sampled, actions must be undertaken to control corrosion. 
 
Prior to 2006, CMWD exceeded the action level for copper.  From June 2004- July 2008 CMWD 
began a phased corrosion control study using a 30% Ortho and 70% Poly Phosphate blend.  The study 
resulted in a corrosion control monitoring plan which specifies the orthophosphate levels necessary in 
the distribution system for optimal corrosion control levels.  Subsequent copper and lead sample sets 
have been below the action level, proving the effectiveness of the addition of ortho/poly phosphate for 
corrosion control. 
 
During 2009 CMWD received a Water Permit Amendment from CADPH for the addition of 
orthophosphate/polyphosphate as a treatment chemical for corrosion control in order to comply with 
the copper action level at consumers’ taps. 
 
CMWD has never exceeded the Action Level for lead. 
 
6.13 TOTAL COLIFORM RULE 
 
The Total Coliform Rule (TCR) requires testing and sets a Maximum Contamination Level (MCL) for 
the presence of total coliform bacteria in dinking water.  The presence of coliforms indicates that there 
may be disease-causing agents in the water such as bacteria, parasites, and viruses.  All CMWD 
compliance samples have been negative for the presence of total coliforms and E. coli in the last five 
years.  The sample siting plan is reviewed annually by CMWD and was updated in 2006. 
 
 6.14 CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT (CCR) 
 
The preparation and distribution of the CCR is required by the State of California.  CMWD distributes 
its annual CCR to the customers by July 1 of each year. 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

47 

 
6.15 DISINFECTION BY-PRODUCTS  
 
Disinfectants/Disinfection By-Products Rule – Stage 1 
CMWD changed to chloramines during November through December of 2002, and has since 
continuously complied with the Stage 1 D/DBP MCL of 80 ug/L (TTHM) and 60 ug/L (HAA5). Also, 
sampling results for the Stage 1 D/DBP Rule Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL) for free 
chlorine and chloramine residuals, have been below the maximum residual disinfectant level of 4.0 
mg/L. 
 
CMWD has complied with the Stage 1 D/DBP MCL of 80 ug/L (TTHM) and 60 ug/L (HAA5) 
continuously since changing the distribution system disinfectant from chlorine to chloramines in 2002 . 
Also, sampling results for the Stage 1 Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL) for chloramine 
residuals have been below the 4.0 mg/L limit. 
 
Disinfectants/Disinfection By-Products Rule - Stage 2 
USEPA published the Stage 2 DBPR during fall of 2005.  This rule is designed to reduce disinfection 
by-products occurrence peaks in the distribution system.  An Initial Distribution System Evaluation 
(IDSE) was required for the selection of new compliance monitoring sample points that accurately 
represent potentially high TTHM/HAA levels.  CMWD completed the required year of bi-monthly 
IDSE monitoring and submitted the report to CADPH during 2008.  A letter of approval from CADPH 
was received by CMWD during 2009.  Stage 2 sampling begins during 2012, and the results from the 
IDSE indicate CMWD will meet the new requirement of calculating running annual averages at each 
individual sample site. The averages must be less than 80 ug/L for TTHMs, and less than 60 ug/L for 
HAA5s.   
 
See Table 3 for monitoring results for TTHMs and HAA5s since 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

48 

TABLE 3- Monitoring Results for TTHM and HAA5 
 

 

 TTHM ug/L HAA5 ug/L 

Sampling Date Running Annual Average Running Annual Average 
February 2006 52.5 33 
May 2006 52.8 36 
August 2006 50.5 39 
November 2006 47.5 37 
February 2007 46.2 37 
May 2007 42.0 29 
August 2007 39.5 24 
November 2007 35.5 24 
February 2008 36.2 24 
May 2008 35.4 24 
August 2008 35.3 21 
November 2008 36.9 14 
February 2009 33.9 8 
May 2009 33.0 11 
August 2009 32.5 14 
November 2009 31.1 14 
February 2010 32.0 18 
May 2010 31.9 19 
August 2010 31.3 19 
November 2010 32.7 23 

 
6.16 ARSENIC 
 
Arsenic is a naturally occurring substance that can be found rock formations, soil, surface water, and 
groundwater. The USEPA finalized the new drinking water standard at 10ug/L for arsenic in 
September of 2001.  California's arsenic MCL of 10µg/L became effective in 2008. From 2006-2011, 
the arsenic levels in Lake Casitas have ranged from non-detect (the detection limit is 2 ug/L) to 2.0 
ug/L.  CMWD is in compliance with the federal and state arsenic MCLs. 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

49 

6.17 RADON 
 
The USEPA proposal for the radon regulation may be as low as 300 p/Ci L, depending on whether the 
State adopts a program to reduce radon in the air (indoors).  If the state adopts the air reduction 
program the level may be as high as 4000 pCi/L.  The radon rule was scheduled to be finalized in 
2001, but it was sent back to the USEPA for review and possible revision, and is still in the process of 
being reviewed. 
 
The radon rule is not expected to impact CMWD.  Levels in the lake water have been non-detectable.  
Levels in Mira Monte Well have been detectable, but that water is blended at a ratio that makes levels 
much lower than the proposed more stringent MCL. 
 
6.18 CHROMIUM VI 
 
On July 27, 2011, the California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 
(OEHHA) established a public health goal (PHG) for chromium VI (hexavalent chromium) of 0.02 
µg/L.  The PHG will contribute to CADPH's development of a primary drinking water standard  MCL 
that is specific for chromium VI.  PHGs are contaminant concentrations that do not pose a significant 
risk to health.  CADPH is required to establish the MCL at a level as close the PHG as is technically 
and economically feasible.  During 1999, many water systems began sampling for chromium VI and 
CADPH made the sampling required for all vulnerable systems.  The sampling results from Lake 
Casitas were non-detect for chromium VI. 
 
6.19 PERCHLORATE 
 
Perchlorate is used as a propellant for rockets, missiles, and fireworks; and for the production of 
matches, flares, pyrotechnics, ordnance, and explosives.  CADPH adopted the current perchlorate 
MCL of 6 ug/L during 2007.  Lake Casitas has been protected from all of the above sources of 
perchlorate, and annual monitoring results have been non-detect. 
 
6.20 SUPPLEMENTARY WATERSHED SAMPLING 
 
CMWD samples the watershed for total coliforms and E. coli on a monthly basis.  Sample stations 
include six locations from Lake Casitas, four locations from Santa Ana Creek, one location from the 
Ventura River, and one location from Coyote Creek.  Prior to 2008 CMWD sampled for total and fecal 
coliforms using the MTF method.  During 2008 CMWD changed to the enzyme substrate test for total 
coliforms and E. Coli. 
 
See table 4 for total coliform and E. coli monitoring results from 2008-2010 

 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

50 

Table 4- Total Coliform and E. coli Monitoring Results 
 

Year Total Coliform mg/L E. coli mg/L 
 Max Min Avg Max Min Avg 

2008 >2420 10 721 2 0 0 
2009 >2420 8 25 26 0 2 
2010 3106 0 1048 68 0 2 

 
Glyphosate 
The Ventura County Arundo Task force has been involved in the removal of Arundo donax from the 
Ventura River watershed by using glyphosate. The Watershed Protection District has been monitoring 
for glyphosate during this process.   Results of the glyphosate monitoring have been non-detect. 
 
Tributary Sampling 
CMWD has collected initial baseline sampling data of the Lake Casitas tributaries for inorganic 
compounds, nitrogen, phosphorous and turbidity.  The goal is to establish a relationship between 
Ventura River flow rate and possible contaminants, and extrapolate possible water quality impacts if 
the silt-laden water is diverted into Lake Casitas when the Matilija Dam is either lowered or removed.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

51 

SECTION 7 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

7.1 CONCLUSIONS: 
 
1.  The Lake Casitas Watershed continues to not be impacted by public or private waste disposal 
systems. 
 
2.  The Casitas Lake Recreation Area continues to operate in such a manner that it poses no threat to 
the quality of the water supply. 
 
3.  Areas on the watershed where there is grazing or penning of animals and livestock continue to be 
monitored on a regular basis. 
 
4.  Mining, oil drilling, and logging pose no threat to the safety of the water supply at this time. 
 
5.  Body contact sports continue to be prohibited at Lake Casitas. 
 
6.  The limited access to the Lake Casitas Watershed by the United States Forest Service effectively 
helps prevent illegal dumping of hazardous and solid waste on the watershed. 
 
7.  CMWD has provided finished water in compliance with all of the current regulations. 
 
8.   The use of pesticides and herbicides on the Lake Casitas Watershed is minimal. 
 
9.  Construction projects on the watershed must be reviewed by the Ventura County Land 
Development Department.  Best management practices to prevent erosion are included as part of the 
permit process. 
 
10. During 2002 CMWD changed the distribution system disinfection method from free chlorine to 
chloramines in order to meet the Stage-l regulations.   The monitoring results of the IDSE indicate that 
CMWD will comply with the Stage 2 rule. 
  
11.  CMWD completed the corrosion control study and has received the permit amendment.  The 
permanent corrosion control facility is in the capital budget for 2011-2012.  
 
12. During 2006 CMWD submitted a grandfathered Cryptosporidium data package to CADPH and a 
letter of acceptance was sent during January of 2007.  CMWD qualified for the lowest risk category 
(Bin 1), therefore no additional treatment processes are required.  CMWD will be required to monitor 
again in 2015, therefore it is important to continue current watershed protection measures in order to 
avoid costly treatment method additions. 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

52 

13. CMWD completed the IDSE monitoring and submitted a report to CADPH during 2008.  A letter 
of approval from CADPH was received by CMWD during 2009.  Stage 2 sampling begins during 
2012, and the results from the IDSE indicate CMWD will meet the Stage-2 D/DBPR requirements. 
 
14.  CMWD has made progress with watershed protection through the removal of homes by the 
Bureau of Reclamation in coordination with the US Forest Service. 
 
7.2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.  Routinely check the Ventura County Environmental Health website for private waste disposal 
systems permits in order to keep track of development in watershed area. 
 
2.  Routinely check available regulatory websites for permits or information on hazardous materials, 
hazardous wastes, and leaking underground storage tanks in the watershed area. 
 
3.  Continue to be monitor areas on the watershed where there is grazing or penning of animals and 
livestock.  Continue to track progress of the BMPs implemented by the property owner with the 
Environmental Quality Incentives Program cost share from the National Resource Conservation 
Service. 
 
4. Routinely request and analyze a Pesticide Use Report from the County Agricultural Commission on 
pesticide/herbicide use in watershed.  
 
5.  Oppose mining leases in the watershed. Continue to encourage the US Forest Service to keep 
mining leases out of Casitas Reservoir Watershed area, and notify to CMWD if there is any interest in 
mining. 
 
6. Determine the jurisdiction of building/grading permits of private landholdings within USFS lands. 
 
7. Continue to monitor and participate in the decommissioning process of Matilija Dam.  Continue to 
monitor watershed for baseline levels of contaminants that could be harmful to the water supply. 
 
9. Continue dialogue with Los Angeles RWQCB regarding the notice of violation of waste discharge 
requirements at the USFS station near the lake. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

53 

REFERENCES 

Document References 
 
United States Department of the Interior Bureau of Reclamation.  2010.  Lake Casitas Final Resource 
Management Plan/Environmental Impact Statement 
 
Tim Gannon & Associates.  1995.  Casitas Municipal Water District Watershed Sanitary Survey 
 
Casitas Municipal Water District.  2001.  Sanitary Survey Update 
 
Casitas Municipal Water District.  2006.  Sanitary Survey Update 
 
United States Department of Agriculture Forest Service.  2005.  Revised Land Management Plans and 
Final Environmental Impact Statement 
 
CMWD 2010 Urban Water Management Plan 
 
2010 CADPH Inspection Report 
 
USDA Revised Land Management Plans  
 
CMWD Annual Hydrology Reports 2006-2010  
(1) Historical Temperatures at CMWD Casitas Reservoir Recreation Area Weather Station 
(2) Historical Temperatures at CMWD Casitas Dam Weather Station 
(3) Historical Rainfall at Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
(4) Historical Rainfall Casitas Municipal Water District 
(5) Casitas Reservoir Inventory Annual Summary 
(6) Robles-Casitas Canal Monthly Diversions 
 
Website References 
CMWD Ordinance No. 10-01  An Ordinance of the Casitas Municipal Water District  Establishing 
Rules and Regulations for the Public use of the Recreation Area   
(http://drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/267897550Ord%2010-
01%20Recreation%20Rules%20and%20Regs.pdf) 
 
CMWD Application for Filming Commercials at LCRA 
(http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/211628082FILMAPPLICATION2010.pdf) 
 
CMWD Resolution No. 08-08 Resolution of the Board of Directors of CMWD limiting access to Lake 
Casitas in order to Control Invasive Species 
(http://www.drivecms.com/uploads/casitaswater.org/FinalQuaggaResolution.pdf) 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

54 

Ventura County Environmental Health Department.  2011  
(http://www.ventura.org/rma/envhealth/EHD_FACILITY_LISTS/liquid_waste_sites.pdf ) 
 
Ventura County Environmental Health Department.  2011   
(http://www.ventura.org/rma/envhealth/programs/tech_serv/isds/index.html) 
 
Ventura County Watershed Protection District 
(http://portal.countyofventura.org/portal/page/portal/PUBLIC_WORKS/Watershed_Protection_Distric
t) 
 
Ventura County Agricultural Commissioner 
(http://portal.countyofventura.org/portal/page/portal/AgCommissioner) 
 
USEPA 
(http://water.epa.gov/drink/) 
 
California Department of Public Health 
(http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/Pages/DWP.aspx) 
 
State Water Resources Control Board 
(http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/) 
 
State Water Resources Control Board Los Angeles Region 
(http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/rwqcb4/) 
 
Personal Communications 
Bruce Smith, Ventura Co Planning Division (805) 654-2497 
 
Edelynn Ledoux , County of Ventura Office of Agriculture Commissioner (805) 933-2926 x 247 
 
Darrell Siegrist, County of Ventura EHD (805) 648-9248 
 
Bill Nash, Office of Public Information Ventura Co Fire Dept. (805) 389-9746 
 
Evaline Mutkowska, County of Ventura WPD (805) 645-1382 
 
Dr Eric Wu, SRWQCB (213) 576-6683 
 
Jonathon Yonni Schwartz, USFS, Ojai CA (805) 646-4348 
 
Irwin Fox Fernandez USFS, Ojai CA (805) 646-4348 
 



  C M W D  2 0 1 1  W A T E R S H E D  S A N I T A R Y  S U R V E Y  

 

55 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Casitas Municipal Water District
Monthly Cost Analysis
2011/2012
10/06/2011

Marzula & Operation Fisheries Project Name Cost of the
Marzula  of Robles Fish Passage Fish Passage

11-5-21-5049-12 11-5-??-????-14 11-5-28-50??-??

2003/2004 0.00 132,143.20 6,066.93
2004/2005 0.00 298,006.35 39,124.63 8,079,888.06
2005/2006 274,270.75 144,052.92 93,406.52 0.00
2006/2007 194,409.73 110,707.78 188,651.75 114,790.04
2007/2008 21,111.90 117,299.80 272,644.56 0.00
2008/2009 1,207.75 88,201.00 307,739.00 0.00
2009/2010 216,797.47 124,874.54 342,756.94 0.00
2010/2011 169,932.80 148,506.23 373,535.60

Expenditures
July 691.67 5,316.70 21,434.00

August 0.00 2,986.95 24,849.61

September 0.00 14,252.92 25,287.85

October

November

December

January

Feburary Less: Grants
CA Coastal Conservancy -1,750,000.00

March CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,500,000.00
CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,000,000.00

April Pacific States Marine -8,988.86
    (Timber Debris Fence)

May Pacific States Marine -18,980.00
    (Vaki Shroud)

June

Total Cost YTD 691.67 22,556.57 71,571.46 Total Cost TD    8,194,678.10

Less: Grant Funding    -4,277,968.86

Total Project Cost 878,422.07 1,186,348.39 1,695,497.39 Total Project Cost   3,916,709.24

Total: Operation of Robles, Fisheries and Fish Passage 6,798,555.02

Prepared by dcollin 10/06/2011 Page 1



 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  October 4, 2011  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report August 2011 
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations for August 2011:   
 

 August 2010 August 2011 July 2011 
Visitor Days 97,176 86,528 128,936 
Camps 9,002 8,285 11,244 
Cars 24,294 21,632 32,234 
Boats 349 427 614 
Kayaks & Canoes 7 9 10 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2010/2011 211,932
2011/2012 215,464
% Change 1.667

 
Activities and Events 
Astronomy Nights were held August 6 with over 100 in attendance and August 13 with over 20 participants. 
The Jr. Explorer program was held August 20 with 150 and August 21 with 40. The Ojai Rotary and Red Hat 
Ladies Club participated in a talk at Santa Ana Launch Ramp on August 11 where 25 attended. The movie The 
Great Outdoors was shown for free on August 27, about 20 -25 people were in attendance.   
 
Boating 
There were 14 cables sold for new inspections, 10 vessel re-inspections, and 679 boats were retagged. 
Twelve boats failed the first inspection.   Shoreline fishing at night was held August 11, 12 and 13.  Moonlight 
Fishing was held August 20 and 24 boats participated. Angler’s Choice held a night fishing tournament on 
August 13 and 20 boats participated.     
 
PSO and APSO staff are continuing to collect data for the creel survey and an opinion survey the first week of 
each month. The data collected is analyzed by Scott Lewis and will be used in the Fisheries Management Plan.   
 
Revenue Reporting 
The figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the respective month 
(operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance 
Manager.  



0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

FY 10/11 597,378 475,594 213,568 140,193 115,366 102,686 188,851 173,107 231,315 298,909 328,936 420,623

FY 11/12 667,535 453,210

July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 

 
Incidents  
Reportable incidents that occurred in the Recreation Area involving calls for emergency service include:  
 Serious dog bite on August 4, report of a handbag theft at the Water Adventure on August 4, DUI arrest on 
August 6, an unresponsive minor (possibly alcohol related) August 6, noise complaint in Campground G August 7, 
bicycle accident August 9, Cortez Patrol Boat vandalism August 10, erratic behavior/possible mental illness of customer 
August 10, Pac Angler Patrol Boat vandalism August 18, possible diabetic emergency August 19, possible heat 
exhaustion August 24, an individual collapsed at the Park Store August 24, possible stolen vehicle August 25, fall down 
cliff at Campground O August 27, and a diabetic emergency August 27.   
 
Other notable incidents include:  
 A sunken vessel on August 14.  The vessel’s exact location remains unknown.  Our sonar shows an object in 
149 feet of water which may be the vessel.  Staff continue to monitor the area for signs of contamination, and none has 
been identified to date.   
 
 The Water Adventure had to close early on August 22 due to water clarity issues probably related to extreme air 
temperature and excessive sunscreen lotion. Body contact in the lake totaled 24, with three citations issued.  This figure 
is down considerably from last month due in part to increased patrol of Deep Cat and signage placement at O 
Campground.     
 
 
  

 2



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 6, 2011 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Ojai FLOW request of the District to acquire the Golden State Water Company’s Ojai 

Water System 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive the information that pertains to the Ojai FLOW 
request of the District to acquire the Golden State Water Company’s Ojai water system.   
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

1. Customers of Golden State Water Company, Ojai CA, April 13, 2011, letter by Richard H. Hajas. 
 
2. “An Analysis of the Financial Feasibility of Providing Lower Cost Water Service to the Ojai 

Service Area of Golden State Water Company”.  March 20, 2011.  Richard H. Hajas. 
 

3. “Stop the Golden State Water Rip-off!”  March 2011.  Ojai FLOW. 
 

4. Petition to Replace Golden State Water Company with Casitas Municipal Water District as the 
Ojai Area Water Purveyor.  Ojai FLOW. 

 
5. Submittal of Petitions Collected by Ojai Flow.  May 23, 2011.  Ojai FLOW. 

 
6. “Ojai FLOW Newsletter ---- Call to Action”.  July 23, 2011.  Ojai FLOW. 

 
7. Ordinance No. 382.  City of Ojai’s franchise agreement with Southern California Water Company. 

May 1967.  City of Ojai. 
 

8. City of Ojai Administrative Report and Resolution No. 11-22 Supporting the Efforts of Ojai 
FLOW (Friends of Locally Owned Water).  April 26, 2011.  Steve McClary. 

 
9. Resolution #10-11-36 in Support of the Efforts of Ojai FLOW (Friends of Locally Owned Water). 

May 10, 2011.  Board of Education, Ojai Unified School District. 
 

10. Ojai FLOW Email on Water Bill of Bob Boyd.  Provided by Ojai FLOW. July 25, 2011. 
 

11. Letter to the California Public Utilities Commission, Public Advisor’s Office.  “Protest of Golden 
State Water Company July 21, 2011 Application No. 11-07-XXX for Ojai CA. Service Area”.  
July 30, 2011.  Ojai FLOW. 

 
12. “Presentation to Casitas Municipal Water District”.  August 17, 2011.  Golden State Water 

Company. 
 



13. Joe A. Conner, Biographical Information.  Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC. 
 
14. Letter to the California Public Utilities Commission, Public Advisor’s Office.  “Protest of Golden 

State Water Company July 21, 2011 Application No. 11-07-XXX for Ojai CA. Service Area”.  
September 8, 2011.  Supervisor Steve Bennett. 

 
15. Reply Brief of the Division of Ratepayer Advocates.  Before the Public Utilities Commission of 

the State of California.  Application 10-01-009.  Filed 08-13-10.  Peter V. Allen, Staff Counsel. 
 

16. Letter to the Ojai City Council from Golden State Water Company, Ken Petersen, P.E., Coastal 
District Manager.  September 13, 2011. 

 
17. Letter to the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors.  “California American Water - - Felton 

Water Facility”.  April 18, 2005.  David W. Skinner. 
 

18. California American Water Company, Felton District Water System.  April 26, 2005 Resolution 
Hearing.  Response to April 18, 2005, Letter from David W. Skinner.  Eminent domain issues.  
Herman H. Fitzgerald. 

 
19. Apple Valley Blue Ribbon Water Committee Agenda, August 18, 2011, and Minutes from the 

June 13, 2011 meeting.  Town of Apple Valley. 
 

20. “Update of Feasibility Analysis of Acquisition of the Apple Valley Ranchos Water System.  Final 
Report”.  July 2011.  Bartle Wells Associates. 

 
21. “Can the city take over the water system from Cal Water?”  News Article by Doug Hoagland.  

Selma Enterprise.  April 27, 2011. 
 

22. “Eminent Domain, Be Aware of the Facts.”  American Water. 
 

23. California American Water letter, December 7, 2006, Larkfield-Wikiup Water System acquisition 
by Sonoma county Water District. 

 
24. Water Solutions.  “Case 19:  The Fight for Public Water In Felton, California”.  Our Water 

Commons.  2010 Forum Organizing Project/On the Commons. 
 
 
 
 
  







 
 

 

An Analysis of the Financial Feasibility of 
Providing Lower Cost Water Service to 

the Ojai Service Area of Golden State 
Water Company 

 
 

Sandy 

 

RHH 

March 20, 2011 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 2 of 57 
 

References                                                                                                                                                                 32 
 
Exhibits                                                                                                                                                                       33 
 
 

 

Ojai, California   93023 
 
 
 

Table Of Contents 
 
 

                                                                                                                              Page 
 
 
Summary                                                                                                                                                                   3 
 
Issue and Introduction                                                                                                                                            5 
 
Definitions                                                                                                                                                                 6 
  
Background on Casitas                                                                                                                                            7 
 
Background on Golden State                                                                                                                                  8 
 
Water Rates                                                                                                                                                               9 
 
Cost of Acquisition                                                                                                                                                  13 
 
Impacts to Current Casitas Rate Payers                                                                                                               17 
 
Affordability of Acquisition                                                                                                                                    20 
 
Alternative Funding Methods                                                                                                                                21 
 
Projected Future Costs of Water Service                                                                                                             26 
 
Margin Of Error                                                                                                                                                        28 
 
Conclusion                                                                                                                                                                30 
 
Acknowledgments                                                                                                                                                   31 
                         



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 3 of 57 
 

 

 

 

I. Summary 
 

Golden State Water Company (GOLDEN STATE) provides water service to the residents of Ojai and has 

historically charged higher rates than the water service agencies in the surrounding area.  In 2008 

GOLDEN STATE increased its water rates by 34.9%.  GOLDEN STATE now claims that the water system is 

in poor condition requiring a large capital investment over the next 20 years.  GOLDEN STATE intends to 

pay for a $27.8 million capital improvement plan through even higher water rates.  In January 2011 

GOLDEN STATE implemented another rate increase of 26.2%.  The issue evaluated in this analysis is can 

water service of equal or better quality than GOLDEN STATE be provided to the community of Ojai at a 

lower cost. 

 

GOLDEN STATE’s service area is all within the boundaries of the Casitas Municipal Water District 

(CASITAS).   The residents of Ojai have historically paid property taxes to CASITAS and have indirectly 

purchased supplemental CASITAS water through GOLDEN STATE.  CASITAS has historically operated a 

much larger water system than GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS’s water rates are less than one-half 

GOLDEN STATE rates.  If CASITAS water rates are applied to water sales in GOLDEN STATE’s Ojai service 

area the residents would collectively save $3.14 million per year, based on the current rates of both 

organizations.   

 

The replacement of GOLDEN STATE with CASITAS would require the purchase of GOLDEN STATE’s water 

system through a negotiated sale or eminent domain.  The estimated cost of acquisition is $17.0 to 

$25.0 million including legal expenses.  The range is driven by how long acquisition will take and how 

much the net value of GOLDEN STATE’s water system changes as it implements capital improvements. 

Capital will be needed for improvements to the Ojai water system regardless of which organization 

operates the system.  The estimated capital needed to complete the GOLDEN STATE master plan by 

CASITAS, following acquisition, ranges from $15.0 to $24.0 million.  As GOLDEN STATE implements the 

master plan less capital will be required by CASITAS. 

 

The Ojai water service area can afford to spend as much as $3.14 million dollars per year, the difference 

between GOLDEN STATE rates and CASITAS, to acquire GOLDEN STATE.  The $3.14 million dollars per 

year can be used to service the debt on various types of municipal bonds to raise needed capital. The 

debt service on the bonds can be paid through property taxes or through a surcharge on water use.  

Although repayment through property taxes offers some advantages it is very difficult to equitably 

allocate the costs on property.  The alternative of applying a surcharge seems the most equitable 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 4 of 57 
 

method of financing because the burden of debt repayment will be directly related to water 

consumption.  Those using little water will pay less and efforts to conserve water will be rewarded. 

 

The surcharge also offers flexibility in financing the acquisition.  A combination of debt to meet 

immediate capital requirements, along with a long-term revenue stream to finance “pay-as-you-go” 

capital improvements, offers time to evaluate the water system’s needs and build financial reserves to 

address future capital requirements.  In the worst case scenario Revenue Bonds for as much as $26.0 

million would finance the purchase of GOLDEN STATE, reimburse CASITAS for the legal costs of 

acquisition, and provide $1.0 million for immediate system integration measures.  A surcharge of $2.50 

per CCF of water would cover the debt service on the $26.0 million bonds and provide a revenue stream 

of $750,000 to $1,300,000 per year for up to 30 years to fund a “pay-as-you-go” capital improvement 

plan.  

 

A surcharge of $2.50 per CCF on all water use would finance the acquisition of GOLDEN STATE and 

provide an immediate savings of $1.0 million per year to the Ojai residents.  The average or “typical 

customer” in the Ojai service area has a 5/8 inch meter and uses 26 CCF of water very two months.  The 

“typical customer’s” bimonthly water bill in 2011 from GOLDEN STATE is $151.14.  With the same 

service from CASITAS - including a $2.50 per CCF surcharge - the “typical customer’s” bill would be 

$127.50, an annual savings of $141.00.  It is projected that the savings will be $1500.00 per year by 

2025. 

 

The acquisition of GOLDEN STATE would not burden CASITAS’s current ratepayers with an unfunded 

liability.  There would be no net increase in water demand because the Ojai service area uses local 

groundwater and has historically used supplemental water from Casitas.  The acquisition of GOLDEN 

STATE would increase CASITAS’s revenues beyond the cost to operate the Ojai system.  Capital to 

address the majority of unresolved deficiencies in the Ojai system infrastructure are included in the 

funds to be collected through the water surcharge.  Within approximately 18-20 years operating 

revenues from the Ojai service area would become an asset that will reduce the financial burden on all 

CASITAS’s current rate payers. 

 

It is feasible to provide water service of equal or better quality than GOLDEN STATE to the community of 

Ojai at a lower cost.  The Ojai service area can generate a savings of $3.14 million per year by the 

acquisition of the GOLDEN STATE water system.  The potential saving is more than adequate to fund the 

up-front capital requirements of acquisition through the sale of Revenue Bonds and to generate a long-

term revenue stream to address system improvements.  With implementation of a $2.50 per CCF 

surcharge on water use Ojai residents will realize an initial annual savings of nearly $1.0 million and a 

projected savings of $3.48 million per year by 2025. 

 

The following are the details of this analysis. 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 5 of 57 
 

 

 

 

II. ISSUE 

The residents of the City of Ojai are provided water service by Golden State Water Company (GOLDEN 

STATE).  In 2008 GOLDEN STATE increased its rates by 34.9%.  In October 2010 GOLDEN STATE again 

increased its rates by approximately 4.8% (PUC Sept. 2010).  On November 16, 2010 GOLDEN STATE was 

granted approval by the California Public Utilities Commission (PUC) to increase its rates by 26.2% in 

2011 (PUC November 2010).  GOLDEN STATE also applied for an increase in 2012 (GOLDEN STATE 

January 2010).   The rational for these increases is GOLDEN STATE’s claim that the water system is in 

poor condition requiring extensive capital investment.  GOLDEN STATE’s 2010 report to the PUC 

describes the need for $27.7 million in capital projects over the next 20 years (GOLDEN STATE Aug 

2010).  GOLDEN STATE will seek to recover this capital, and a rate of return of 8% or more, from on-

going increases in water rates.  The residents of Ojai already pay more than twice as much for water as 

the surrounding communities. 

Can water service of equal or better quality than GOLDEN STATE be provided to the community of Ojai 

at a lower cost? 

 

III. INTRODUCTION 

This report is intended to evaluate the feasibility of Casitas Municipal Water District (CASITAS) acquiring, 

operating, and maintaining the water service system in Ojai; and providing that service at a lower cost 

than GOLDEN STATE.  The focus of this analysis is on the financial feasibility.  The legal feasibility is not 

evaluated here and will require review by those experts in the field.  The quality of GOLDEN STATE 

service is not evaluated in this analysis.  For the purpose of this discussion GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS 

are considered equally capable of providing water service to the Ojai area.   

Although several types of organizations were considered as candidates to compete with GOLDEN STATE 

in this evaluation CASITAS was selected because it has an existing and a historical comparable water rate 

structure, it geographically and politically encompasses the entire GOLDEN STATE service area, and 

CASITAS has the resources available to take on the operation of the GOLDEN STATE system.  

This report has been prepared independently by Richard H. Hajas, a resident of Ojai, and is not 

associated with and does not represent CASITAS. 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 6 of 57 
 

 

 

IV. DEFINITIONS OF TERMS USED IN THIS REPORT 

One Hundred Cubic Foot of Water (CCF) 

Terms used as measurements of water vary by organization, type of application and the relative volume 

of water measured.  Gallons, cubic feet, hundreds of cubic feet (CCF), and acre feet are only some of the 

terms used in the water industry and in agriculture.  For the purpose of this report the term “CCF”, one 

hundred cubic feet of water, will be used when referencing water use.  One “CCF” is equal to 746 gallons 

of water.  GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS, as well as, most municipal water agencies use the “CCF” as the 

unit of measure for selling water.  GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS water rates are based on “CCF”.  “CCF” is 

used on GOLDEN STATE billing statements. 

Billing Cycles (Bi-monthly verses monthly) 

GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS bill their customers’ bi-monthly.  Both organizations however publish their 

water rates in terms of monthly rates.  This unfortunately leads to some confusion when discussing the 

costs of water and drawing comparisons between organizations or even historical comparison within the 

same organization.  One finds facts stated in terms of monthly costs and bi-monthly costs often 

intertwined.  To add further confusion GOLDEN STATE has requested the PUC to authorize a change 

from bi-monthly to monthly billing cycles beginning in 2011.  For the purposes of this report bi-monthly 

water costs will be used exclusively.  All comparison of costs both historically and between organizations 

will be in bi-monthly increments.  

Typical GOLDEN STATE Customer 

Over two-thirds of GOLDEN STATE customers in the Ojai service area have 5/8 inch meters (GOLDEN 

STATE DEC. 2009).  GOLDEN STATE cites their average or “typical customer” as a 5/8 inch metered 

service using an average of 13 CCF per month or 26 CCF bi-monthly (GOLDEN STATE to the Ojai City 

Council January 26, 2010).  Based on the number of customers with 5/8 inch meters and the total 

GOLDEN STATE water sales data, this seems to be a reasonable characterization of a typical GOLDEN 

STATE customer.  Throughout this report the term “typical customer” will refer to a 5/8 inch service 

using an average of 26 CCF bi-monthly.  

   

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 7 of 57 
 

 

V. BACKGROUND ON CASITAS 

CASITAS is a municipal water district operating under the authority of the Municipal Water District 

Section of the California Water Code.  CASITAS has an elected governing body and an administrative 

structure defined by California law.  CASITAS has the powers and authority to hold elections, sell 

municipal bonds and acquire property through eminent domain (Water Code Division 20).  The entire 

GOLDEN STATE service area lies within the CASITAS boundaries and the area is already represented by 

an elected member of the Casitas Board of Directors.  GOLDEN STATE customers are indirect customers 

of CASITAS in that GOLDEN STATE buys a portion of the water they deliver in Ojai from CASITAS.  

Properties in Ojai pay property taxes to CASITAS and have contributed to the repayment of the original 

construction loan that financed Casitas Dam and the Casitas water delivery system. 

CASITAS has the expertise to operate the water system.  CASITAS employs a staff of engineers and 

certified operators that operate the Casitas Dam, water treatment plant, and water transmission and 

distribution systems.  CASITAS serves over 12.0 million gallons per day of wholesale water, irrigation 

water and residential water.  The residential communities of Oak View, Mira Monte, Foster Park, Faria 

Beach, Solimar Beach, La Conchita, and Rincon Del Mar are served by CASITAS.  Exhibit A (Map of 

CASITAS) highlights CASITAS’s district boundaries. 

CASITAS operates several large pipelines within the City of Ojai.  CASITAS operates large water storage 

tanks above Fairview Road, Villanova Road and Reeves Road all of which supply the Ojai service area.  

CASITAS’s system is interconnected to GOLDEN STATE’s system. 

Historically, CASITAS has successfully maintained its infrastructure with routine capital replacement 

projects; capital improvements, such as the water filtration plant; and responded to pipeline failures 

caused by the areas catastrophic flood events.  CASITAS has maintained both the technical resources 

and financial resources to effectively manage the system.   The residents of Ojai have and continue to 

contribute to CASITAS’s operation through property tax and wholesale water purchases through 

GOLDEN STATE. 

CASITAS has established water rates which offer a comparison to GOLDEN STATE.  CASITAS also has a 

long water rate history that serves as a comparison to GOLDEN STATE’s history. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 8 of 57 
 

VI. BACKGROUND ON GOLDEN STATE OJAI OPERATION 

GOLDEN STATE, formally Southern California Water Company, is an investor owned company and a 

subsidiary of American States Water Company.  GOLDEN STATE’s headquarters is in San Dimas, 

California.  GOLDEN STATE serves approximately 75 cities and has served Ojai since the early 1930’s.  

GOLDEN STATE operates under the jurisdiction of the California Public Utilities Commission (PUC), 

headquartered in San Francisco. 

GOLDEN STATE serves approximately 2880 metered connections (GOLDEN STATE Dec. 2009) in Ojai.  

Exhibit B (Map of GOLDEN STATE service area) contains a map highlighting the Ojai water service area.  

Total annual water sales are 859,187 CCF (GOLDEN STATE Dec. 2009) of water equivalent to an average 

of 2.0 million gallons of water per day.  Total water service revenues for year end 2009 were $4,307,900 

(GOLDEN STATE Dec. 2009).   

GOLDEN STATE’s primary source of water supply is from five wells located in the Ojai Groundwater 

Basin.  GOLDEN STATE pumps groundwater through a treatment facility and distributes the water 

throughout the Ojai area.  The primary water storage tank is located on Fairview Road.  Other storage 

tanks and lift stations deliver water to the higher elevations of the area on Foothill Road and Signal 

Street.  GOLDEN STATE also purchases about 15% of its supply as supplemental water from CASITAS 

through five metered interconnections.   GOLDEN STATE’s total operating expenses for 2009 were 

$2,214,500.  Included in these expenses is $217,060 for energy, $92,000 for water treatment, $371,046 

for water purchases and $775,000 for administration (GOLDEN STATE Dec. 2009). 

GOLDEN STATE’s 2880 metered connections range in size from 5/8 inch diameter to 6 inch diameter 

meters (GOLDEN STATE Dec. 2009).  Smaller meter diameters are capable of delivering 15-25 gallons per 

minute of water while larger meters can deliver hundreds of gallons per minute.  Over two-thirds of 

GOLDEN STATE customers have 5/8 inch meters.  The distribution of GOLDEN STATE customers by meter 

size and the flow capacity of each size are contained in Exhibit C.  

Although GOLDEN STATE sells nearly 900,000 CCF of water per year, GOLDEN STATE’s “typical customer” 

uses 13 CCF per month or 26 CCF per bi-monthly billing period.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 9 of 57 
 

VII. WATER RATES 

Current Water Rates 

The 2011 water rates for GOLDEN STATE are contained in Exhibit D.  CASITAS water rates are contained 

in Exhibit E.  The rates are in two parts: service charges (or meter charges) based on the size of the 

metered service and commodity charges for water use.  Each organization employs inclining tiered 

water rates for residential water customers.   GOLDEN STATE has three tiers and CASITAS has four tiers.  

Both organizations bill on a bi-monthly basis, therefore the monthly service charges applied for two 

months service and the tiers are based on two months of water use.   

GOLDEN STATE offers 10 CCF of water every two months at the Tier No. 1 rate of $3.34 per CCF.  

CASITAS offers 20 CCF of water every two months at the Tier No. 1 rate of $0.831 per CCF.  CASITAS also 

has a business, recreation and residential-agricultural rates that maybe applicable to some Ojai area 

services.  These rates are a single rate for all water used.  The business and recreation rate is $1.524 per 

CCF.  

GOLDEN STATE also adds surcharges to standard rates from time to time.  Beginning in 2008 a surcharge 

of $0.033 is added to GOLDEN STATE published rates for all water sold.    In April 2010 GOLDEN STATE 

was authorized to add $0.170 to all Tier No. 1 water, $0.183 to Tier No. 2 and $0.214 to Tier No. 3 for a 

period of twelve months; and in October 2010 a surcharge of $0.1845 was added (Cal PUC Sheet No. 

5990-W).  For the purpose of this analysis and for the sake of simplicity only GOLDEN STATE standard 

published rates are used, none of GOLDEN STATE surcharges are added.   Therefore the actual cost of 

GOLDEN STATE water is about 4.8% higher than stated throughout this analysis. 

Both organizations charge bi-monthly service or meter charges based on the size of the meter serving 

the property.  GOLDEN STATE’s lowest meter service charge is applied to 5/8” meter services.  The 

charge is $60.20 bi-monthly.   Although CASITAS has some 5/8” meters its smallest service charge is 

applied to both 5/8 inch and ¾ inch meter services.  CASITAS’s lowest meter service charge is $38.32 bi-

monthly. 

Both GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS bill their customers on a bi-monthly basis.  GOLDEN STATE’s “typical 

customer” is billed $151.14 for two months water service.  If CASITAS rates were applied, the same 

customer would be billed $62.54.   

Chart A below compares GOLDEN STATE charges for water service to a variety of customer types.  The 

chart contains examples of customers using less water than the “typical customer”, as well as, those 

with larger meters and higher water consumption.  In each case the GOLDEN STATE customer is paying 

twice as much for water as would be charged by CASITAS.  The chart’s data is contained in Exhibit F. 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 10 of 57 
 

 

Chart A 

 

GOLDEN STATE charges based on Cal. PUC Sheet 5990-W (excluding surcharges). CASITAS charges based on 

residential rates in CASITAS 9.2.4 Rate Schedule 

 

 

 

History of Water Rate Increases 

Historically GOLDEN STATE rates have been consistently higher than CASITAS.  Chart B compares the 

historical cost to the typical GOLDEN STATE customer with the cost when CASITAS’s historical charges 

are applied for the same service. 

 

 

$-

$200.00 

$400.00 

$600.00 

$800.00 

$1,000.00 

$1,200.00 

5/8" Meter - 16 CCF 5/8" Meter - 26 CCF 5/8" Meter - 36 CCF 1.0" Meter - 72 CCF 2.0" Meter - 145 CCF

Bi-Monthly Water Bills for Various Types of  Customers 
GOLDEN STATE vs. CASITAS Rates  

Golden

Casitas



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 11 of 57 
 

 

Chart B 

GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS Historical Increases in Water Charges 

“Typical Customer” Bi-monthly Costs 

(5/8 inch meter using 26 CCF bi-monthly) 

 

Casitas rates have increased over the past 20 years at an average rate of 4.2% per year with the highest 

single rate increase of 13% in 2003.  GOLDEN STATE rates increased an average of 7.9% over the same 

period with the single highest increase of 34.9% in 2008.  Chart B data is contained in Exhibit G. 

 

Total Cost of Service 

The total cost to the residents of Ojai for water service in 2009 was $4.308 million (GOLDEN STATE Dec. 

2009).  Meter service charges account for approximately $1.9 million of GOLDEN STATE revenue based 

on their 2009 meter service charges (Cal. PUC Sheet No. 5779-V) and the number of active services 

(GOLDEN STATE Dec. 2009).   If CASITAS’s meter service charges were applied to 2009 service the cost to 

$-

$20.00 

$40.00 

$60.00 

$80.00 

$100.00 

$120.00 

$140.00 

$160.00 

90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11

Golden State Casitas



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 12 of 57 
 

the Ojai area would have been significantly less.  Table I compares GOLDEN STATE to CASITAS meter 

service costs in the Ojai service area. 

 

Table I 

 

In order to apply CASITAS rates to 2009 GOLDEN STATE sales some assumptions about the distribution 

of sales through the various water rate tiers has been developed.  The actual distribution was not 

available.  To complicate matters GOLDEN STATE has only three tiers while CASITAS has four tiers.  

However, with the available information (total water sales, total revenue from sales, the total number of 

services, and the distribution of those services by size) a reasonable attempt at distributing the sales by 

tiers is contained in Exhibit H.  The distribution results in an average of 26 units delivered to the 5/8 inch 

and ¾ inch GOLDEN STATE customers, which is the “typical customer” cited by GOLDEN STATE.  The 

remainder of the water use is distributed among the larger meters.  The result is total water sold and 

total water revenue very close to GOLDEN STATE’s reported operations.  

GOLDEN STATE revenue from water sales in 2009 was approximately $2.38 million.  If CASITAS rates 

were applied to the same distribution of sales the revenue would have been $977,800.  A comparison of 

the total cost of water service in 2009 from GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS is contained in Table II below.  

The difference in total annual cost to the Ojai area for water service in 2009 was $2.4 million. 

 

 

 

 

 

GSW  (1) (2) Total GSW CMWD (3) (2) Net Annual

Bi-monthly Total Annual Bi-monthly Total Annual

Meter Size Meter Chg Meters Revenue Meter Size Meter Chg Meters Per Meter

5/8 48.30$                 1938 708,780.09$         5/8 38.32$                1938 445,584.96$ 

3/4 72.40$                 195 106,901.50$         3/4 38.32$                195 44,834.40$    

1 120.70$               543 496,269.64$         1 60.06$                543 195,675.48$ 

1 1/2 242.00$               63 115,442.71$         1 1/2 114.39$              63 43,239.42$    

2 386.00$               140 409,190.88$         2 179.60$              140 150,864.00$ 

3 724.00$               7 38,374.90$           3 386.07$              7 16,214.94$    

4 1,208.00$           1 9,146.98$             4 690.36$              1 4,142.16$      

6 2,414.00$           2 36,557.62$           6 1,527.13$          2 18,325.56$    

Total Meter Revenue 1,920,664.30$     Total Meter Revenue 918,880.92$ 

(1) Cal. PUC Sheet No. 5779-V

(2) GSWC Dec 2009

(3) CMWD 9.4.2 Schedule Services Charges

Golden State 2009 Meter Service Charge Revenue Casitas Meter Service Charges Applied to Ojai 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 13 of 57 
 

Table II 

 

 

VIII. THE COST OF ACQUISITION 

If rates were the only issue this analysis would be simple, CASITAS has significantly lower rates than 

GOLDEN STATE.  However, in order to replace GOLDEN STATE with CASITAS as the area’s water service 

provider the Ojai community would be required to buy GOLDEN STATE’s water system.  The purchase 

could be accomplished through a negotiated sale or through eminent domain.  In either case GOLDEN 

STATE is entitled to the fair market value of the water system.   

There is data available to estimate the fair market value of the water system.  The PUC requires GOLDEN 

STATE to routinely submit information regarding the value of the water system as part of the rate 

setting process.  The net dollar value of the investment of the utility is considered the “rate base”.  The 

“rate base” is determined by the following factors: 

 Original cost of the organization, franchise, water rights and other intangibles 

 Original cost of land that is used or useful for the utility service 

 Original cost of depreciable properties that are used or useful for the utility service 

 Reasonable allowance for materials and supplies 

 Allowance for working cash 

Less 

 Contributions in aid of construction 

 Unrefunded advances 

 Depreciation reserve 

 Differed tax reserve (if any) (PUC June 2001). 

The “rate base” is the foundation of the rate setting.  The utility is allowed a rate of return on the “rate 

base” of approximately 8% to 10% of the “rate base”.   The “rate base” is an important value for the 

utility because the higher the “rate base” the larger the profit they are allowed on the operation (PUC 

June 2001).  There is no incentive for the utility to understate the “rate base” therefore making the “rate 

base” a reasonable statement of general value of the utility. 

Golden State Total Casitas Rates 

Water Revenues Applied Difference

Total Meter Charges 1,920,600.00$            918,880.00$                1,001,720.00$            

Total Water Sales 2,388,000.00$            977,800.00$                1,410,200.00$            

Total Cost 4,308,600.00$            1,896,680.00$            2,411,920.00$            

(1)  Exhibit  H contains the method used for distribution of revenues by tiers 

Comparison of Costs to the Ojai Area in 2009 Golden State vs. Casitas (1)



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 14 of 57 
 

GOLDEN STATE reported a “rate base” for year end 2009 of $12,717,219.00 (CSWC Dec 2009).    Exhibit I 

is a detailed spread sheet of the “rate base” for 2008 and 2009 as reported by GOLDEN STATE.  The 

“rate base” will change as GOLDEN STATE implements capital projects, existing components of the 

system depreciate, and deductions for contributions in aid of construction, unrefund advances and 

differed taxes fluctuate.   A forecast of the future “rate base” value may be estimated by applying an 

implementation schedule of GOLDEN STATE’s plan for water system capital projects with an estimated 

annual depreciation rate.  For the purpose of this analysis only accumulated depreciation will be 

deducted from the “Total Gross Plant in Service” each year.  There is no information at this time 

available to estimate future values of contribution- in-aid of construction, unrefunded advances or 

differed tax reserves.  The result will be an estimate of the value of the net “Plant in Service” which may 

be slightly higher than the “rate base”.  The net “Plant in Service” value in 2008 was $13.6 million and in 

2009 $14.4 million.  This is approximately $2.0 million higher than each year’s report “rate base”. 

GOLDEN STATE developed a capital replacement and improvement plan in 2009 to replace aging 

pipelines and other infrastructure over the next 20 years.  Exhibit J contains the pipeline projects and 

other infrastructure replacement and improvements projects as well as the planned implementation 

schedule.  The total estimated cost of all proposed projects is $27,728,000.  Some of these projects were 

completed in 2010 and the PUC has recommended approval of capital project costs for 2010 and 2011 

(PUC Nov 2010).  The Mutual Water Well replacement project has been approved for 2011-12 ahead of 

original 2016 schedule.  

The PUC has also recommended an annual depreciation rate of 3.95% (PUC Aug. 2010). 

Table III below contains an estimate of the GOLDEN STATE net “Plant in Service” value through 2020.  

The projection includes projects approved by the PUC for 2010-11 and implementation of the GOLDEN 

STATE scheduled projects over 10 years.  The estimate also assumes a continued annual depreciation 

rate of 3.95%.  The construction of the new Mutual Well is included in New Capital in 2012 because the 

PUC has recommended approval of the project, but did not recommend adding the cost to the “rate 

base” until it is complete (PUC Nov. 2010). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 15 of 57 
 

Table III 

 

If acquisition occurred within the next 5 years the estimated fair market value of GOLDEN STATE system 

would be between $16.0 and $21.4 million. 

Capital Cost of Needed Repairs to the GOLDEN STATE System 

Exhibit K contains an inventory of GOLDEN STATE pipelines by age.  Approximately 19% of the pipeline 

system is pre-1950’s vintage and another 17% is pre-1960.  As a point of reference CASITAS’s system was 

constructed in the early 1960’s with some major expansions in the early 1970’s.  GOLDEN STATE’s 

Master Plan would replace over 30% of the entire pipeline system potentially eliminating nearly all of 

the aged pipelines.  The total estimated cost of the pipeline program is $22,178,000 to replace 77,050 

feet of pipe.  Other infrastructure replacement projects in the master plan are water storage tanks, 

booster pumps, and wells.  These projects total $5,550,000.  The total cost of GOLDEN STATE’s Master 

Plan is $27,728,000. 

For the purposes of this analysis it is assumed that the GOLDEN STATE Master Plan for capital 

replacement and capital improvements is needed to maintain a quality water system.  Therefore the 

potential liability to any agency acquiring the system would include completing the master plan.  As 

GOLDEN STATE implements that plan the value of the net “Plant in Service” of GOLDEN STATE will 

increase, however the needed capital to cover replacements will decrease. Table IV below contains an 

estimated level of needed investment remaining over the next ten years.  If GOLDEN STATE proceeds 

Year Complete Projects (2) Annual Depreciation(3) Gross Plant in Service Net Plant in Service

2008 3,831,000$                       17,768,262$                    13,937,262$                    

2009 930,841$                          4,307,000$                       18,699,103$                    14,392,103$                    

2010 2,018,359$                       5,045,615$                       20,717,462$                    15,671,847$                    

2011 1,178,355$                       5,863,954$                       21,895,817$                    16,031,863$                    

2012 2,792,000$                       6,728,839$                       24,687,817$                    17,958,978$                    

2013 1,630,000$                       7,704,008$                       26,317,817$                    18,613,809$                    

2014 2,830,000$                       8,743,562$                       29,147,817$                    20,404,255$                    

2015 2,160,000$                       9,894,900$                       31,307,817$                    21,412,917$                    

2016 1,290,000$                       11,131,559$                    32,597,817$                    21,466,258$                    

2017 3,935,000$                       12,419,173$                    36,532,817$                    24,113,644$                    

2018 1,440,000$                       13,862,219$                    37,972,817$                    24,110,598$                    

2019 1,410,000$                       15,362,145$                    39,382,817$                    24,020,672$                    

2020 1,080,000$                       16,917,767$                    40,462,817$                    23,545,050$                    

(1) 2008-09 values as reported by Golden State (Golden State Dec. 2009)

(2) 2010-11 Completed Projects as recommended by the PUC (PUC Nov. 2010)

       2012 Includes Golden State scheduled projects and the Mutual Well approved by PUC (PUC Nov 2010)

(3) Annual depreciation rate 2010-2020 3.95% as recommended by the PUC (PUC Nov. 2010)

Projected Accumulated Value of Golden State Plant in Service (1)



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 16 of 57 
 

with the schedule of capital improvements and replacements over the next 5 Years, there will remain a 

range of capital needed to complete the 20 year plan of $15.1 to $24.5 million.   

Table IV 

 

Legal Costs of Acquisition 

From the inception of any action to acquire GOLDEN STATE legal cost will begin to accrue.  Some of the 

anticipated services required are: 

 Legal services to begin negotiations with GOLDEN STATE 

 Legal services to proceed with eminent domain if necessary 

 Legal services to complete eminent domain and reach final settlement  

 Legal services for bond sales  

 Administration of Acquisition 

 Intervention in GOLDEN STATE-PUC rate cases 

Some or all of these services will be needed and potentially the most costly would be eminent domain 

and final settlement.  As a result of discussions with members of a citizens group in Felton California, 

who successfully facilitated the acquisition of American Water Company by San Lorenzo Water District, 

it is estimated that a range of $1.0 to $4.0 million may needed to successfully complete a lengthy 

eminent domain process.  The costs would be directly related to the length of the acquisition process.  

An early settlement could cost as little as $1.0 million and a four year eminent domain action could cost 

Year Complete Projects (2) Net Plant in Service Balance of Master Plan

2008 13,937,262$                    

2009 930,841$                          14,392,103$                    27,728,000.00$                          

2010 2,018,359$                       15,671,847$                    25,709,641.00$                          

2011 1,178,355$                       16,031,863$                    24,531,286.00$                          

2012 2,792,000$                       17,958,978$                    21,739,286.00$                          

2013 1,630,000$                       18,613,809$                    20,109,286.00$                          

2014 2,830,000$                       20,404,255$                    17,279,286.00$                          

2015 2,160,000$                       21,412,917$                    15,119,286.00$                          

2016 1,290,000$                       21,466,258$                    13,829,286.00$                          

2017 3,935,000$                       24,113,644$                    9,894,286.00$                            

2018 1,440,000$                       24,110,598$                    8,454,286.00$                            

2019 1,410,000$                       24,020,672$                    7,044,286.00$                            

2020 1,080,000$                       23,545,050$                    5,964,286.00$                            

(1) 2008-09 values as reported by Golden State (Golden State Dec. 2009)

(2) 2010-11 Completed Projects as recommended by the PUC (PUC Nov. 2010)

    2012 - Scheduled projects and the Mutual Well approved by PUC (PUC Nov 2010)

Net Capital Required to Complete Master Plan (1)



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 17 of 57 
 

as much as $4.0 million.  Other costs included are CASITAS administrative costs and the cost of 

intervention in future GOLDEN STATE-PUC rate cases to assure GOLDEN STATE invests capital in the 

most needed infrastructure projects. 

 

Total Capital Cost of Acquisition 

Based on the above assumptions the total cost of acquisition including purchase of the GOLDEN STATE 

system, legal costs, and the cost of up-grading the system through completion of the master plan would 

range from $41.5 million today to $40.5 million in five years depending upon the level of investment 

GOLDEN STATE makes into the system over that period.  It is reasonable to expect the acquisition period 

to take anywhere from 2 to 5 years.  Table V below contains the estimated cost of acquisition over the 5 

year period. 

Table V 

 

 

IX. IMPACTS TO CURRENT CASITAS RATEPAYERS  

CASITAS has an obligation to its existing ratepayers and cannot accept any new liability that would result 

in future costs to those ratepayers.  The GOLDEN STATE customers must provide sufficient capital 

and/or a revenue stream that will cover the costs associated with operating and maintaining the 

GOLDEN STATE system, as well as, the cost of needed improvements and replacements to the water 

system. 

General Operations and Maintenance 

GOLDEN STATE’s reported cost of operations less depreciation for 2009 was $ 2,124,500 (GOLDEN STATE 

Dec. 2009).  Included in operations cost are $775,200 for administration and $30,500 for rent.   CASITAS 

has a full administrative organization in place and would not need rental property.  Assuming CASITAS 

operates the GOLDEN STATE system in the same manner and that there are no benefits from the 

economy of scale, the estimated net cost to CASITAS would be approximately $1,319,000 per year.   

 

Year Net Plant in Service Balance of Master Plan Attorney Fees Net Cost of Acquisition

2011 16,031,863$                    24,531,286$                    1,000,000$           41,563,149$                         

2012 17,958,978$                    21,739,286$                    2,000,000$           41,698,264$                         

2013 18,613,809$                    20,109,286$                    3,000,000$           41,723,095$                         

2014 20,404,255$                    17,279,286$                    4,000,000$           41,683,541$                         

2015 21,412,917$                    15,119,286$                    4,000,000$           40,532,203$                         

Total Estimated Cost of Acquisition 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 18 of 57 
 

Leaks 

The greatest immediate impact to CASITAS may be the number of leaks that occur in the GOLDEN STATE 

system.  GOLDEN STATE has averaged 88 service leaks per year because of the deteriorating 

polyethylene pipe used for some service lines from the main to the meter.  The other issue is pipeline 

leaks.  GOLDEN STATE system experiences an average of 45 pipeline leaks per year.  One of the purposes 

of GOLDEN STATE’s master plan is to reduce pipeline leaks (GOLDEN STATE Aug. 2010).  

It is assumed that at least part of the cost of the leaks is included in GOLDEN STATE operating costs.  In 

addition in 2010 GOLDEN STATE has budgeted $164,000 for services and $89,000 for small main 

replacements.  These capital funds are listed in the budget category “Blankets”.  “Blankets” are for, 

among other things, replacement of meters, services and pipelines that are operationally deficient. (DRA 

May 2010).  The total estimated annual operating costs including leaks would be $1,571,729. Table VI 

contains a summary of estimated cost of operations.  Detailed GOLDEN STATE expenses are in Exhibit L. 

Table VI 

 

Aging Water System 

GOLDEN STATE’s system is older and portions of the system may not meet CASITAS standard 

specifications for construction.  The capital funds intended to complete GOLDEN STATE Master Plan 

would be used by CASITAS to up-grade the GOLDEN STATE system.   

CASITAS could direct those funds to the areas that would best incorporate the GOLDEN STATE system 

with CASITAS.  CASITAS has existing main water lines that run through the City of Ojai, some paralleling 

(Matilija Conduit, Grande Avenue Main, Ojai Valley Main) GOLDEN STATE that may reduce the need for 

some of GOLDEN STATE’s proposed pipeline projects. CASITAS has storage (Fairview, Ojai Valley, 

Villanova Reservoirs) in some cases at higher elevations than GOLDEN STATE, potentially eliminating the 

need for some of GOLDEN STATE booster pump stations and even some reservoirs.  Efficient merger of 

the two systems would enable CASITAS to redirect capital funds to other priorities within the GOLDEN 

STATE system.  In some cases the total cost of the GOLDEN STATE master plan may be reduced.  CASITAS 

may also find some facilities and the associated real property unnecessary to the operation, in which 

Golden State 2009 Adjustment Estimated Casitas Cost

Operations Expenses (1)

Total Water Supply 392,804.00$                                392,804.00$                    Includes purchases from Casitas

Total Pumping Expenses 402,907.00$                                402,907.00$                    

Total Treatment Expenses 92,013.00$                                  92,013.00$                       

Total Tran. & Distr. Expenses 271,397.00$                                253,000.00$                    524,397.00$                    Plus "blankets" for leaks (2)

Total Customer Account 161,143.00$                                161,143.00$                    

Sales Expenses (1,535.00)$                                   (1,535.00)$                       

Admin 775,282.00$                                (775,282.00)$                   -$                                   less overhead

Rent 30,503.00$                                  (30,503.00)$                     -$                                   less rent

Total Expenses 2,124,514.00$                            1,571,729.00$                 

(1) Golden State Dec. 2009

(2) "Blankets are misc. capital expenditures reported by Golden State related to meter service and pipeline repairs (Golden State (Dec. 2009)

Golden State Actual 2009 Operating Expenses vs. Estimated Casitas Expenses



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 19 of 57 
 

case the proceeds from the sale could be contributed to the master plan.  At least some of these 

facilities will not be necessary if CASITAS were to operate the system. 

Prior to acquisition, Casitas may conduct an evaluation study of the two systems to determine the most 

effective method of system integration.  The study would also result in a revised master plan for system 

improvements and replacements. 

Water Supply 

There would be no net increase in water demand as a result of the acquisition of GOLDEN STATE.  

GOLDEN STATE produces water from local ground water and purchases water from CASITAS as a 

supplemental supply.  If CASTAS acquires GOLDEN STATE ,  CASITAS would acquire the groundwater 

wells  along with the right to continue to produce water in historical quantities for the benefit of the Ojai 

service area. 

Revenue Impacts 

CASITAS would realize new revenue from monthly service fees of $918,000 annually based on CASITAS’s 

current service charges and GOLDEN STATE’s existing service connections.   CASITAS’s total revenues 

from water service would increase by 46% from $1,994,000 to over $2.9 million per year.  CASITAS 

would also see new revenue of approximately $977,800 in water sales based on CASITAS’s current rates.  

This would increase CASITAS’s total water sales revenue from $6.65 million to $7.62 million annually 

(CASITAS July 2010).  The net result would be a 15% increase in total water revenues or $1.89 million 

with no additional water demand. With the acquisition of GOLDEN STATE, CASITAS would lose the 

wholesale water revenues from GOLDEN STATE, however for the purpose of this analysis it is assumed 

CASITAS delivers the water at cost, therefore GOLDEN STATE’s 2009 purchases of $371,046 is included in 

estimated operating costs to CASITAS (TABLE VI).   

Net Impact to CASITAS 

CASITAS would realize net increase in revenues of $1.89 million and an estimated increase in operation 

cost of $1,571,730 for a net surplus of $324,959 annually at 2010 rates.  If CASITAS directs available 

capital from the acquisition toward projects that reduce service line and pipeline leaks in the early 

stages of the master plan, and is able to take advantage of the economy of scale in reducing overall 

operating expenses, CASITAS could significantly increase the available annual revenue surplus.  In the 

short term the revenue surplus may be needed to address weaknesses in the GOLDEN STATE system, 

however, in the long term the increased customer and revenue base of the Ojai service area could 

reduce CASITAS’s financial burden on the entire CASITAS service area.  Table VII summarizes the net 

revenues anticipated by CASITAS’s operation of the Ojai system. 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 20 of 57 
 

 

 

Table VII 

 

 

X. AFFORDABILITY OF ACQUISITION 

The affordability of the acquisition of GOLDEN STATE can be measured by the cost differential between 

GOLDEN STATE’s charges for water service and CASITAS’s charges for the same service.  Table VIII 

applies 2011 water rates to 2009 GOLDEN STATE water sales.  The result is the estimated total cost of 

GOLDEN STATE water service for 2011 compared to the estimate cost of the same service from CASITAS.  

Based on this simple comparison the residents of the Ojai Area can afford to allocate as much as $3.14 

million annually to acquire GOLDEN STATE.   

Table VIII 

 

                                            Casitas 2010 Water Rates 

                       Applied to Golden State 2009 Sales

Revenues (1)

Meter service charges 918,888.00$                    

Water sales  (retail) 977,800.00$                    

Net Revenue 1,896,688.00$                 

Estimated Expenses 1,571,729.00$                 

Surplus Revenues 324,959.00$                    

(1) Sales Revenues from Exhibit H - Meter charges 

from Table I

Estimated CMWD Surplus Revenues from Operation 

of Ojai Service Area 

Cost Of Water To Ojai Service Area 2011 (1)

Golden State Total (2) Casitas Rates 

Water Revenues Applied Difference

Total Meter Charges 1,920,664.30$            918,880.92$                1,001,783.38$            

Total Water Sales 3,125,051.74$            979,725.86$                2,145,325.88$            

Total Cost 5,045,716.05$            1,898,606.78$            3,147,109.27$            

(1)  Exhibit  G contains the method used to distribute revenues by tiers 

(2) Golden State Rates: Cal PUC Sheet No. 5990-W



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 21 of 57 
 

 

In addition to the differential saving between GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS water rates, there is 

projected surplus revenue from operations of the Ojai Area system by CASITAS of approximately 

$325,000 per year (Table VII) based on GOLDEN STATE 2009 sales.  These surplus funds could also be 

applied to funding the acquisition, bring the total available funding resources to $3.46 million per year.  

 

XI.  ALTERNATIVE FUNDING METHODS 

Regardless of the method of funding it is assumed that acquisition will be authorized by voter initiative.  

Included in the initiative would be the preferred funding strategy. 

Common funding options are various types of long-term municipal bonds secured by property tax or 

revenues from water sales.  Funds can also be raised through surplus annual operating revenues and 

made available for capital improvements on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. 

A significant amount of capital will be needed to buy GOLDEN STATE’s system at the time of acquisition.  

Legal costs will begin to accrue before final acquisition; these funds will be needed almost immediately.  

Capital will also be required to complete the most urgent capital replacement projects following 

acquisition to assure that CASITAS can hold down maintenance costs on the system.  Additional funds 

may be needed to finish long-term, less urgent capital improvements needed over the course of 20 to 

30 years following acquisition.  

The criteria used to develop and evaluate the various funding options are: 

 Make every effort to distribute both the costs and any potential savings equitably among the 

Ojai service area residents 

 Because nearly two-thirds of the GOLDEN STATE customers are 5/8 inch metered services with 

relatively low water use, the impact on them is of primary importance. 

 Assure current CASITAS ratepayers that they will not be negatively impacted 

 Assure CASITAS that sufficient financial resources are made available to successfully complete 

the acquisition 

 Assure CASITAS that sufficient funds are available to service debt and meet future capital 

requirements 

 Offer the Ojai residents some immediate relief from the current cost of water. 

 

Sale of Bonds Secured By Property Tax 

The sale of bonds secured by property tax is a common method of funding the acquisition.   Municipal 

bonds, if approved by the voters, may be sold and the proceeds used to cover all or part of the 

acquisition costs.  This option typically is used because the bonds sold are exempt from state and federal 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 22 of 57 
 

income tax and therefore can be issued at a reduced interest rate.  The bonds would be repaid by 

assessing the debt service on the property tax.  This may be beneficial to some as a tax deductible 

expense.  

Exhibit M is a distribution of debt service for $35.0 million in bonds on property tax.  The basis of the 

assessment is a $2.05 charge per gallon per minute capacity of the property’s meter service.  The 

capacity of the meter is used as a measure of the properties potential for using water.  A rough estimate 

of the number and size of tax exempt properties have been removed from the calculation.  Property 

taxes would range from $369 per year for a 5/8 inch service to $1,230 per year for a 1.0 inch meter, and 

nearly $3,939 per year for a 2.0 inch meter.  Despite these seemingly high assessments, Exhibit M 

illustrates that all but the largest meter services would realize a savings in total water costs over 

GOLDEN STATE’s operation.  A similar method of allocating the cost of acquisition was used in Felton, 

California.    

The disadvantages of this option are: not everyone is able to take advantage of the income tax 

deduction; it is very difficult to equitably distribute the cost of debt service on the property in 

proportion to the benefit of water service.  Some properties may use little water but will pay a tax based 

on water meter size.  Residents with 5/8 inch meters that use less than 16 CCF per billing period would 

realize little or no immediate savings.  Government institutions and some non-profits organizations, 

many of which are large water users, are exempt from property tax and would see a windfall savings at 

the expense of other water users.  

 

Sale of Revenue Bonds Secured by a Surcharge on Water Use 

Revenue Bonds may be sold and secured by water rates.  Revenue Bonds may be sold and used for all or 

part of the acquisition costs.  These bonds could be repaid by applying a fixed surcharge, to be paid only 

by GOLDEN STATE service area customers, in addition to the CASITAS standard rates for water service.  

The surcharge would remain constant and expire upon repayment of the bonds or an agreed term.  The 

burden of repayment would be distributed among the Ojai service area based on water use.  This 

approach offers the most equitable method of repayment.  Those using the most water will benefit from 

the reduced cost of acquisition of GOLDEN STATE and will also contribute the most to the capital cost.  

Low water users will pay less and conservation of water will be rewarded. 

Exhibit N contains the results of applying a $2.50 per CCF surcharge to the current CASITAS water rates.  

The total revenue generated by the surcharge would be $2.15 million dollars per year.  The “typical 

customer” would realize a $23.50 bi-monthly savings or an annual savings of over $141.00.  The total 

savings to the Ojai Area would be nearly $1.0 million per year (See Table IX). 

At 5.0% interest, financed over 30 years, a debt service of $2.15 million dollars would finance a total 

bond sale of $33.0 million.   

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 23 of 57 
 

Table IX 

 

The disadvantages of the Revenue Bond option are the interest rates on this type of bond may not be as 

attractive as bonds secured by property tax and the repayment would not qualify as a tax deduction.  

The other disadvantage is these bonds could not be secured by the revenue from the water surcharge 

until CASITAS completes acquisition.  CASITAS would have to cover the up-front legal costs associated 

with the acquisition until acquisition is complete.  Bond proceeds could then be used to reimburse 

CASITAS. 

Another important concern is that the volume of water sold by GOLDEN STATE varies from year to year 

based on a variety of conditions.  All revenues based on volume of sales will also fluctuate year to year, 

while the debt service will remain constant.   

Variations in water sales are impacted by weather and economic conditions.  The 2009 sales (859,187 

CCF) used in this analysis are the lowest annual sales experienced by GOLDEN STATE in the past 5 years.  

It is reasonable to assume that at least part of the cause of the low sales volume may have been the 

extraordinary economic conditions of 2009 coupled with GOLDEN STATES implementation of a 34.9% 

rate increase. Sales in 2006 were 1,094,227 CCF and the PUC estimates sales for 2011 at 920,500 CCF 

(Cal PUC August 2010).  Actual sales for 2010 were not available in time for this report.  For the purposes 

of this analysis the 2009 lowest sales in 5 years, was used throughout. 

 

 

Combining Bond Proceeds and Revenues from Water Surcharges 

The operating budget discussed above includes funds to operate the system “as-is” which allows time 

for CASITAS to evaluate and prioritize needed system improvements based on their experience 

operating the system.  Rather than issuing bonds to secure the maximum amount of cash affordable it, 

may be more practical to provide flexibility in structuring debt and managing the annual revenues from 

an applied water surcharge. In the above analysis the estimated total cost of acquisition, plus the 

estimated costs to complete system improvements over a 15-20 year period, is $40.0 to $41.5 million.  

However, Table X illustrates that the maximum amount of cash needed immediately upon acquisition 

Cost Of Water To Ojai Service Area 2011 (1)

Golden State Total Casitas Rates Casitas w/ 

Water Revenues (2) Applied Surcharge Difference

Total Meter Charges 1,920,664.30$            918,880.92$                918,880.92$                1,001,783.38$            

Total Water Sales 3,125,051.74$            979,725.86$                3,130,905.86$            (5,854.12)$                   

Total Cost 5,045,716.05$            1,898,606.78$            4,049,786.78$            995,929.27$                

(1)  Exhibit  G contains the method used to distribute revenues by tiers 

(2) Based on Cal PUC Sheet No. 5990.W excluding Golden State surcharges

swickstrum
Highlight

swickstrum
Highlight

swickstrum
Highlight



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 24 of 57 
 

would be $18.0 to $26.4 million depending on the length of the acquisition process.  The capital 

requirement includes $1.0 million to complete construction of any immediately needed systems 

integration.   

Table X 

Cash Requirements 

 

The smaller initial capital outlay reduces the long-term revenues need to service the debt.  Table XI 

contains the resulting debt service requirements for each scenario in Table X and the surplus annual 

revenues from the $2.50 surcharged discussed earlier.  The surplus revenues from the surcharge would 

be available to CASITAS for a period of up to 30 years to fund capital improvements on a “pay-as-you-

go” basis.   

 

 

 

Table XI 

 

 

 

In addition to the surplus revenues from the surcharge CASITAS will realize a surplus from water sales to 

the GOLDEN STATE service area of approximately $325,000 per year (Table VII) based on GOLDEN STATE 

2009 sales.  These surplus funds could also be applied to a “pay-as-you-go” capital projects plan.  Table 

Total Cost of Net Plant Value Estimated Legal Estimated Cost Cash Required Capital Needed to 

Year  Acquisition Golden State Costs of Start Up at Time of Acquisition Complete Master Plan

2011 41,563,149$                    16,031,863$                    1,000,000$           1,000,000$           18,031,863$                         23,531,286$                    

2012 41,698,264$                    17,958,978$                    2,000,000$           1,000,000$           20,958,978$                         20,739,286$                    

2013 41,723,095$                    18,613,809$                    3,000,000$           1,000,000$           22,613,809$                         19,109,286$                    

2014 41,683,541$                    20,404,255$                    4,000,000$           1,000,000$           25,404,255$                         16,279,286$                    

2015 40,532,203$                    21,412,917$                    4,000,000$           1,000,000$           26,412,917$                         14,119,286$                    

Total Captial Annual Annual Annual

Year from Bonds Revenue From Debt Surplus Revenue

Surcharge Service from Surcharge

2011 18,031,863$  2,150,000$           $1,172,999 $977,001

2012 20,958,978$  2,150,000$           $1,363,412 786,588$               

2013 22,613,809$  2,150,000$           $1,471,061 678,939$               

2014 25,404,255$  2,150,000$           $1,652,583 497,417$               

2015 26,412,917$  2,150,000$           $1,718,198 431,802$               



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 25 of 57 
 

XII illustrates that a “pay-as-you-go” funding plan, including surplus operations revenues, would fund 

the acquisition and provided $14.0 to $23.5 million to complete system improvements over 18-20 years.  

Table XII 

Based on GOLDEN STATE 2009 sales and a surcharge of $2.50 per CCF 

 

The option of combing bond proceeds and surplus revenues to finance the acquisition offers the Ojai 

Area residents the same advantages as the Revenue Bonds option discussed above.  The option offers 

an immediate savings and the distribution of costs-benefits is allocated equitably based on water use.  

The added benefits of this option are that it offers CASITAS some insurance that adequate funds will be 

available each year to cover the debt service and it provides a long-term revenue stream of $750,000 to 

$1,300,000 per year for up to thirty years.  This long-term revenue stream can be used to fund “pay-as-

you-go” improvements to the water system, build capital reserve funds to finance unanticipated future 

capital needs, and build reserves to buffer variations in water sales.   

Once sufficient capital has been generated and operating cost controlled it may be possible to reduce 

the water surcharge on the Ojai Area.  

Preferred Funding Option 

Based on the above analysis the preferred funding option is a combination of Revenue Bonds 

secured by a $2.50 per CCF water surcharge and a “pay-as-you-go” capital improvement plan 

funded by surplus revenues from the water surcharge and operations.  This option best satisfies 

the established evaluation criteria sited above. This option offers the following: 

 The costs and savings to the Ojai Area residents are equitably distributed based solely on water 

use  

 Ojai residents with 5/8 inch meters will realize an immediate 15% reduction in costs 

 Adequate funding is provided to operate the GOLDEN STATE system ‘as-is’, before 

improvements may be implemented, to assure that CASITAS ratepayers are not negatively 

impacted 

 A large continuance of Capital is available through the sale of Revenue Bonds to successfully 

complete the acquisition 

 A revenue stream sufficient to service debt and meet future capital requirements is available for 

up to 30 years 

 Ojai residents will realize immediate relief from the current cost of water. 

Total Captial Annual Annual Annual Annual Total Annual Additional Years to Complete

Year from Bonds Revenue From Debt Surplus Revenue Surplus from Revenues Capital Required Pay-as-you-go

Surcharge Service from Surcharge Operations Available

2011 18,031,863$  2,150,000$           $1,172,999 $977,001 $324,959 $1,301,960 23,531,286$         18.1

2012 20,958,978$  2,150,000$           $1,363,412 786,588$               324,959$               1,111,547$           20,739,286$         18.7

2013 22,613,809$  2,150,000$           $1,471,061 678,939$               324,959$               1,003,898$           19,109,286$         19.0

2014 25,404,255$  2,150,000$           $1,652,583 497,417$               324,959$               822,376$               16,279,286$         19.8

2015 26,412,917$  2,150,000$           $1,718,198 431,802$               324,959$               756,761$               14,119,286$         18.7



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 26 of 57 
 

XII. PROJECTED FUTURE COSTS OF WATER SERVICE 

Using the 20 year history of GOLDEN STATE and CASITAS water rate increases, including the proposed 

$2.50 per CCF water surcharge discussed above, the saving to the Ojai service area would grow from 

$995,000 per year to nearly $3.4 million per year by 2025.  This is considered a reasonable estimate 

when one considers the long water rate history available for comparison as well as GOLDEN STATE’s 

plans to invest over $27.0 million dollars in the water system by 2030.  That investment would be made 

with the intent of gaining a return on the investment of around 8% - 10%.  CASITAS’s rates would not 

increase nearly as rapidly based on their history and; the $2.50 per CCF surcharge is a fixed component 

of the rate, therefore not subject to future rate increases.  (See Chart C). 

Chart C 

Comparison of Projected Total Water Costs to the Ojai Service Area 

Based on 20 Year History of Golden State and Casitas Rate Increases  

With Proposed $2.50 CCF Surcharge 

(Data for Chart C is contained in Exhibit O) 

 

$1,000,000.00 

$2,000,000.00 

$3,000,000.00 

$4,000,000.00 

$5,000,000.00 

$6,000,000.00 

$7,000,000.00 

$8,000,000.00 

$9,000,000.00 

$10,000,000.00 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Golden State Casitas



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 27 of 57 
 

Based on historical rate increases the “typical customer” will be paying GOLDEN STATE $437.00 bi-

monthly for water service by 2025.  If CASITAS projected rates are applied and the $2.50 surcharged 

added, the same customer will be paying $179.60 bi-monthly.  The projected saving is over $255.00 per 

billing period or over $1,500.00 dollars per year by 2025.  (See Chart D.) 

 

Chart D 

Projected Future Bi-monthly Water costs for the “Typical Customer” 

(5/8 inch meter - 26 CCF) Golden State vs. Casitas with Surcharge   

(Data for Chart D is contained in Exhibit P) 

   

 

 

 

$-

$50.00 

$100.00 

$150.00 

$200.00 

$250.00 

$300.00 

$350.00 

$400.00 

$450.00 

$500.00 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

GSW CMWD



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 28 of 57 
 

XIII. MARGIN OF ERROR 

The margins of error that may be contained in the development of the various elements of this analysis 

are different for each component.  The most subjective element affecting some of the results of this 

analysis are the differences in operating philosophies defined by the rules under which each 

organization operates.  It is worth noting some of these differences to better evaluate the margin of 

error in some of the elements of this analysis.  It is also important to consider GOLDEN STATE philosophy 

carefully because GOLDEN STATE is the source of the bulk of the data used in this analysis. 

GOLDEN STATE Operational Philosophy  

GOLDEN STATE is governed by the PUC and its purpose is to earn a return on the operation to the 

company’s investors.  PUC rules provide incentives to GOLDEN STATE to invest capital in the water 

system and the PUC calculates the company’s allowable profit (revenue less expenses) at a level that 

equals 8%-10% return on the investment.  Although the PUC is charged with the responsibility of 

monitoring the company’s expenses one can learn from reviewing the DRA reports and rate case 

testimony, that the appropriate level of expenses is almost always disputed, but rarely with any tangible 

result.  There appears to be very little evidence in the history of rate case documents of efforts by 

GOLDEN STATE to reduce expenses or to invest capital in cost controls.  This is not faulting GOLDEN 

STATE for there is no incentive to invest in cost reduction, if net revenues are adjusted by the PUC to 

provide a fixed rate of return.  Conversely, there is a significant incentive to gain approval for capital 

investments that will increase the “rate base” which in turn increases GOLDEN STATE total return on 

investment.  Most disturbing is not only the lack of incentive to control capital costs, but rather the 

built-in incentive to inflate the cost of projects to yield a larger basis for return.   

CASITAS Operational Philosophy 

CASITAS is governed by a locally elected board of directors.  The rules under which they must operate 

are dictated by state law which restricts their ability to both raise capital and raise rates.  The local 

voters and CASITAS’s customers have a great deal of influence on how the organization operates.  

Consequently, to be successful the operating philosophy most be focused on cost control, enhancement 

of the longevity of the water system infrastructure, and expending capital efficiently.  Judging the 

success of CASITAS at applying this philosophy is not the issue of this analysis, rather it is simply noted 

that the incentive-disincentives to operate under that philosophy will influence the organizations 

actions. 

 

Historical and Current Data Related to Cost 

The historical cost of water service and the current cost of water service to the GOLDEN STATE service 

area, as well as, the difference in cost when CASITAS rates are applied, are well documented.  Any 

deviation should be within a few percent of the values used. 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 29 of 57 
 

 

Projected Costs and Projected Rate Increases 

The projected future costs are also well documented.  Over 20 years of data has been used to compare 

the historical rates and rate increases of both organizations and there is no evidence that either 

organization will deviate significantly from those trends.  As the discussion regarding operating 

philosophy indicates each organization is driven by the governing rules and regulations within which it 

operates.  These rules create incentives and disincentives for action.  These rules have been in place 

throughout the 20 year history used to forecast future costs. 

Cost of Acquisition 

The cost of purchasing GOLDEN STATE or the fair market value will likely be disputed by GOLDEN STATE.  

However, the use  of the net “Plant in Service” on a progressive scale over a term of acquisition is hard 

to dispute.  There is significant documentation, much of it prepared by GOLDEN STATE, on the basis of 

the net “Plant in Service” which directly impacts earnings as determined by the “rate base”.  There is no 

rational for GOLDEN STATE to understate this value and great incentive to over state the value because 

profits on the operation are so tightly linked to this value.  Also, although a non-PUC regulated company 

can theoretically make unlimited profits from fully depreciated assets, GOLDEN STATE’s profits are 

directly linked to net “Plant Value”.  If the “Plant” were fully depreciated the “rate base” would be zero 

and no return would be allowed.  Therefore, if GOLDEN STATE’s investment in the un-depreciated “Plant 

in Service” is fully recovered GOLDEN STATE is not harmed. Ultimately an independent appraisal will be 

conducted but there is no evidence that the value would deviate significantly from the net “Plant in 

Service” value.   

The capital cost to complete the GOLDEN STATE master plan is documented in GOLDEN STATE reports.  

The cost of the master plan was used for this analysis because it is believed to be conservatively high.  If 

one examines the historical rate case reports by the DRA and transcripts of testimony GOLDEN STATE 

cost estimate have been questioned.  The DRA has also question the need for some of the very 

expensive projects proposed by GOLDEN STATE (DRA Aug 2010).   Also GOLDEN STATE’s master plan 

priorities will not likely be the priorities of CASITAS.  It is hopeful that CASITAS would be influenced by 

the rules governing its operations and greatly pair down the GOLDEN STATE cost estimates. 

The estimated legal costs of acquisition are the most difficult to determine.  The range of $1.0 million to 

$4.0 million used in the analysis is the range of error that can be expected. 

 

Funding of Acquisition 

The source of funding for acquisition is well document by the saving realized by applying CASITAS rates 

to the GOLDEN STATE service area.  The rate differential of $3.14 million dollars will easily support a 

water surcharge of $2.50 per CCF and provide the residents of the Ojai area with nearly a $1.0 million 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 30 of 57 
 

saving in the first year.  The projected revenues from the surcharge are based on the lowest water sales 

in the past 5 years, yet still produce sufficient funds to service the debt on a range of bond issuances of 

$18.0 to $33.0 million dollars.  The estimated surplus revenues realized from the water surcharge and 

surplus revenues from operations will fund all of the needed capital improvements to the Ojai water 

system within 18-20 years.  The 30 year term of the surcharge will provided additional funds to build a 

reserve to cover any unanticipated capital improvement needs. 

The estimated surplus operating revenues realized by CASITAS of $325,000 are conservative.  GOLDEN 

STATE actual operation costs were used to calculate the surplus.  It is expected that CASITAS will be able 

to operate for less considering that they historically have operated a much larger and more complex 

water system for proportionally less than GOLDEN STATE operates the Ojai area system.  Operating 

costs are also expected to decline once improvements are implemented to reduce the frequency of 

service line and pipe leaks. 

 

XIV. CONCLUSION 

Water service equal to or better than GOLDEN STATE can be provided to the community of Ojai at a 

significantly lower cost.  Despite an estimated total cost to acquire GOLDEN STATE’s system and make 

needed water system improvements of $40.5-$41.5 million dollars, the residents of the GOLDEN STATE 

Ojai service area can fund the acquisition over a 30 year term and still realize a reduction in current 

GOLDEN STATE cost.  With the acquisition of GOLDEN STATE by CASITAS, and the implementation of a 

$2.50 per CCF surcharge Ojai will save nearly $1.0 million per year beginning in 2011 and $3.40 million 

by 2025.  All of this can be accomplished while implementing needed system improvements identified in 

GOLDEN STATE master plan. 

The funding option of combined issuance of Revenue Bonds with the use of surplus revenues to finance 

a “pay-as-you-go” capital improvement plan provides CASITAS with sufficient capital and a long-term 

cash flow to assure its current rate payers that they will not be left to cover stranded costs or be 

burdened with the capital costs needed to improve the Ojai Area system.  In fact within 18 to 20 years 

the CASITAS rate payers may well realize a benefit from the enlarged customer base provided by the 

Ojai Area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 31 of 57 
 

 

 

 

Acknowledgements 

This analysis was initiated by the following Ojai residents who have actively participated in the of PUC-

Golden State Water Company rate cases over the past years.  Through their volunteer efforts they have 

collected a large volume of information regarding the PUC rate setting process, the economics of the 

Golden State Water Company’s Ojai operations, and the deficiencies in the Ojai area water system.  

Bob Daddi - Local Insurance Broker, community activist & most notably a founder of Skate Ojai. 

Dale Hanson -  Previous business owner in Ojai, Realtor, Government Liaison for the Ojai Board 

of Realtors and Board member of the Ojai Valley Green Coalition. 

Pat McPherson - Retired co-founder of an international electronics engineering and 

manufacturing company in Carpinteria and the secretary of a mutual water company in the 

Sierra’s. 

Stan Greene -  Retired heating and air conditioning contractor in Ojai, Board Member of the Ojai 

Valley Sewer District, head of the Citizens to Preserve Ojai.  

Lou Torres - Certified Public Accountant and Tax & Business consultant in Ojai and past Treasurer 

of both the Rotary Club of Ojai West and Rotary Club of Ojai West Foundation, Inc. 

Richard Hajas  - Volunteered to prepare this report.  He is a 30 year resident of the Ojai Valley and a ten 

year resident of the City of Ojai.  He has over 30 years experience managing the operations and the 

finances of local water agencies.  He managed the operations of the Casitas Municipal Water District as 

Assistant General Manager and served as the General Manager of the Camrosa Water District in 

Camarillo for 15 years.  Most recently he provided budgeting, planning, and rate design consulting 

services to the Meiners Oaks Water District. 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 32 of 57 
 

References 

 

Public Utilities Commission of the State of California, September 23, 2010, (Res. W-4840), Golden State 
Water Company (GSWC),Region I. Order Authorizing Surcharges To Recover $1,227,490 For GSWC’s 
Region I Service Area For Lost Revenues From Reduced Water Consumption By Customers,  San 
Francisco, California 
 
Golden State Water Company, January 27, 2010, Amended Application Of Golden State Water 
Company For An Order Authorizing An Increase In Rates In Its Region I Customer Service Areas, 
Application No. 10-01-2009, San Dimas, California 
 
Golden State Water Company, August 2, 2010, Report on the Maintenance and Capital Improvements 

of Ojai Customer Service area for years 1999 to 2009 , San Dimas, California 

Golden State Water Company, December 31, 2009, Annual Report of District System Operations of 

Golden state Water Company to the Public Utilities Commission State of California Year Ended 

December 31, 2009 , San Dimas, California 

Division of Ratepayer Advocates, August 20, 2010, The Division of Ratepayer Advocates and Golden 

State Water Company’s Supplemental Report on Rate Design in Application 10-01-2009 , San 

Francisco, California 

Public Utilities Commission, June 2001, Standard Practice For Determing Fixed Capital And Rate 
Base Of Class B, C And D Water Utilities Standard Practice U-5-Sm, San Francisco, California 
 

Public Utilities Commission, November 16, 2010, Standard Practice For Determing Fixed Capital And 

Rate Base Of Class B, C And D Water Utilities  Standard Practice U-5-Sm  Decision On The 2010 General 

Rate Case For  Golden State Water Company Region I, San Francisco, California 

Public Utilities Commission, August 2010, Joint Motion Of The Golden State Water Company And The 

Division Of Ratepayers Advocates To Approve A Settlement Agreement,  San Francisco, California 

Division of Ratepayers Advocates, May 18, 2010, Report on the Results of Operations of Golden State 

Water Company Region I Ojai District for Test Year 2011 and Escalation Year 2012 Application 10-01-

09 , San Francisco, California 

Casitas Municipal Water District, July 2010, Casitas Municipal Water District 2010-2011 Operations 

Budget ,  Oakview, California 

Division of Ratepayers Advocates, August 13, 2010, Reply Brief Of The Division Of Ratepayer 
Advocates Application 10-01-009, San Francisco, California 
 
 
 
 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 33 of 57 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit A 

Casitas Municipal Water District Boundaries 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 34 of 57 
 

Exhibit B 

 

Approximate Boundaries of Golden State Water  

Company Service Area  

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 35 of 57 
 

 

 

Exhibit C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(1) (2)

Meter Size Rated Flow Total 

in Inches in GPM Meters

5/8 15 1938

3/4 20 195

1 50 543

1 1/2 120 63

2 160 140

3 320 7

4 1000 1

6 2000 2

Total 2889

(2) From Schedule D-5  "Number of Meters and Services on 

Pipe System at End of Year" - (Golden STate Dec 2009)

Inventory of Meters by Size and Flow Rating

Exhibit C

(1) Ratings based on meters manufactured by Sensus Meter 

Company.  



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 36 of 57 
 

Exhibit D-1 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 37 of 57 
 

Exhibit D-2 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 38 of 57 
 

Exhibit E-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 39 of 57 
 

Exhibit E-2 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 40 of 57 
 

Exhibit F 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                   Chart A

          Golden State vs. Casitas Charges

           For Various Types of Customers

Golden Casitas

5/8" Meter - 16 CCF 115.07$     51.62$    

5/8" Meter - 26 CCF 151.14$     62.54$    

5/8" Meter - 36 CCF 187.10$     76.01$    

1.0" Meter - 72 CCF 366.04$     157.80$  

2.0" Meter - 145 CCF 1,102.30$  391.10$  

        Casitas charges based 9.2.4 Rate Schedule (Residential Rates)

Golden State charges based (excluding 

surcharges) Cal PUC Sheet 5990-W



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 41 of 57 
 

Exhibit G 

 

 

 

 

 

    Chart B

GSWC CMWD GSWC (4)CMWD

(1) 90 32.67$    27.00$    Increase Increase

91 35.48$    28.32$    1.086 1.049

92 38.54$    25.59$    1.086 0.904

93 41.86$    28.13$    1.086 1.099

94 45.46$    29.14$    1.086 1.036

95 49.37$    31.07$    1.086 1.067

96 53.63$    33.06$    1.086 1.064

97 58.24$    34.02$    1.086 1.029

98 63.26$    35.07$    1.086 1.031

(2) 99 74.64$    36.94$    1.180 1.053

00 75.05$    39.26$    1.006 1.063

01 71.43$    42.41$    0.952 1.080

02 72.27$    45.02$    1.012 1.062

03 73.86$    50.76$    1.022 1.128

04 77.04$    51.62$    1.043 1.017

05 83.28$    57.16$    1.081 1.107

06 87.69$    61.32$    1.053 1.073

07 92.25$    64.95$    1.052 1.059

08 124.47$  60.94$    1.349 0.938

09 121.74$  62.54$    0.978 1.026

(3) 10 119.55$  62.54$    1.262

11 151.14$  62.54$    

Average increase over 20 Years 1.079 1.042

(2) Rate of Increases 1999-2009 (Golden State August 2010)

(3) Includes Surcharges PUC Advise Letter 1393-W

(4) Casitas Rate History from Casitas Archives Residential Rate

(1) 1990 Charge is from L.A. Times March 22,1990.  Rate 

increase Straight-line average from 1990 to 1999

Golden State and Casitas Historical Increases in Water 

Charges to "Typical Customer"



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 42 of 57 
 

 

Exhibit H 

 

                           Estimated Distribution of Bi-monthly Water Use

                            Among Golden State and Casitas Water Rate Tiers

Casitas Golden State

CCF Revenue CCF Revenue

=>10 0.98 113954 94,696$          113954 380,608$        

=>15 0.9 52326 43,483$          52326 188,164$        

=>20 0.75 43605 36,236$          43605 156,804$        

=>26 0.6 41861 53,038$          41861 150,531$        

=>30 0.4 18605 23,572$          18605 66,903$          

=>34 0.3 13954 17,679$          13954 50,177$          

=>40 0.2 13954 23,275$          13954 50,177$          

=>75 0.01 4070 6,788$            4070 17,101$          

Total 302328 298,767$        302328 1,060,465$    

Average 5/8 inch service 26.00

uses :

Casitas (*) Golden State

CCF Revenue CCF Revenue

=>10 0.98 113954 94,696$          113954 380,608$        

=>20 0.95 110466 91,797$          110466 397,236$        

=>34 0.85 138373 175,319$        138373 497,590$        

=>40 0.75 52326 87,280$          52326 188,164$        

=>75 0.18 73256 122,192$        73256 307,823$        

=>100 0.08 23256 38,791$          23256 97,722$          

=>150 0.04 23256 35,442$          23256 97,722$          

=>250 0.02 23256 35,442$          23256 97,722$          

558144 680,959$        558144 2,064,586$    

Totals 860472 979,726$        860472 3,125,052$    

1.14$               

(*) Casitas revenues for sales over 100 

CCF are calculated at the CMWD 

Golden State 2009 tiered rates based on PUC Sheet No. 5894-W excluding all 

surcharges (Exhibit D-2)

Estimated distribution of 

bi-monthly use among 

5/8 & 3/4 metered 

Estimated distribution of 

bi-monthly use among 

1.0' & larger metered 

Golden State reported total water service revenues of $ 4,308,000 in Dec 2009.  

They also reported 859,187 CCF of water sold.  Based on 2880 active services, 

revenues from meter charges were $1.92 million resulting in quantitative 

water revenues of $2.388 million. (Golden State Dec. 2009)



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 43 of 57 
 

Exhibit I-1 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 44 of 57 
 

Exhibit I-2 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 45 of 57 
 

Exhibit I-3 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 46 of 57 
 

Exhibit J-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 47 of 57 
 

 

 

Exhibit J-2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 48 of 57 
 

Exhibit K 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 49 of 57 
 

Exhibit L-1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 50 of 57 
 

Exhibit L-2 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 51 of 57 
 

Exhibit L-3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 52 of 57 
 

Exhibit L-4 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 53 of 57 
 

Exhibit L-5 

 

 

 

 

 



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 54 of 57 
 

Exhibit O 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Data for Chart C

Year Golden State Casitas Surcharge Casitas w/Surcharge

2010 4,222,000.00$            1,815,068.08$            1,815,068.08$              

2011 5,045,716.05$            1,898,606.78$            2,151,180.00$            4,049,786.78$              

2012 5,268,736.70$            1,982,525.20$            2,151,180.00$            4,133,705.20$              

2013 5,501,614.86$            2,070,152.81$            2,151,180.00$            4,221,332.81$              

2014 5,744,786.23$            2,161,653.57$            2,151,180.00$            4,312,833.57$              

2015 5,998,705.79$            2,257,198.66$            2,151,180.00$            4,408,378.66$              

2016 6,263,848.58$            2,356,966.84$            2,151,180.00$            4,508,146.84$              

2017 6,540,710.69$            2,461,144.77$            2,151,180.00$            4,612,324.77$              

2018 6,829,810.10$            2,569,927.37$            2,151,180.00$            4,721,107.37$              

2019 7,131,687.71$            2,683,518.16$            2,151,180.00$            4,834,698.16$              

2020 7,446,908.30$            2,802,129.66$            2,151,180.00$            4,953,309.66$              

2021 7,776,061.65$            2,925,983.79$            2,151,180.00$            5,077,163.79$              

2022 8,119,763.58$            3,055,312.28$            2,151,180.00$            5,206,492.28$              

2023 8,478,657.13$            3,190,357.08$            2,151,180.00$            5,341,537.08$              

2024 8,853,413.77$            3,331,370.86$            2,151,180.00$            5,482,550.86$              

2025 9,244,734.66$            3,478,617.46$            2,151,180.00$            5,629,797.46$              

         Total Projected Costs GSWC vs. CMWD Based on Historical Average Rate Adjustments



Feasibility Analysis – March 20, 2011 (RHH) 
 

Page 55 of 57 
 

 

 

Exhibit P 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         Data forChart D

Total Project Costs Total Project Costs

Golden State Casitas + Surcharge

2010 119.46$                        62.54$                          

2011 151.14$                        127.54$                        

2012 163.08$                        130.31$                        

2013 175.97$                        133.19$                        

2014 189.87$                        136.21$                        

2015 204.87$                        139.36$                        

2016 221.06$                        142.64$                        

2017 238.53$                        146.08$                        

2018 257.38$                        149.66$                        

2019 277.71$                        153.40$                        

2020 299.66$                        157.31$                        

2021 323.33$                        161.39$                        

2022 348.88$                        165.65$                        

2023 376.45$                        170.10$                        

2024 406.19$                        174.75$                        

2025 438.29$                        179.60$                        



 

 
 

  

 

 

 

Rated Flow Monthly Annual Total Est. (3) Net Total Annual Allocation Water use Consumption Annual Cost Annual CMWD

Meter Size in GPM (1) Assessment Assessment Meters (2) Exemptions Taxable Assessment By Size Bi-monthly (4) per Meter Size GSW (5) Water Cost

5/8 15 30.75 369 500 0 200 73,800.00$              3.5% 16 48000 691.06$                 309.70$                 

5/8 15 30.75$            369$                1438 0 1438 530,622.00$           25.4% 26 224328 906.82$                 389.69$                 

3/4 20 41.00$            492$                195 4 191 93,972.00$              4.5% 30 35100 1,173.72$             405.66$                 

1 50 102.50$          1,230$            543 12 531 653,130.00$           31.3% 70 228060 2,544.00$             926.80$                 

1 1/2 120 246.00$          2,952$            63 4 59 174,168.00$           8.3% 150 56700 5,469.36$             2,292.22$             

2 160 328.00$          3,936$            140 16 124 488,064.00$           23.4% 250 210000 8,440.26$             3,792.28$             

3 320 656.00$          7,872$            7 4 3 23,616.00$              1.1% 475 19950 16,014.66$           6,202.62$             

4 1000 2,050.00$      24,600$          1 1 24,600.00$              1.2% 1400 8400 39,165.96$           15,114.96$           

6 2000 4,100.00$      49,200$          2 2 98,400.00$              4.7% 2400 28800 68,371.56$           27,450.78$           

Totals 40 2,086,572.00$        100.0% 811338

(1) Capacities based on Senus meter company ratings

(2) GSWC Dec 2009

(3) Estimated 40 tax exempt properties - actual may vary in number an size

(4) Water use for 5/8 meter is "typical customer"  others in increased in proportion to size only to illustrate examples of cost to each type of customer

(5) GSWC rates Cal PUC Sheet No. 599-W excluding surcharges

(6) Total sales based on GSWC 2009 reported actuals (Golden State Dec. 2009)

Debt Service on Property at $2.05 per GPM of Meter Capacity to Fund 

$35.0 million in General Obligation Bonds

           Debt Service of Property Taxes

Exhibit M 



An Analysis of the Financial Feasibility of Providing Lower Cost Water Service to the Ojai Service Area of Golden State Water Company 

February 15, 2011 

 

Page 2 of 57 
 

 

 

Bi-monthly Annual Annual Savings

Rated Flow Total Water use Total Consumption Bi-monthly Annual CMWD CMWD per 

Meter Size in GPM (1) Meters (2) Bi-monthly (3) per Meter Size GSW (4) GSW W/surcharge W/surcharge Meter

5/8 15 1938 26 302328 151.14$                 906.82$                 127.54$          765.25$                 141.56$             

3/4 20 195 30 35100 195.62$                 1,173.72$             142.61$          855.66$                 318.06$             

1 50 543 70 228060 424.00$                 2,544.00$             329.47$          1,976.80$             567.20$             

1 1/2 120 63 150 56700 911.56$                 5,469.36$             757.04$          4,542.22$             927.14$             

2 160 140 225 189000 1,406.71$             8,440.26$             1,194.55$      7,167.28$             1,272.98$           

3 320 7 425 17850 2,669.11$             16,014.66$           2,096.27$      12,577.62$           3,437.04$           

4 1000 1 1200 7200 6,527.66$             39,165.96$           5,519.16$      33,114.96$           6,051.00$           

6 2000 2 2000 24000 11,395.26$           68,371.56$           9,575.13$      57,450.78$           10,920.78$         

860238

(1) Capacities based on Senus meter company ratings

(2) GSWC Dec 2009

(4) GSWC rates Cal PUC Sheet No. 5990-W excluding surcharges

Debt Service On Water Rate Surcharge of $2.50 per CCF

(3) Water use for 5/8 meter is "typical customer"  others in increased in proportion to size only to illustrate 

examples of cost to each type of customer.  Customers using more than 100 CCF charged at business rate.

Exhibit N 









































































































































































 1

TOWN OF APPLE VALLEY  

BLUE RIBBON WATER COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 

August 18, 2011         6:00 p.m.  

The Apple Valley Blue Ribbon Water Committee will hold a public meeting in the 
Development Services Building Conference Center, South Room, 14975 Dale Evans 
Parkway, Apple Valley, California 92307 on Thursday, August 18, 2011 at 6:00 p.m.   

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IS INVITED.  Any member of the public may speak on any 
matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Blue Ribbon Water Committee.  If you 
wish to be heard on any item on the Committee’s agenda, including matters not on the 
agenda but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Committee, please so indicate by 
filling out a REQUEST TO SPEAK form and turn it in to the Town staff at the beginning 
of the meeting or before the item or matter is heard.  No action or discussion shall be 
undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that members of 
the Committee or Town staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under Government Code 
section 54954.3.  Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker.   

The Town of Apple Valley recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to those 
individuals with disabilities.  Please contact the Town Clerk’s Office at (760) 240-7000, 
ext. 7800 two working days prior to the scheduled meeting for any requests for 
reasonable accommodations.   

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Committee after distribution 
of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Town Clerk’s Office at 
14955 Dale Evans Parkway, Apple Valley, CA during normal business hours.   

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 p.m. 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – 3 MINUTES 

5. BUSINESS ITEMS 

a. Approval of Minutes from May 26, 2011 Meeting (See Attachment 5a) 

Potential Action: Consider and approve the May 26, 2011 Meeting Minutes. 

 

 



 2

b. Comprehensive Review and Discussion of:  “Update to Feasibility Analysis of 
Acquisition of the Apple Valley Ranchos Water System,” California Public Utilities 
Commission Proceedings Nos. A.11-01-001 and A.11-01-019, and Options for 
Potential Future Purchase of the Apply Valley Ranchos Water Company (See 
Attachment 5b) 

Potential Actions: The Chairman may create additional Ad Hoc Committees 
and appoint Committee members to those Ad Hoc 
Committees 

 The Committee may formulate recommendations to be 
forwarded to the Town Council 

6. AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

No Action Required: The Committee may receive reports from previously 
appointed Ad Hoc Committees 

7. SCHEDULING OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

Potential Action:  The Chairman may specify the time, location and date of a  
    future Blue Ribbon Water Committee meeting. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, LA VONDA M-PEARSON, Town Clerk, Town of Apple Valley, do hereby affirm that a 
copy of the foregoing agenda was posted at DSB Conference Center 72 hours in 
advance of this meeting. 

 
      
La Vonda M-Pearson, Town Clerk 



 
 
Council Meeting Date:  07/26/2011 10-1  
 

TOWN OF  
APPLE VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 
AGENDA MATTER 

 
 
 
Subject Item: 
 
REFERRAL OF THE PRELIMINARY “UPDATE OF FEASIBILITY ANALYSIS OF 
ACQUISITION OF THE APPLE VALLEY RANCHOS WATER SYSTEM” TO THE 
BLUE RIBBON WATER COMMITTEE FOR REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
Summary Statement:  
 
The Town of Apple Valley is currently reviewing the feasibility of acquiring a privately 
held water utility located within the Town.  Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company 
(“AVR”), owned by the Park Water Company, serves approximately 19,500 water 
customers and projects annual revenues of $19.5 million at current rates.   
 
The Town is particularly interested in the financial feasibility of acquisition if operation 
and maintenance of the utility could be less costly over time under public ownership and 
if it would be financially prudent for the Town to acquire AVR.  
 
The Town solicited Bartle Wells Associates to prepare a preliminary updated feasibility 
analysis (“Feasibility Analysis”) on the acquisition of the AVR by the Town.  The 
Feasibility Analysis is intended to provide the Town with a rough approximation of the 
potential costs of the acquisition of the AVR.  The Feasibility Analysis estimates that the 
total acquisition costs could range from $52.2 million to $125.7 million, depending on the 
methods used to value AVR and the type of financing transaction that would be 
necessary in order for the Town to acquire AVR. 
 
Recommended Action:  
 
Receive and file the preliminary Feasibility Analysis prepared by Bartle Wells Associates 
and refer the preliminary Feasibility Analysis to the Blue Ribbon Water Committee for 
Review and Recommendations regarding both the financial feasibility of acquiring Apple 
Valley Ranchos Water Company through public financing and the advantages and 
disadvantages of public ownership should public debt be used to finance such an 
acquisition. The Blue Ribbon Water Committee is requested to provide its 
recommendations in writing to the Town Council within sixty (60) days. 

 
(Continued) 

 
 
Proposed by:__John E. Brown, Town Attorney     Item Number________ 
 
Approval___________________________________ Budgeted Item   Yes   No   N/A 
 

swickstrum
Highlight

swickstrum
Highlight



 
 
Council Meeting Date:  07/26/2011 10-2  
 

Summary Statement  
Page 2 
 
 
The Feasibility Analysis also provides an overview of financing alternatives should the 
Town decide to proceed with the acquisition of AVR.  General obligation bonds, Mellow-
Roos bonds, assessment bonds, and revenue-supported borrowing were all examined 
as possible financing methods in the Feasibility Analysis. 
The Feasibility Analysis also examined operations of the water system under public 
ownership.  This examination included revenue sources, operating costs, and risks of 
public ownership.  The Feasibility Analysis generally concludes that operating costs 
could be less under public ownership than private ownership, when all factors are 
considered. 
 
Finally, the Feasibility Analysis examined the overall financial feasibility of the 
acquisition.  Bartle Wells Associates concluded that the acquisition of the water utility is 
financially feasible for the Town under both a high and low purchase price estimate, 
given the financing alternatives and potential costs savings inherent in a municipally run 
utility. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Preliminary Feasibility Analysis prepared by Bartle Wells Associates (available for 

review in the Town Clerk’s Office). 



BRWC Meeting 06/13/11 

MINUTES 
 

BLUE RIBBON WATER COMMITTEE 
 

June 13, 2011 
 

 
The meeting of the Apple Valley Blue Water Committee was called to order at           
6:05 p.m. by Chairman Coleman at 14975 Dale Evans Parkway, Apple Valley, CA. 
 
The following members were present: 
 
Chairman Carl Coleman; Committee Members Ronald Barbieri; John Bernier; Jim 
Chandler; David Christman; Lawrence McCarthy; Bernadette McNulty; Wilson So; 
Robert Lee Sturges; Joseph Tartaglini; Rob Turner; Jack Collingsworth.  Absent: Vice-
Chairman Rick Piercy; Committee Members Bill McDaniel; Pat Orr 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Reggie Lamson, Apple Valley Ranchos, distributed a handout to the Blue Ribbon Water 
Committee of a rate comparison and graph of the water bills for various water providers.  
Mr. Lamson commented on the average monthly water bill for homes with traditional 
landscaping and those with water smart landscaping. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
a. Presentation – Brief presentation by Bartle Wells to update the Committee on 

the Progress of the Feasibility Study for the Water System Acquisition. 
 

 
Chairman Coleman provided the Committee with packets of the presentation by Bartle 
Wells.  He noted that the packets include the transcript of the testimonies taken at the 
Blue Ribbon Water Committee Meeting attended by the Public Utility Commission for the 
rate hearings. 
 
Mr. Reed Schmidt, Principal, Bartle Wells Associates, provided the Committee with an 
update of the Feasibility Study.  He reviewed the key areas of focus by Bartle Wells to 
determine the feasibility of the Town acquiring the water system. He also commented on 
recommendation by the Divisional Rate Advocates regarding rate increases.   

 
b. Discuss Other Matters Within the Committee’s Jurisdiction. 
 

 
Chairman Coleman asked a series of questions regarding what the State Law requires 
with respect to alternate energy needed to pump water and how it will affect the cost of 
water. 
 
Mr. Reed Schmidt, Principal, Bartle Wells Associates, stated that there are multiple 
issues surrounding the movement of water from Northern California to Southern 
California.  He explained that if the Town were to acquire the water system, it would be 



BRWC Meeting 06/13/11 

their responsibility to collect revenues to pay those costs.  He also stated that the same 
would apply if the water system were privately owned.  
 
Chairman Coleman asked a series of questions regarding the use of eminent domain for 
the purchase of utilities. 
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, stated that it is the Town’s desire to avoid litigation and 
achieve the acquisition through negotiations.  He responded to questions by the 
Committee regarding eminent domain. 
 
Mr. Schmidt, Principal, Bartle Wells Associates, commented on his experience with other 
water systems of acquisitions by public entities, that have used their right of eminent 
domain. 
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, stated that the Town Council would be looking to the Blue 
Ribbon Water Committee to address whether public policy supports a recommendation 
to utilize the power of eminent domain. 
 
Committee Member McNulty expressed concern regarding municipal water companies 
that are being sold due to aging infrastructure. 
 
Committee Member So felt that the Committee should look at the merits of the Town 
purchasing the water system and address any concerns surrounding the aging condition 
of the system at a later time. 
 
Mr. Schmidt, Principal, Bartle Wells Associates, explained the steps that would be taken 
if the Town were to go through with the purchase of the system.  These steps would 
include engaging with an Engineer who would respond to the aging conditions of the 
system and obtaining an appraisal.  He answered questions from the Committee 
regarding the affects that the proposed merger would have on the Town’s acquisition. 
 
Committee Member Turner questioned the bonding capacity for the Town of Apple 
Valley. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the Town’s ability to create a sinking fund for the purpose 
of purchasing the company at a future date based on negotiations with the Carlyle 
Group. 
 
Committee Member Tartaglini asked a series of questions regarding the bond rating and 
what the capacity is to borrow. 
 
Committee Member McNulty stated that the bond rating has dropped significantly to all 
municipalities as a result of decreased property values in California. 
 
Committee Member Christman requested to know what would happen if the bond failed. 
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, stated that the Town Council has expressed no position 
with respect to the exercise of power of eminent domain.  He stated that as Town 
Attorney, he would ask for the Council’s consideration of eminent domain after the Blue 
Ribbon Water Committee has had an opportunity to review all of the risks and rewards of 
ensuring the source of supply for funding the eminent domain.  He also responded to 

swickstrum
Highlight

swickstrum
Highlight



BRWC Meeting 06/13/11 

concerns by the Blue Ribbon Water Committee regarding the possibility of the Town 
facing liability.   
 
Committee Member Barbieri requested to know, for the purpose of the Regional 
Protection Policy Report, when the value of the water rights will be added to the report. 
 
Mr. Schmidt, Principal, Bartle Wells Associates, explained that the water rights are 
attached to the water utility; if you buy the water system you get access to the water 
rights.  He stated that Bartle Wells is currently looking into this as part of the next step to 
make sure that assumption is correct. 
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, explained that the value of the water rights would have to 
be analyzed as part of the feasibility analysis.  He also explained that because the water 
rights held by Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company have been generally represented 
to Public Utility Commission as being dedicated to a public use, they are not readily 
transferrable or in any way marketable.  
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, stated that the Town Council is appreciative for the time 
and effort by the Blue Ribbon Water Committee.  He explained that the Town Council 
would like an opportunity to meet with Mr. Schmidt to determine a schedule of 
finalization of the study prior to the Committee receiving a draft.  Mr. Brown reassured 
the Committee that the study will be finalized in the near future. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, suggested to the Blue Ribbon Water Committee to refer to 
the upcoming hearings in front of the CPUC for information regarding the financial profile 
of Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company. 
 
Committee Member McNulty, commented on her attendance at the PUC Hearing.  She 
expressed concern regarding a letter she received from the PUC stating that the rate 
case has been transferred to a new judge.   
 
John Brown, Town Attorney, stated that BB&K is currently working on a time and 
responsibility chart to provide to the Blue Ribbon Water Committee. 
 
Committee Member Barbieri requested that the Committee receive a copy of the 
estimated cash flow. 
 
David Mueller, Hi Desert Politics.org, commented on his attendance at the Mojave Water 
Agency Urban Water Plan Meeting.  He expressed concern regarding the reasons why 
he felt the Carlyle Group is interested in the water rights.  He recommended that the 
Committee look into the Monterey amendment to better understand what happens when 
a public entity is turned into a private agency.  
 
Committee Member McNulty commented on the request that she made to the Mojave 
Water Agency for information regarding who owns all the water rights in the Town of 
Apple Valley. 
 
Committee Member So encourages that the Blue Ribbon Water Committee meetings be 
attended by all its members. 

swickstrum
Highlight

swickstrum
Highlight



BRWC Meeting 06/13/11 

 
Chairman Coleman noted that Committee Member Bill Mc Daniel has undergone 
surgery; therefore, he has changed the Chairmanship of the Mojave Water Agency 
Committee to Bernadette Mc Nulty.   
 
Committee Member Mc Nulty requested assistance from Committee Member So who is 
experienced in water rights. 
 
c. Approval of Minutes from May 26, 2011 
 
Chairman Coleman announced the need to move the approval of the Minutes from May 
26, 2011 to the next Blue Ribbon Water Committee meeting to be held on June 29, 
2011.  
 
COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS: 
 
 
SCHEDULING OF FUTURE MEETINGS: 
 
Chairman Coleman announced the next Blue Ribbon Water Committee is scheduled for 
June 29, 2011. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion by Interim Chairman Coleman, seconded by Committee Member McNulty, and 
unanimously carried to adjourn the Blue Ribbon Water Committee at 7:24 p.m. 
 



  

 
 

 
 
 
 

Town of Apple Valley 
 
 
 

Update of Feasibility Analysis of 
Acquisition of the Apple Valley 
Ranchos Water System 
 
 
 
FINAL REPORT 
July 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 
Independent Public Finance Advisors 
1889 Alcatraz Avenue 
Berkeley CA  94703-2714 
Tel.  510/653-3399 
Fax  510/653-3769 
www.bartlewells.com



Update of Feasibility Study i Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...................................................................... 1 

Acquisition Cost ................................................................................................................. 1 
Financing Alternatives ....................................................................................................... 2 
Operations under public ownership ................................................................................... 3 
Financial Feasibility ........................................................................................................... 4 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................... 6 

Town of Apple Valley ........................................................................................................ 6 
Purpose of Feasibility Study .............................................................................................. 6 

PRIVATELY-OWNED WATER UTILITY ............................................... 8 

Ownership .......................................................................................................................... 8 
Regulation .......................................................................................................................... 8 
Operation ............................................................................................................................ 8 
Water Supply and Consumption ........................................................................................ 8 
Water Rates ........................................................................................................................ 9 
Customers ......................................................................................................................... 13 
Revenues and Expenses ................................................................................................... 14 
Capital Improvements ...................................................................................................... 16 

POSSIBLE PURCHASE PRICES ....................................................... 17 
Stock Price ....................................................................................................................... 17 
Reproduction Cost New Less Depreciation ..................................................................... 20 
Capitalization of Net Income ........................................................................................... 22 
Sales of Other Water Systems .......................................................................................... 22 
Purchase Price Estimates Used In This Study.................................................................. 24 

TRANSACTION COSTS ..................................................................... 25 

Engineering Consultant .................................................................................................... 25 
Financial and Accounting ................................................................................................ 25 
Town Counsel .................................................................................................................. 25 
CEQA and Annexation .................................................................................................... 26 
Appraisals ......................................................................................................................... 26 
Condemnation Attorney and Trial ................................................................................... 26 
Contingency Reserve ....................................................................................................... 26 

FINANCING OPTIONS ....................................................................... 28 
General Obligation Bonds ................................................................................................ 28 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Bonds ........................................................... 29 
Assessment Bonds ............................................................................................................ 30 
Revenue-Supported Borrowing ........................................................................................ 32 

FINANCING COSTS ........................................................................... 34 
Property Tax Impact of General Obligation Bonds ......................................................... 36 
Special Tax Size for Mello-Roos Bonds .......................................................................... 36 
Impact of COP Issuance on Water Rates ......................................................................... 37 

OPERATION OF WATER UTILITY UNDER PUBLIC OWNERSHIP . 39 

Revenues under Public Ownership .................................................................................. 39 
Costs under Public Ownership ......................................................................................... 40 



Update of Feasibility Study ii Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Projected Net Revenues at Current Rates ........................................................................ 42 
Reserves ........................................................................................................................... 43 
Organization of the Town’s Water Enterprise ................................................................. 44 
Lost Revenues .................................................................................................................. 44 

RISKS OF PUBLIC OWNERSHIP ...................................................... 45 
FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY .................................................................. 47 
WATER RIGHTS ................................................................................. 49 
FINDINGS AND CONCLUSION ......................................................... 50 

NEXT STEPS ...................................................................................... 51 



Update of Feasibility Study 1                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Town of Apple Valley is considering the acquisition of two privately owned water 
utilities within the town.  Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company (AVR), which is owned 
by the Park Water Company, serves approximately 19,500 water customers and projects 
annual revenues of $19.5 million at current rates in 2012.  The second water system, which 
is referred to as the Apple Valley Customer Service Area, is owned by Golden State Water 
Company (GSWC), formerly Southern California Water Company. The GSWC acquisition 
is addressed in a separate report. 
 
The California Public Utilities Commission regulates AVR and Park Water and authorizes 
the water rates and charges. 
 
The Town is considering acquisition of the utility for a number of reasons, chief among 
them is the ability to set water rates and dictate various policies of the utility with respect 
to issues like water conservation, new water connections, and rate design.  In addition, 
certain aspects of the operation of the utility could be less costly under public ownership, 
through the elimination of both profit and tax payments included in the current rate 
structure, and also through reduced costs to finance capital improvements through tax-
exempt bonds.   

Acquisition Cost 
This feasibility analysis is intended to provide the Town with a bookend comparison for 
probable costs – the lowest and highest probable costs based on various valuation 
methodologies. BWA examined four methods to estimate the possible costs to purchase the 
two water systems:  reproduction cost new less depreciation, capitalization of net income, 
the stock price of the utility, and sales of other water systems. For the purpose of this 
analysis, BWA selected Replacement Cost New Less Depreciation (RCNLD) as the most 
likely “high end” purchase price and the estimated stock price of the AVR component of 
Park Water as the most likely “low end” purchase price. 
 
The RCNLD for the utility using the end of year 2010 figures is $138.7 million.  However 
after consideration of other elements of the potential acquisition (such as repayment of 
advances and intangibles), the RCNLD is adjusted to $121.5 million.  The adjusted 
RCNLD is the highest probable acquisition cost estimated by BWA.   
 
The calculated stock price of the utility is the low estimated acquisition cost at $47.9 
million. Pursuant to a Merger Agreement, Western Water Holdings will acquire 100% of 
the outstanding capital stock of Park Water and the total amount paid to the shareholders is 
$102 million. Park Water owns Apple Valley Ranchos and in addition to the Mountain 
Water Company. If the total share payment of $102 million is split between the water 
companies that Park Water owns proportional to the number of water customers, the 
payment for Apple Valley Ranchos capital stock would be $47.9 million. 
	



Update of Feasibility Study 2                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

	
Added to the estimates of the various purchase prices are estimates of transaction costs for 
attorneys, appraisers, financial consultants, and consulting engineers.  Total transaction 
costs are estimated to be $1.9 million if the purchases are negotiated, but if condemnation 
is required, the transaction costs are increased to $4.25 million.  Total acquisition costs 
equal the estimated purchase prices plus the higher estimated transaction costs. Total 
acquisition costs could range from $52.2 million to $125.7 million. 

Financing Alternatives 
Four financing alternatives are examined: general obligation bonds, Mello-Roos (special 
tax) bonds, assessment bonds, and revenue-supported borrowing such as certificates of 
participation.  Each financing method has its own costs and merits and complexities. 
 
General obligation (GO) bonds are debt instruments secured by the full faith and credit of 
the borrower.  The GO bond would be repaid through taxes levied at an equal percentage 
on all assessed property value within the Town of Apple Valley. GO bonds require 
approval by 2/3 of registered voters through a ballot measure. Of the financing options 
evaluated in this analysis, GO bonds are the lowest cost and are the easiest to administer. If 
a GO bond is used to finance the acquisition of AVR, the property tax rate is estimated to 
increase from $87 to $209 per $100,000 of assessed value.   
 
Mello-Roos or “special tax” bonds may also be used for acquisition of facilities. Under a 
Mello-Roos, the Town could form a Community Facilities District (CFD), and once 
formed, the District can issue bonds upon 2/3 approval of registered voters within the 
District.  Importantly, a CFD need not be co-terminus with the boundaries of the 
municipality forming the District. Instead, the Town could design the CFD boundary to be 
co-terminus with the boundary of the service area of the utility. Those within the CFD 
would be charged the tax based on a special formula of the CFD’s design. BWA assumes 
that the tax formula would be based on customer equivalent meters and the special tax is 
estimated to range from $138 to $329 per year.   
 
Assessment bonds are similar to the Mello Roos in that the Town can develop an 
assessment district that is co-terminus with the boundaries of the service area of the utility. 
Property owners within the district are charged the assessment based on the defined special 
benefits that they receive from the project. After the size of the assessment is determined, 
the assessment must be approved by a majority vote. 
 
Certificates of Participation (COPs) would allow the Town to enter into a tax-exempt lease 
financing arrangement in lieu of issuing bonds.  In the context of this proposed financing, a 
non-profit corporation or joint powers authority (like the Apple Valley Public Financing 
Authority) would purchase the utility and then subsequently lease or sell it on the basis of 
an installment sale to the Town of Apple Valley. The use of COPs would offer Apple 
Valley the ability to finance this acquisition with revenues generated solely from the 
customers receiving service from the publicly owned water utility.  There would be no 



Update of Feasibility Study 3                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

obligation on the Town to raise taxes or meet debt service with resources from its general 
fund.  In addition, COPs do not require voter approval in a general election and do not 
count as indebtedness under state constitutional debt limitations. 
 
If COPs were used, then water rates would have to be increased by as much as 44% to pay 
for the high acquisition cost. It is possible that if the Town is able to purchase the AVR 
system at the stock price of the utility (the lowest probable purchase price estimated in this 
report), then the water rates would not have to be increased over current rates.  

Operations under public ownership 
Under public ownership, the sources of revenue would be basically the same as they 
currently are for the private utility.  The primary source of revenue would be water rates 
and charges.  The current rate structure for AVR includes a meter charge that varies by 
meter-size and inclining block volumes charges; BWA anticipates that this rate structure 
would remain in place.   
 
Another revenue source is connection fees.  Under public ownership, the Town could set a 
connection fee that pays for expansion-related capital projects caused by new customers 
and that recovers from new customers a “buy-in” amount related to the existing water 
system.  Another way to collect revenue from new water customers are advances (payback 
agreements), which is the primary method currently used by AVR.  The new customer, 
before connecting to the water system, pays the utility an advance to recover the costs of 
water lines and the service connection.  The advances are refunded to the customers over a 
set period of time. 
 
A revenue source available to public agencies and not to private companies is voter-
approved taxes.  They could be either ad valorem property taxes to pay for general 
obligation bonds or special taxes to pay Mello-Roos bonds. 
 
Using the rates and charges authorized by the California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC) in the past rate case for the AVR, the estimate of annual operating revenues for 
the water enterprise would be approximately $19.5 million in 2012. In the current rate case 
the AVR hopes to gain approval from the CPUC to increase its revenues by 20% up to 
about $23.1 million in 2012.  
 
Operating costs under public ownership would be less than under private ownership.  A 
public agency does not pay income or property taxes or franchise fees while a private 
owner does.  A public owner typically does not budget for depreciation, which is a non-
cash expense, while a private utility, regulated by the CPUC, includes depreciation in the 
revenue requirement to be recovered in utility rates.  Finally, a public agency does not earn 
a profit on its utility enterprises, while a private business can.  A return on investment is 
allowed by the CPUC as a cost of service (i.e., revenue requirement) to be recovered with 
rates and charges. 
 



Update of Feasibility Study 4                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

BWA estimates the first year’s operating costs, which includes operation and maintenance 
of the water facilities, administrative and general expenses, and an allocation of Town 
overhead, to be approximately $13.5 million. Also included in this cost is an estimated $2 
million in annual cost for replacement of water mains.  
 
Net operating revenues are simply operating revenues less operating costs.  BWA 
estimates net revenues for the first year of public ownership would be approximately $6 
million. 
 
Revenues to local governments would be reduced under public ownership.  The private 
water company pays property taxes and franchise fees; a public enterprise does not.  BWA 
estimates that property taxes would be reduced by $425,000 and franchise fees by 
$192,000 due to public ownership.   
 
Moreover, there are risks of public ownership, serious responsibilities, and uncertainties 
confronting the Town.  The Town would be starting a new enterprise and identified issues 
include: 

 GSWC and AVR service boundaries do not exactly coincide with the Town’s 
boundaries and the two systems are not interconnected, 

 adequacy of future water supply is uncertain, 
 there could be bill delinquencies, 
 advances of $31.1 million would need to be repaid, 
 higher O&M costs could occur in the future, 
 future capital improvements and replacements are necessary, 
 higher water quality standards may occur, 
 and, most importantly, the purchase prices are unknown.   

 
Finally, while it is assumed for the purposes of this analysis, that water rights would 
transfer to the Town after acquiring the utilities, there is uncertainty as to the future costs 
of these water supplies.   

Financial Feasibility 
BWA evaluated the economic attractiveness of the water system acquisition by looking at 
payback and net present value analyses. BWA assumes net operating revenues (operating 
revenues less operating expenses) to be $6 million under public ownership. At the high 
acquisition cost estimate of $125.7 million, it would take 21 years to pay back the 
acquisition cost. However, at the low acquisition estimate of $52.2 million, it would take 9 
years to pay back this acquisition cost – a more reasonable payback period. 
 
Assuming a discount rate of 5.25%, the present value of net operating revenues over the 25 
year life of the system is $82.7 million. The present value of net operating revenue is less 
than the high acquisition cost, but greater than 1.5 times the low cost estimate. 
 



Update of Feasibility Study 5                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

It would be economically attractive to the Town to acquire the AVR water system, if the 
acquisition cost was in the low range of the estimates developed by BWA in this feasibility 
update. A summary of the analyses is presented in Table ES1. 
 
 
      
Table ES1 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Summary of Acquisition Costs 
      

Stock Price RCNLD 
  (low probable cost) (high probable cost) 

Purchase Price $47,940,000  $121,469,000 
Transaction Cost 4,248,000  4,248,000 
Total Acquisition Cost 52,188,000  125,717,000 

Amount Borrowed 
Financing with 

GO Bonds 52,465,000  125,995,000 
Special Tax 58,210,000  139,445,000 
COPs 58,535,000  140,285,000 

Financial Impact 
GO Bonds (Tax per $100,000 AV) $87  $209 
Special Tax ($ per equivalent meter) $138  $329 
COPs (% rate increase) 0.3% 44.0% 

Years to reach payback of acquisition cost 9 21 
Present value of discounted net revenues over 25 years (1) 82,705,000  82,705,000 
Less the acquisition cost (52,188,000) (125,717,000) 
Discounted net revenues over 25 years less acquisition cost $30,517,000  ($43,012,000) 
  

AV = Assessed Value 
(1)  The discount rate is assumed to be 5.25% 
      

  



Update of Feasibility Study 6                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

INTRODUCTION 
The Town of Apple Valley (the Town) is considering the acquisition of two privately 
owned water companies, Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company (AVR) and the Apple 
Valley Customer Service Area (CSA) of the Mountain-Desert District of the Golden State 
Water Company (GSWC).  This report provides a feasibility analysis of the acquisition of 
AVR. The acquisition of GSWC Apple Valley CSA is analyzed in separate feasibility 
analysis. 
 
Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) developed an initial feasibility analysis of this acquisition 
in 2005, and presented that analysis to the Town Council in April 2006.  In January of 
2010 a draft update to the feasibility study was provided to the Town staff. There has been 
no official action taken on the acquisition since that time.   
 
The Town has requested that BWA update its feasibility analysis, which is the subject of 
this report. 

Town of Apple Valley 
The Town is a general law municipal corporation, incorporated in November 1988.  The 
Town operates under a Council-Manager form of government and currently provides the 
following services: public safety (police protection), streets, planning and zoning, waste 
management, and general administrative services.  The Town has a public works 
department and owns and operates a sewer enterprise.  The Town provides sewer services 
to the general public and collects user charges to recover the costs of the sewer services.   
 
The Town does not currently own or operate a water system.  The Apple Valley Water 
District was merged with the Town in 1989.  In 1993 the District was dissolved and a 
special enterprise fund was created.  In 1998 the water facilities were sold to the Apple 
Valley Ranchos Water Company involving an exchange of the Jess Ranch wastewater 
system which was sold to the Town in 1999. 
 
Apple Valley Public Financing Authority was established to provide financing to the Town 
for specified capital improvement projects.  The governing board of the financing authority 
is composed of the same members that serve as Town Council members. 

Purpose of Feasibility Study 
The study presents an updated financial analysis of the acquisition by the Town of the 
Apple Valley Ranchos water system.  It re-evaluates the feasibility of the acquisition using 
updated financial information from the utility and the General Rate Case Application 11-
01-001, filed with the California Public Utilities Commission in January 2011.  The focus 
of the study is to examine the potential financial impact of the acquisition on the Town’s 
taxpayers and water ratepayers.   
 



Update of Feasibility Study 7                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

More specifically, the study identifies what are the potential costs to own, operate, and 
maintain the water facilities and what are the potential sources of revenues to pay these 
costs.  The feasibility analysis is based on many assumptions, financial estimates and 
information presented in the water company’s past and current rate cases before the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). 
 
Of note, BWA’s study is not an appraisal; BWA does not offer an opinion of the value of 
the water facilities.  Instead, this study indicates the possible feasibility of acquisition and 
ownership by the Town. 
 
The updated feasibility study presents a preliminary analysis of the costs of operating the 
acquired water utility under public ownership.  It is a first step.  If the Town decides to go 
forward, additional steps, including refinements of study assumptions and estimates, need 
to be taken before the Town would make any offers to purchase the water system.  These 
steps are listed at the end of this report.



Update of Feasibility Study 8                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

PRIVATELY-OWNED WATER UTILITY 
The Town of Apple Valley is served by two privately-owned water utilities within its 
incorporated boundaries: Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company (AVR) and Golden State 
Water Company Apple Valley Customer Service Area (Apple Valley CSA).  The 
following section provides information on the AVR operations. 

Ownership 
Incorporated as a public utility in 1946, AVR is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Park Water Company (Park).  Park Water Company is headquartered in Downey, 
California and owns and operates utilities in California and Montana.  Currently, Park 
provides engineering, financial, regulatory, and other management services to all of its 
subsidiaries from its main office in Downey.   

Regulation 
As a private utility providing water service in California, AVR is regulated by the rules of 
the California Public Utilities Commission.  Every three years, AVR applies to the CPUC 
for revenue increases through a General Rate Case (GRC) proceeding. The last GRC was 
in 2009 and the current GRC is for Test Year 2012. In the application for the GRC Test 
Year 2012, AVR has requested a 20% increase in revenues.  
 
Throughout the GRC proceeding, the Town and other parties have the right to request 
intervenor status in the case and to submit testimony before the CPUC Administrative Law 
Judge in order to protest the revenue increase. AVR has the opportunity to settle the case 
with the parties, or if settlement cannot be reached, parties can present legal briefs before 
the judge. The Administrative Law Judge can then determine the merits of the GRC 
application and the testimony of the parties and make a ruling on the revenue increase.  For 
the GRC Test Year 2012, intervenor testimony is due in May, evidentiary hearings are to 
be conducted in June, and briefs will be filed in July and August 2011.  

Operation                                                                                                                      
AVR maintains a small office in Apple Valley where company administrative, customer 
service, and accounting functions are based.  According to its “Revenue Requirements” 
report for Test Year 2012, AVR requested authorization for 48 regular full-time employees 
and two temporary employees for a total of 50 in the Apple Valley office (main office staff 
providing support to AVR are not included in this number).   

Water Supply and Consumption 
AVR produces domestic water from 24 different wells, with a total combined well capacity 
of 41.9 million gallons per day.  The company produced 14,758 acre feet of water in 2009 
for domestic use and sold 13,503 acre feet to metered customers. System-wide 
unaccounted for water is projected at 9%.   
 



Update of Feasibility Study 9                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Average unit consumption within the AVR service area has declined steadily over the 
years, from a peak of 449.3 ccf per residential customer per year in 1970, to 241.1 in 2009.  
AVR has an active water conservation program that includes extensive public outreach as 
well as investments in leak repair and operational planning to reduce water waste.   
 
All water produced by AVR is located in the Mojave River Ground Water Basin, currently 
adjudicated by the Mojave River Basin Area Watermaster.  AVR currently has a Base 
Annual Production Right (BAP) of 13,330 acre feet of water per year.  However, due to a 
groundwater shortage, the Mojave Watermaster administers a stipulated judgment that 
Producers in the Basin can only pump up to 60% of this amount, or 7,998 acre feet in total.  
This is AVR’s Free Production Allowance (FPA).  The 40% reduction from BAP to FPA 
remains unchanged from the last time this study was completed.   
 
AVR has exceeded its FPA since 1995.  To make up for this shortfall in supply, AVR 
leases or purchases water rights from other agencies or individuals, including Jess Ranch 
Utilities.  To the extent that AVR is not able to find unused FPA to transfer,  AVR 
estimates that the unit cost of these transfers is currently $166.00 per acre-foot, though 
future FPA transfers from other Producers have been exhausted.1   
 
AVR estimates the leased water rights expense to total $1,664,248 in 2012.   

Water Rates 
Table 1 details the current water rates for AVR residential service while Table 2 details  
non-residential water rates.  Both sets of rates were adopted by CPUC through Decision 
08-09-026 on September 18, 2008. 
  

                                                 
1 For the purposes of the updated feasibility analysis, BWA assumes the Town would take over the BAP 
from AVR and be able to lease or purchase additional water rights from other agencies or individuals under 
the same terms and conditions. The Town’s legal counsel on the acquisition would need to offer a legal 
opinion on water rights and whether this assumption is valid.   



Update of Feasibility Study 10                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
    
Table 1 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
AVR Current Rate Schedule - Residential 
    

Schedule 1 - General Metered Service - Residential 

Quantity Rates (1) 
Tier 1: 0 - 14 hundred cubic feet (ccf) $2.157 
Tier 2: 15 - 29 ccf 2.277 
Tier 3: Over 29 ccf 2.397 

Service Charge 
Meter Size 
5/8" x 3/4" 20.75 
3/4" 31.13 
1" 51.88 
1 1/2" 103.75 
2" 166.00 
3" 311.25 
4" 518.75 
6" 1,037.50 
8" 1,660.00 
10" 3,008.75 
  

Source:  Cal. P.U.C. Sheet 616-W 
(1) The quantity rates shown include an offset increase of $0.095 per ccf to 
account for increases in leased water rights 
    

 



Update of Feasibility Study 11                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
    
Table 2 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
AVR Water Company Current Rate Schedule - Non-residential 
    

Schedule 3 - General Metered Service - Non-Residential 

Quantity Rates (1) 
All water delivered $2.257 

Service Charge 
Meter Size 
5/8" x 3/4" 20.75 
3/4" 31.13 
1" 51.88 
1 1/2" 103.75 
2" 166.00 
3" 311.25 
4" 518.75 
6" 1,037.50 
8" 1,660.00 
10" 3,008.75 
  

Source:  Cal. P.U.C. Sheet 617-W 
(1) The quantity rates shown include an offset increases of $0.095 per ccf to 
account for increases in leased water rights 
    

 
 
In the current rate case before the CPUC, AVR has requested a 20.2% increase in 
revenues. The associated proposed residential rate increases are shown in Table 3 in 
comparison to the current rates. Table 4 shows the current and proposed rates for the non-
residential customers. 
 
  



Update of Feasibility Study 12                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
            
Table 3 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Current and Proposed Monthly Water Rates - Residential  
            

Schedule 1 - General Metered Service - Residential 

Quantity Rates Current Current Proposed Proposed % Increase 
Tier 1 0 - 14 ccf $2.157 0 - 13 ccf $2.538 17.66% 
Tier 2 14 - 29 ccf 2.277 13 - 26 ccf 2.855 25.38% 
Tier 3 > 29 ccf 2.397 > 26 ccf 3.172 32.33% 

Service Charge 
Meter Size 
5/8" x 3/4" $20.75 $22.94 10.55% 
3/4" 31.13 34.41 10.54% 
1" 51.88 57.35 10.54% 
1 1/2" 103.75 114.70 10.55% 
2" 166.00 183.52 10.55% 
3" 311.25 344.10 10.55% 
4" 518.75 573.50 10.55% 
6" 1,037.50 1,147.00 10.55% 
8" 1,660.00 1,835.00 10.54% 
10" 3,008.75 3,326.30 10.55% 
            

 
 
 

        
Table 4 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Current and Proposed Monthly Water Rates - Non-residential  
        

Schedule 3 - General Metered Service - Non-residential 

Quantity Rates Current Proposed % Increase 
All water delivered $2.257 $2.810 24.50% 

Service Charge 
Meter Size 
5/8" x 3/4" $20.75 $22.94 10.55% 
3/4" 31.13 34.41 10.54% 
1" 51.88 57.35 10.54% 
1 1/2" 103.75 114.70 10.55% 
2" 166.00 183.52 10.55% 
3" 311.25 344.10 10.55% 
4" 518.75 573.50 10.55% 
6" 1,037.50 1,147.00 10.55% 
8" 1,660.00 1,835.00 10.54% 
10" 3,008.75 3,326.30 10.55% 
        



Update of Feasibility Study 13                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Customers 
AVR currently serves approximately 19,500 water customers.  Over 91% of these 
customers are in the residential category, with commercial metered customers making up 
the bulk of the remainder (about 7%).  Customer growth has varied throughout the history 
of AVR, and is marked by high levels of customer growth in the 1970’s and 1980’s, 
stagnant or negative customer growth during the recession of the early 1990’s, and a return 
to high growth rates from 2000 through 2007, when the utility added and average of about 
700 new customers per year.  Since 2007, the impact of the housing downturn has driven 
growth rates significantly lower. In 2008, AVR only added a single customer. In 2009, 75 
customers were added.    
 
Table 5 details the current customer count for AVR.   
 
At the end of 2010, AVR estimates an outstanding balance of $31.1 million in advances for 
extension of service to new customers.  These advances are paid back by AVR, without 
interest, at an annual rate of 2.5%, and individual advances must be returned in full no later 
than 40 years from the original contract.  For 2012, AVR estimates a cost of $795,000 on 
these advances.        



Update of Feasibility Study 14                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
    
Table 5 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company - Projected Customers 2012 
    

Customers By Class (1) 
Residential 17,742
Business 1,320
Industrial 2
Public authority 42
Private fire service 189
Irrigation - Public Authority 5
Irrigation - Pressure 189
Irrigation - Gravity 1
Temporary Construction 8
Total 19,498

Connections By Meter Size (1) 
5/8" x 3/4" 17,300
3/4" 253
1" 1,324
1 1/2" 171
2" 210
3" 32
4" 58
6" 106
8" 36
10" and 12" 9
Total 19,499
  

(1) Revenue Requirements Report Workpapers Volume 1 of 2, 2-2 
    

 

Revenues and Expenses 
Table 6 presents historical operating revenues and expenses for 2005 through 2010, based 
on CPUC Annual Reports and recent unaudited data.  For 2010, AVR estimates operating 
revenues of $18.0 million, about 91 percent of which was from metered water sales 
(including fixed monthly meter charges).  Total reported operating expenses, including 
main office expenses, depreciation, and taxes, are projected at $15.6 million.  Net income 
is estimated to be $2.4 million. Non-operating revenues include $500,000 from the 
regulatory balancing account for a total net income of $3.0 million.



 

Update of Feasibility Study 15        Bartle Wells Associates                              
Final Report July 2011  

 
              
Table 6 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company - Historical Operating Results 
              

Annual Reports to CPUC Unaudited 
2005 2006 2007 2008  2009 2010 

Revenues 
Unmetered water revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Fire protection revenue 81,791 100,747 129,007 165,224 208,540 203,821 
Irrigation revenue 494,649 817,840 1,080,122 1,020,152 1,381,182 1,395,353 
Metered water revenue 13,904,381 16,145,095 16,911,032 16,569,609 18,780,589 16,404,373 
Total operating revenue $14,480,821  17,063,682 $18,120,161 $17,754,985  $20,370,311 $18,003,547 

Expenses 
Operating expenses (1) $8,489,507 $10,020,527 $11,315,728 $12,029,003 $12,120,426 $10,793,393 
Depreciation expense 1,382,595 1,677,503 1,987,513 2,204,635 2,284,316 2,144,562 
Amortization and property losses 0 0 9,298 56,949 56,949 52,272 
Property taxes 281,219 321,172 362,113 372,855 366,408 348,210 
Taxes other than income taxes 166,367 190,873 194,295 213,519 225,081 10,981 
California franchise tax 261,187 474,973 353,631 221,297 400,346 177,286 
Federal corporate income tax 1,364,573 1,665,397 1,346,700 948,623 1,593,101 1,973,491 
Other net income (includes interest 
expense) 

35,267 (665,047) (62,952) 127,781  13,599 85,152 

Operating expenses, taxes, and 
depreciation 

$11,980,715 $13,685,398 $15,506,326 $16,174,662 $17,060,226 $15,585,347 

Net income $2,500,106 $3,378,284 $2,613,835 $1,580,323 $3,310,085 $2,418,200 
  

(1) Includes main office allocation 
              



 

Update of Feasibility Study 16                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Capital Improvements 
AVR has carried out an aggressive water main replacement program for a number of years 
which has reduced the number of reported leaks from 3,000 in 1996 to around 600 today.  
AVR expects to continue to fund main replacements over the next three years, at a total 
cost of $4,336,000 over the three years included in the Test Year 2012 Revenue 
Requirements.  
 
AVR is proposing a range of other capital improvements to its system, including adding 
pressure reducing stations, corrosion control for storage tanks,  replacing aging water 
connections, installing new automated read meters, various equipment replacements, well 
site improvements, and office space expansion.   
 
In total, including main replacement, AVR proposes to complete approximately $13.1 
million in plant additions over the three years included in the Test Year 2012 Revenue 
Requirements.  Table 7 details these improvements.   
  
 

        
Table 7 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company – Company-Funded Capital 
Improvements 
        

From General Rate Case (TY2012) 
2011 2012 2013

Supply, Treatment, and Pumping 
Site Improvement $740,000 $300,000 $200,000 
Pumping 300,000 310,000 321,000 
Treatment 80,000 100,000 80,000 
Remote Monitoring 324,000 189,000 148,000 

General Plant 
Vehicles/equipment 332,000 731,000 706,000 

Transmission, Storage, Distribution 
Reservoirs and Tanks 120,000 15,000 0 
Transmission and Distribution 
Replacement 1,907,000 2,207,000 2,584,000 
Meters 449,000 499,000 465,000 

Total $4,252,000 $4,351,000 $4,504,000
 

  
Source: Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company General Rate Case Test Year 2012, 
Revenue Requirements Report Workpapers Volume 2 of 2, pages 6 - 13 through 6 - 29. 
        



 

Update of Feasibility Study 17                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

POSSIBLE PURCHASE PRICES 
The Town would be acquiring a water utility plant, which consists of wells, land, pumping 
plant (structures and equipment), water treatment equipment, transmission and distribution 
mains, reservoirs and tanks, meters, hydrants, vehicles, and general office equipment.  The 
acquisition would include rights-of-way and easements.  The Town would be purchasing 
the assets of a privately owned water company within the town limits. 
 
For the purpose of this feasibility study, it is assumed that the Town would not be 
purchasing water rights.  From the annual reports filed by the water companies with the 
CPUC, the rate case documents, and conversations between BWA and the Mojave Water 
Agency, there do not appear to be separate water rights held by AVR nor Golden State 
Water which would not revert to the Town should it acquire the assets of the two 
companies and begin operation of a water utility.  Customer advances would be assumed 
by the Town and would be repaid over their current payment schedules and terms.   
 
This feasibility study considered four different methodologies to estimate total acquisition 
cost.  While the final purchase price will depend on the method of acquisition (negotiation 
or condemnation) in addition to a number of other factors, BWA has developed a high and 
a low preliminary estimate of a purchase price solely for the purposes of completing this 
feasibility analysis.   

Stock Price 
The stock purchase price for the AVR utility represents the lowest probable purchase price 
used throughout this analysis. 
 
On January 21, 2011, Park Water Company along with other parties2 filed with the 
California Public Utilities Commission, Application 11-01-019, requesting authority for 
Western Water Holdings, LLC to acquire and control Park Water Company and Apple 
Valley Ranchos Water Company. Park Water Company wholly owns and operates Apple 
Valley Ranchos Water Company. Park Water Company also operates a water system in the 
southeastern portion of Los Angeles County, which is regulated by the CPUC, and the 
Mountain Water Company located in Missoula, Montana, which regulated by the Montana 
Public Service Commission. 
 
Western Water Holdings, LLC is subsidiary of Carlyle Infrastructure Partners, L.P., which 
was created and is managed by The Carlyle Group, a global alternative asset manager.  The 
Carlyle Group is a private partnership that is owned by a group of individuals and two 
institutional investors, including the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPers) and affiliates of the Mubadala Development Company. Pursuant to a Merger 

                                                 
2 There are numerous parties to the application and merger, including Park Water Company, Apple Valley 
Ranchos Water Company, Western Water Holdings, LLC, PWC Merger Sub, Inc., Carlyle Infrastructure 
Partners Western Water, L.P., Carlyle Infrastructure Partners, L.P. and The Carlyle Group. See the 
Application for an explanation of the interrelationship of subsidiaries and the details of the financial 
transaction. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 18                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Agreement, Western Water Holdings will acquire 100% of the outstanding capital stock of 
Park Water. Western Water Holdings will pay cash for the shares of capital stock. 
 
Park Water is a California corporation owned and controlled by the Wheeler family.  Park 
Water is a Class A water utility, subject to CPUC regulation. Park Water operates a public 
utility system in the southeastern portion of Los Angeles County (the Central Basin 
Division) serving 27,158 active customers as of December 31, 2010, including three 
separate service areas of Compton/Willowbrook, Lynwood/Rancho Dominguez, and 
Bellflower/Norwalk.  Park Water also operates as a parent company, holding 100% of the 
outstanding capital stock of two water utilities: Apple Valley Ranchos, also a Class A 
water utility regulated by the CPUC, which provides water service to approximately 
19,500 customers in the Town of Apple Valley, and Mountain Water Company, a Montana 
corporation that provides water service to approximately 22,300 customers in Missoula, 
Montana, subject to the jurisdiction of the Montana Public Service Commission. 
 
As BWA understands the Merger transaction, each Park Water shareholder will receive 
$4,177.65 for each share of Park Water common stock.3 The Merger Agreement, which is 
attached to the CPUC application, indicates the total amount paid to the shareholders to be 
$102 million. 
 
If the total share payment of $102 million is split between the water companies that Park 
Water owns the capital stock proportional to the number of water customers, the payment 
for Apple Valley Ranchos capital stock would be about $48 million, see Table 8.4 
 
 

        
Table 8 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Estimated Stock Price 
        

Park Water Stock Price $102,000,000

Utility Number of Connections Percent Allocated Stock Price
Mountain Water Company 22,300 53% 54,060,000
Apple Valley Ranchos 19,500 47% 47,940,000

41,800 100% 102,000,000
        

                                                 
3 The Carlyle Infrastructure Partners Western Water is purchasing Park Water’s stock; the assets (water 
facilities) remain with Park Water. Park Water continues as a water utility regulated by the CPUC. The 
company’s management team will not change as of result of the transaction and the day-to-day operations of 
Park Water and Apple Valley Ranchos will not be affected by the proposed change of ownership. There will 
no change in either company’s water rates or rate base as a result of the transaction. 
4 It is unclear to BWA whether the stock purchase includes Park Water’s Central Basin Division. The 
application and Merger Agreement only addresses Apple Valley Ranchos and Mountain Water Company. 
They do not mention the Central Basin Division as part of the stock transaction. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 19                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

The Balance Sheet, as of November 30, 2010, for Apple Valley Ranchos, which was 
attached to the application, shows the capital stock and surplus profit for Apple Valley 
Ranchos to be $41,029,806. Assuming the stock payment is $48 million, then the Park 
Water shareholders are paid a premium of $7 million ($48 million minus $41 million), or 
approximately 17%. 
 
In the financial feasibility analysis, BWA has used $48 million as a possible purchase price 
by the Town. The Balance Sheet shows no long-term debt for Apple Valley Ranchos.  
While the Town could not buy the company’s capital stock, it could possibly purchase the 
water facilities at a price equal to the estimated stock payment.   
 
In a response to a data request5 Carlyle stated in deciding to purchase Park Water, they 
evaluated the future potential earnings generated by the water companies owned and 
operated by Park Water. Carlyle based their financial projections on the principles of 
utility economic regulation. They made assumptions on rate base, projected revenues and 
expenses, depreciation, income taxes, and rate of return on rate base. Their financial 
projections assumed that excess cash flow would be available for future dividend 
distribution. Carlyle stated their intention to be a “long-term holder of Park Water and 
create investment value over time.” Carlyle’s financial analysis relies on a rate base, which 
under CPUC regulation, is valued at the original cost less straight-line depreciation of the 
water facilities when they were first placed into service. The water facilities value only 
reflects the actual investment made by the water company’s owners, so that advances and 
contributions-in-aid-of construction are excluded from rate base. BWA finds Carlyle’s 
financial analysis is similar to the capitalization of new income, a common method to 
value public utility property. 
 
Based on Carlyle’s financial analysis, BWA believes the estimated stock payment of $48 
million would be a reasonable estimate of the value of the Apple Valley Ranchos’ water 
facilities.  Moreover, it is close to the rate base (Park Water’s investment in the water 
facilities) that BWA estimates as of November 30, 2010. 
 
 

Rate Base Category Amount 
Utility plant at cost $101,516,965 
Depreciation reserve (23,686,867) 
Deferred credits (9,642,171) 
Advances for construction (29,996,615) 
Contributions in aid of construction (2,080,407) 
Rate base $36,110,905 

                                                 
5 Town’s Data Request, Park Water’s response to Question 22, dated April 1, 2011. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 20                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Reproduction Cost New Less Depreciation 
The Reproduction Cost New Less Depreciation (RCNLD) method produces the highest 
probable purchase price evaluated in this report. Generally speaking, this is an estimate of 
what it would cost to replace (or reproduce) existing utility assets, accounting for their 
accumulated depreciation due to age and wear and tear.   
 
For the purpose of this feasibility study, BWA calculates RCNLD by escalating the 
original cost of the assets by the Handy-Whitman Index of Public Utility Construction 
Costs to current dollars.  From this amount, a depreciation component, representing the 
loss of value of the existing asset due to age and condition, adjusted to account for any 
remaining salvage value of the asset, is subtracted.  The cost of advances is also subtracted 
from the RCNLD. The result is an approximation of the value of the utility which accounts 
for the current cost to replace it, age, wear and tear, and advances due to developers.   
 
Table 9 details the RCNLD calculation for AVR in 2011, which is approximately $139 
million.  This is significantly higher than the RCNLD estimated in the 2006 study, and 
reflects the high level of capital additions since that time.  In fact, utility plant in service 
has increased from $51.7 million at the start of 2004 to $103 million at the end of 2010.   
 
Two adjustments are made to the RCNLD estimate. An addition is made for intangibles, 
such as going concern and goodwill, and the acquisition of billing records, office 
equipment, and rolling stock. The adjustment for intangibles, et al is 10% of the RCNLD 
estimate. 
 
The second adjustment is to deduct customer advances of $31.1 million, which must be 
repaid to customers. If the Town purchased the water system, the Town would be 
responsible to assume the liability and pay back the advances. 
 
The RCNLD plus intangibles (estimated at 10 percent) less estimated advances totals 
$121.5 million and is used as the highest probable acquisition cost for this analysis. 
 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 21                  Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

                      
Table 9 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company - RCNLD 
                      

Account 
Utility Plant In 

Service 
Accumulated 
Depreciation 

Net Book 
Value 

Est. 
Life 

Average 
Age 

 
Year 

Reproduction 
Cost New* 

Current 
Year 

Reproduction 
Cost New Less 

Depreciation 
Organization & Misc. 301 $274,000 $0 $274,000 N/A N/A N/A $274,000 N/A $274,000 
Land & Land Rights 306 3,533,000 0 3,533,000 N/A N/A N/A 3,533,000 N/A 3,533,000 
PLT-SRC SUP Land and Land Rights 310 2,759,000 48,000 2,711,000 N/A N/A N/A 2,759,000 N/A 2,711,000 
Structures and Improvements 311 29,000 29,000 0 40 31.7 1979 75,000 2011 46,000 
Wells and Springs 314 3,546,000 903,000 2,643,000 42 12.9 1998 5,123,000 2011 4,220,000 
Other Sources & Supply 317 136,000 40,000 96,000 41 14.1 1997 202,000 2011 162,000 
Pumping-Structure/Improvements 321 2,175,000 459,000 1,716,000 31 8.4 2003 3,090,000 2011 2,631,000 
Other Pumping Equipment 328 6,801,000 1,263,000 5,538,000 26 9.3 2002 9,662,000 2011 8,399,000 
Water Treatment Equipment 332 1,359,000 267,000 1,092,000 20 2.5 2009 1,458,000 2011 1,191,000 
Reservoirs & Tanks 342 4,861,000 860,000 4,001,000 51 10.5 2001 4,861,000 2011 4,001,000 
T&D Mains 343 49,036,000 13,019,000 36,017,000 42 12.7 1998 87,013,000 2011 73,994,000 
T&D Services 345 9,341,000 1,972,000 7,369,000 42 12.6 1998 14,984,000 2011 13,012,000 
T&D Meters 346 3,341,000 0 3,341,000 40 6.0 2005 6,117,000 2011 6,117,000 
T&D Hydrants 348 7,300,000 1,393,000 5,907,000 41 11.6 1999 10,234,000 2011 8,841,000 
Structures and Improvements 390 1,525,000 471,000 1,054,000 31 12.9 1998 2,470,000 2011 1,999,000 
Office Furniture & Equipment 391 267,000 162,000 105,000 13 10.1 2001 447,000 2011 285,000 
Transportation Equipment 392 1,015,000 566,000 449,000 9 8.9 2002 1,663,000 2011 1,097,000 
Tools & Shop Equipment 394 267,000 104,000 163,000 16 8.7 2002 437,000 2011 333,000 
Power Operated Equipment 396 1,633,000 763,000 870,000 17 11.0 2000 2,774,000 2011 2,011,000 
Communication Equipment 397 2,229,000 754,000 1,475,000 12 6.3 2005 3,107,000 2011 2,353,000 
Computer Equipment - Desktops 398 649,000 421,000 228,000 8 8.0 2003 1,019,000 2011 598,000 
Computer Equipment - System 398 355,000 96,000 259,000 10 4.3 2007 435,000 2011 339,000 
Other Tangible Property 399 556,000 180,000 376,000 N/A N/A N/A 556,000 556,000 
Total utility plant in service $102,987,000 $23,770,000 $79,217,000 $162,293,000 $138,703,000 

Less Estimated Advances (31,104,000) 
Plus Intangibles (+10%) 13,870,000 

Total $121,469,000 
  

Source: Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company General Rate Case Test Year 2012, Revenue Requirements Report Workpapers Volume 2 of 2, pages 7 - 3 and 8 - 2 
*Reproduction cost new is based on the Handy-Whitman Index of Public Utility Construction Costs  
                      



 

Update of Feasibility Study 22 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Capitalization of Net Income 
The capitalization of the net income earned by an enterprise, like a water utility, can also 
be used to assess the value of the water facilities.  Net income is defined as operating 
revenues less operating expenses.  The capitalization of net income is calculated by 
dividing the net income of the utility by a discount rate.  For a regulated public utility the 
appropriate discount rate is the rate of return on the rate base authorized by the California 
Public Utilities Commission. 
 
For Apple Valley Ranchos Water Company, the current General Rate Case, net revenues 
(income) totaled approximately $3,855,000 at proposed rates and the rate of return 
authorized by CPUC was 9.42%.  Dividing net income by the rate of return produces a 
capitalization of net income of $40.9 million.    

Sales of Other Water Systems 
The third approach to value water facilities is to examine the sales of other water systems 
that are comparable to the subject water system.  In order for sales to be comparable, they 
must satisfy four criteria:  (1) recent in time; (2) close in geography to the subject system; 
(3) similar in size, such as the number of customers and type of service connections; and 
(4) “arms-length” transactions that were negotiated between a willing buyer and willing 
seller.   
 
BWA has compiled data on water utility sales in California.  Sources include decisions 
approving the sales by the California Public Utilities Commission of privately owned 
water utilities regulated by the CPUC.  Purchases and sales of water utility plants in 
service must be approved by the CPUC.  Water companies submit applications to the 
CPUC requesting the approval of the sales and transfers of water plants in service and after 
investigation by CPUC staff the CPUC decides on the sales and transfers. 
 
Sales between publicly owned water utilities are not under the jurisdiction of the CPUC, 
and sales and transfers effectuated through condemnation may not be reported to the 
CPUC.  BWA has compiled data on these types of sales either as financial advisors to the 
public agencies or through publicly available documents. 
 
Sales of water systems occur infrequently and under different circumstances.  Moreover, 
most are relatively small, less than 1,000 customers.  They are not comparable to the water 
systems that the Town is considering to buy. 
 
There are four water utility sales that BWA have been directly involved in and that 
illustrate the difficulty in comparing sales. 
 
In April 2001, the City of Yuba City purchased a water system from the Hillcrest Water 
Company, owned by a sole proprietor.  The water system was adjacent to the City-owned 
water system and the service area was being annexed into the City.  The sale was 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 23 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

accomplished through “friendly” condemnation, where the City and the owner negotiated 
and stipulated to a purchase price that the condemnation court accepted.  The sales price 
for the Hillcrest water system was $3,400,000.  The number of water customers was 4,475, 
so that the average price per customer was $760.  The net book value (NBV) of the water 
system was $2,406,900, so that the ratio of price to NBV was 141%. 
 
In January 2002, California-American Water Company (Cal-Am) completed the 
acquisition of four water systems owned by Citizens Utilities of California6 (CUCC), 
which had been approved by the CPUC in September 2001.  The sales price for the CUCC 
systems assigned to Cal-Am was $161,320,000.  The approximate number of water 
customers was 66,000; thus, the average price per customer was $2,444.  The NBV 
estimated for the CUCC facilities was $96,767,000, so that the ratio of price to NBV 
would be 167%. 
 
In May 2003, the Montara Water and Sanitary District (MWSD) acquired the water 
facilities in Montara and Moss Beach (i.e., the “Montara District”)7 from Cal-Am by 
means of stipulated judgement in an eminent domain (condemnation) proceeding in San 
Mateo Superior Court.  The acquisition price was the result of a settlement between 
MWSD and Cal-Am.  The purchase price was $11,097,000.  The number of water 
customers was 1,635; thus, the average price per customer was $6,787.  The net book value 
estimated for the Montara water facilities was approximately $5,158,700, so the ratio of 
price to NBV would be 215%. 
 
In 2008 the San Lorenzo Valley Water District (SLVWD) acquired the Felton water 
system from Cal-Am. The purchase resulted from a settlement of a condemnation court 
case in Santa Cruz County Superior Court.  The settlement stated that SLVWD would pay 
Cal-Am $13.4 million, of which $2.9 million was the assumption of a Safe Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund loan and $10.5 million in cash. The $13.4 million represented the 
fair market value of the operating assets of the Felton water system.  The Felton operating 
assets included utility plant in service as well as watershed land and commercial timber.  
Utility plant included pipelines, water treatment plant, storage reservoirs, fire hydrants, 
service connections, and meters.  The purchase included general plant, such as furniture, 
equipment, vehicles, and materials and supplies.  Finally, the purchase price considered 
land rights and water rights. 
 
According to reports filed with the CPUC, there are around 1,300 water customers in the 
Felton District.  The average acquisition cost per customer is therefore around $10,300.  
Other data filed with the CPUC regarding Cal-Am's acquisition of CUCC water systems 

                                                 
6 Cal-Am’s parent, American Water Works, purchased all of the water and sewer systems owned by Citizens 
Utilities in the United States.  As part of this purchase, Cal-Am, a subsidiary, acquired the four water districts 
owned by CUCC in California. 
7 The Montara District was one of the four water systems acquired by Cal-Am from CUCC.  The other three 
water districts are identified as Sacramento, Larkfield, and Felton. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 24 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

and past water rate indicate a net book value for the Felton water system was around 
$5,500,000.  The ratio of the acquisition value to NBV would be 244%. 
 
The acquisition was in part financed by a special tax.  On July 26, 2005, more than 2/3 of 
the voters within the Community Facilities District (CFD) organized by the County of 
Santa Cruz approved the District's formation and voted for special taxes to pay for the 
acquisition of the water facilities in Cal-Am's Felton district. 

Purchase Price Estimates Used In This Study 
The accuracy of these estimates is largely dictated by the availability of required data.  The 
RCNLD method generally produces the highest purchase price, and as such, it is the most 
conservative for the purposes of a feasibility analysis.   
 
As developed in Table 9, the total RCNLD for AVR is estimated at $121.5 million.   
 
The estimated acquisition price used in the 2006 feasibility study was $97,750,000.  This 
was developed not using the RCNLD calculation but by calculating two times Net Book 
Value of both the AVR and the GSWC utility.  For comparison purposes, the Net Book 
Value (NBV) of AVR as of 2011 was $79.2 million.  Using the two times NBV method, 
the updated acquisition price would be $79.2 million x 2 = $158.4 million.   
 
In appraising public utilities, consideration can be given to going concern, goodwill and 
other intangibles.  With water utilities, the value of water rights may be included.  In 
addition, the cost of furniture, equipment, vehicles, software, materials and supplies may 
be included in the acquisition price.  Finally, the value of the turning over of billing and 
accounting records may be considered. 
 
Regarding AVR, there may also be severance costs, because the water system is part of 
larger enterprise of Park Water. 
 
Given all of these considerations, for the purpose of the updated feasibility study, BWA 
uses as the highest probable acquisition cost $121.5 million, the RCNLD of the AVR 
system with adjustments for advances and intangibles. 
 
The lowest probable acquisition cost used in this feasibility study update is $48 million, the 
estimated purchase price of the AVR stock. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 25 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

TRANSACTION COSTS 
If Apple Valley proceeds with the proposed acquisition, it would incur transaction costs 
above and beyond the purchase price of the utility.  Any acquisition will require the use of 
consulting engineers, financial advisors, legal counsel, and appraisers.  The acquisition 
may also require review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and 
incur annexation costs to bring the water system completely within the jurisdiction of the 
Town.   
 
These costs vary in relation to the method of acquisition.  A negotiated purchase between 
the Town and the private water utility would have the lowest transaction costs, while an 
acquisition through condemnation would have higher associated expenses.  Increased costs 
with a condemnation stem primarily from increased legal fees and spending associated 
with the use of expert witnesses. 
 
The following section describes in more detail the different cost components associated 
with this transaction, and their estimated amounts are included in Table 10. 

Engineering Consultant    
The Town would be required to engage a consulting engineer to review the condition of 
the water system and determine the need for capital improvements.  As discussed in the 
previous section, the AVR has identified the need for substantial capital improvements in 
the pending rate case, and the adequacy of these improvements should be evaluated.  
Revisions to this capital program could change the purchase price and risks associated with 
the acquisition.   
 
There would also be costs associated with inter-connecting and merging the AVR and the 
GSWC systems so that water service aligns with the boundaries of the Town.  This 
analysis should be undertaken for both negotiated purchase and condemnation, with 
condemnation costing slightly more due to the added need for expert witness testimony.     

Financial and Accounting 
The Town would also require the use of financial and accounting assistance.  Financial 
consultants would advise the Town on debt financing issues and conducting a water rate 
and charge review.  An accountant would be required to review past financial statements 
from the utility, including historical annual reports, and review billing and accounting 
records.   

Town Counsel 
Resources would be needed to support the Town Counsel in negotiations and the legal 
aspects of the acquisition, including the processing and filing of legal documents.  The 
Town can expect that condemnation proceedings would add a level of complexity (and 
therefore, cost) to this item.   



 

Update of Feasibility Study 26 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

CEQA and Annexation 
There will be costs associated with the environmental review of the acquisition.  The cost 
estimated assumes that there will be a negative declaration and no environmental impact 
report would be required.   
 
The Town may also need to annex some new land into the Town boundaries in order to 
make the boundaries of the Town and the AVR service areas more co-terminus. 

Appraisals 
The Town will need to retain an independent appraiser to value the water utility.  The 
appraisal of the system should include all water facilities, intangible assets, water rights, 
and land that would be acquired by the Town.  It is a crucial component of any successful 
acquisition.   The appraisal would form the basis for initial offers to the companies.  In a 
condemnation proceeding, the appraisal would be further supported by the opinion of 
expert testimony used to establish fair market value for the utility.   

Condemnation Attorney and Trial 
If the Town should choose to proceed with condemnation proceedings, it would require the 
services of an attorney specializing in this type of procedure.  Within the condemnation 
proceeding, there would likely be two trials; one dealing with the “right to take” and 
another establishing just compensation, the fair market value of the condemned water 
facilities.   

Contingency Reserve 
The Town should also maintain a contingency reserve, BWA assumes 18% of the 
transaction costs, to cover unexpected expenses, see Table 10.  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 27 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
        
Table 10 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Estimated Transaction Costs for Acquisition 

Description   
Negotiated 

Purchase Condemnation

Engineering consultant $800,000 $1,100,000
Financial consultant and accounting 250,000 400,000
Town counsel 250,000 500,000
CEQA and annexation 100,000 100,000
Appraisals (land and water facilities) 200,000 500,000
Condemnation attorney and trials  0 1,000,000
Subtotal  $1,600,000 $3,600,000

Contingency reserve (18%) 288,000 648,000

Total $1,888,000 $4,248,000
  

Source: Bartle Wells Associates estimates 
        



 

Update of Feasibility Study 28 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

FINANCING OPTIONS  
BWA evaluated four major financing options that are available to the Town of Apple 
Valley to acquire the AVR system.  Each of these financing methods has been used by 
public agencies to acquire water systems from private owners.8  Financing would include 
funding the purchase of water facilities and land and the funding of transaction costs.  The 
four methods of financing that BWA investigated include: 

 General Obligation Bonds 
 Mello-Roos Community Facilities District (Special Tax) Bonds 
 Assessment Bonds 
 Revenue-Supported Borrowing 

General Obligation Bonds 
General obligation (GO) bonds are debt instruments secured by the full faith and credit of 
the borrower.  They would be paid back through the unlimited power of the Town to levy 
property taxes at any rate or amount necessary to pay semi-annual debt service payments.  
These taxes would be levied at an equal percentage on all assessed property value within 
the Town of Apple Valley.  Taxpayers in the Town of Apple Valley would pay higher 
property taxes as a result of this financing.   
 
GO bonds require approval by 2/3 of registered voters.  The principal and interest to repay 
GO bonds would be paid with a general tax based on the assessed value of property.  The 
Town of Apple Valley would have to prepare a ballot measure and would have to indicate 
the maximum bonds authorized by the vote and an estimate of the maximum property tax. 
 
Each year the Town would set the property tax rate per $100 of assessed value and provide 
the tax rate to the County, who collects the tax payments and remits them to the Town.  
The tax rate will more than likely decline over the life of the GO bonds assuming annual 
increases in assessed values of property within the town. 
 
The clearest advantage of a GO bond is its low cost.  Since GO bonds are backed by the 
pledge that all necessary revenues will be raised through increased property taxes, they 
typically carry the lowest risk in the municipal market, which is reflected in their low 
interest rates.  They do not require a reserve fund and they have the lowest issuance costs 
of the four financing methods reviewed.  GO bonds are also relatively simple to 
administer, as they require no changes in the manner in which property taxes are collected.  
They are collected along with the other taxes, assessments, and special charges on the 
property tax bill. 
 

                                                 
8 The Montara Water and Sanitary District issued general obligation bonds; Santa Cruz County issued Mello-
Roos (special tax) bonds; Yuba City issued certificates of participation; and Madera County used assessment 
bonds for a small acquisition. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 29 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Since GO bonds are dependent on property tax revenues, their impact on residents of 
Apple Valley would be proportional to the assessed valuation of property owned by 
residents.  Proposition 13 limits annual increases in the assessed valuation of property to 
2% per year, provided that property was not transferred in ownership during the year.  
When property is transferred between owners, properties are re-assessed to reflect the new 
market value.  Newer property owners, with higher assessed values, would bear a high tax 
burden as a result of this financing.   
 
Additionally, if the boundaries of the Town of Apple Valley are not co-terminus with the 
boundaries of the utility being acquired, those within the Town limits would be effectively 
financing the acquisition for those served by the utilities but located outside the Town 
limits.   

Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Bonds 
Mello-Roos or “special tax” bonds may also be used to finance the construction or 
acquisition of facilities and land.  Moreover, they can be used to finance certain, limited 
types of services and pay for limited operation and maintenance.  Under the terms of the 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, public entities, such as cities and counties, 
are allowed to form Community Facilities Districts (CFD), and once formed, these 
Districts can issue bonds upon 2/3 approval of registered voters within the District.  
Importantly, a CFD need not be co-terminus with the boundaries of the municipality 
forming the District.   
 
Bonds issued by a CFD can be used to purchase any real property with an estimated useful 
life of more than five years.  They are not secured by the unlimited power of a local 
government to levy property taxes.   Instead, a special tax is levied on all properties within 
the CFD in order to pay semi-annual debt service requirements.  This special tax is not an 
ad valorem tax but instead based on a special tax formula.  There is considerable flexibility 
in its structure, with factors such as square footage developed, density of development, 
acreage, and zoning commonly being used to calculate the tax.  Equivalent water meters 
can be used in the case of acquiring water facilities.  Taxpayers in the proposed CFD 
would pay higher taxes as a result of this financing.  
 
The special tax is fixed and does not change over the life of the bonds.  Increase property 
values would not affect the level of the special tax.  Moreover, the special tax is not tied to 
use of the water system, such as water consumption or metered water sales. 
 
A CFD can provide for the prepayment of special tax before bonds are issued.  But after 
bonds are issued any prepayment of special taxes would be very difficult and would 
require a complex formula.  Moreover, early refunding of the bonds could be difficult and 
would more than likely require a recalculation of the special tax and may require another 
vote with 2/3 voter approval of any change in the special tax. 
 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 30 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Mello-Roos bonds have the advantage of flexibility.  In this case, the Town could design 
the CFD boundaries to be co-terminus with the boundary of the service area of the utility.  
This would ensure that only those properties directly impacted by the acquisition would be 
assessed the special tax.  In addition, because there is no requirement that the tax be based 
on the “special benefit” a parcel receives, the District can tailor the rate and method of 
apportionment to best meet revenue requirements and the political environment, potentially 
improving the likelihood of voter approval. 
 
At the same time, Mello-Roos financings are very complex.  The flexibility allowed in 
constructing the special tax apportionment also means that these formulas can be very 
intricate and difficult for the property owner to understand.  Engineering and financial 
analysis would be required to develop the special tax formula.  Additionally, because 
Mello-Roos bonds are not secured by the full faith and credit of the issuing agency, they 
are considered riskier than GO bonds and carry higher interest rates.   Mello-Roos bonds 
also typically provide for a reserve fund and bond insurance may be advisable, two factors 
which also increase the effective cost of this type of financing for the Town.  

Assessment Bonds 
The Town could possibly use assessment bonds to finance the acquisition of the water 
company.9  Assessment bonds are typically used to finance capital improvements to a 
relatively small area where the special benefits of the public project can be readily assigned 
to assessed properties benefiting from the project.  They may not be the best method to 
finance a large water system acquisition for the whole Town which could provide a general 
benefit to the public at large.  One general benefit of a publicly owned water system is fire 
protection. 
 
The most common assessment bonds used by local governments to finance public projects 
are issued under the Improvement Bond Act of 1915.  The 1915 Act, which only involves 
the issuance of bonds, requires another stature to establish the assessment district, 
authorize public improvements, and impose the assessments.  Typically the Improvement 
Bond Act of 1913 (or sometimes the Act of 1911) is used.  The use of assessment bond 
financing and the establishment of an assessment district are subject to Proposition 218, 
which added Article XIID to the California Constitution. 
 
An assessment bond is a financing method where bonds are secured by liens placed upon 
all property within a defined geographic area (the assessment district).  Similar to both GO 
bonds and special tax bonds, owners of impacted parcels of land would fund the cost of 
annual debt service.   

                                                 
9 The Town has experience with assessment bonds.  Assessment District No. 3 Improvement Bonds (1915 
Act bonds) are outstanding and were originally issued by the Apple Valley Water District in 1988 to fund 
public improvements.  Assessment District No. 2-B sold limited obligation improvement refunding bonds in 
1991 to fund sanitary sewer facilities. These bonds were refunded with a 1996 assessment bond issue.  The 
Apple Valley Water District has issued Special Assessment District 98-1, 1915 Improvement bonds to 
finance sewer improvements in the Jess Ranch area. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 31 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Assessments are not taxes, and their individual size is not tied to the assessed valuation of 
the property.  Instead, assessments are calculated based on the proportional “special 
benefit” that a property receives from the improvement to be financed.  Undeveloped land 
must be included in the assessment district.  As with community facilities districts, the 
local government is allowed some latitude in determining the method of apportionment.  In 
this context, the Town would likely choose some proxy for water use such as lot size or 
type of customer to determine the size of the assessment for each parcel.   
 
The procedure to issue assessment bonds and to set assessments for water service is 
described as follows.  After the size of the assessment is determined, a notice is mailed to 
all impacted property owners along with a ballot, and a public hearing is held within 45 
days to address constituent concerns and tally the vote to protest the project.  Votes are 
weighted according to the proportional financial obligation of the affected property.  A 
majority protest means that the district cannot be formed.  If approved (i.e., not a majority 
protest), individual assessments are then placed as liens on property as security for any 
future bond issues.  The property owner has the option of paying off the lien in cash, with 
that amount then being deducted from the total size of any bond issue, or deferring 
payment for a time period generally up to 30 years.   
 
The assessment district creates a fixed dollar amount special assessment lien on each 
property of the district.  The lien lasts for ten years or until bonds are issued, whichever 
happens first.  If bonds are issued, the lien is for the term of the bonds, plus four years.  
 
Special assessment bonds are secured by the unpaid amount of the fixed assessment liens 
on property.  State law governs their payment dates so that principal is paid annually on 
September 2 and interest is paid semiannually on March 2 and September 2. 
 
There are two opportunities to pay off assessment debt.  The first is during the minimum 
30-day cash payment period after the creation of the district.  During that period, the 
principal amount of the assessment may be paid in whole or in part.  When the bonds are 
sold, that person’s share of any bond reserve and discount is rebated to that person.  The 
second is after bond issuance, when a person can prepay that person’s share of the total 
principal amount, any prepayment penalty, a share of interest to the next available bond 
call date, and administrative costs. 
 
As with community facilities districts, assessment districts have the advantage of 
flexibility; the boundaries of the district can be created such that they are co-terminus with 
the boundaries of the service area of the utility.  In addition, because assessments related to 
water service are not considered taxes under California law, they are not subject to 2/3 
voter approval.  Assessments must, however, comply with Proposition 218, which outlines 
the legal framework for the establishment and use of assessments in raising local revenue.   
 
Assessment bonds do have a number of disadvantages over other financing options, which 
when taken together may make this a higher cost method to finance the acquisition.  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 32 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Issuance costs are higher than for GO bonds, as there are increased costs associated with 
the creation of the district and the need for a civil engineer to determine the special benefit 
for each parcel and to calculate the assessments.  In addition, since debt service is only 
secured by the liens on property and not by the unlimited power of the Town to levy taxes, 
assessment bonds are considered riskier investments.  To provide the bonds with 
appropriate security and allow for successful marketing, the property securing the lien 
must have value sufficient to cover the assessment.  As a general guideline, the ratio of 
assessed value to assessment lien should be at least 3:1.  In either case, assessment bonds 
will likely carry higher total interest costs than GO bonds and require a one year reserve 
fund. 

Revenue-Supported Borrowing 
There are two major revenue-supported borrowing options available to the Town to finance 
this purchase.  With this type of financing, the Town does not incur any further 
indebtedness; instead, the Town must pledge a portion of the enterprise’s future net 
revenues to meet the debt service.  Revenue bonds take a number of different forms, to 
include public enterprise revenue bonds, public lease revenue bonds, and certificates of 
participation.   

Public Enterprise Revenue Bonds 
Traditional revenue bonds can be used to finance any public improvement of revenue 
producing nature.  They are secured by a lien upon future revenues of the proposed 
improvement.  Approval of a revenue bond is subject to provisions of the Revenue Bond 
Law of 1941; they can be issued upon adoption by majority vote of the governing body of 
the local agency.  A majority vote must be obtained at an election on the proposition of 
issuing bonds.  
 
Most revenue bonds are issued by means of a joint powers authority (JPA) that does not 
require an election or voter approval.  The joint powers authority can be a financing 
authority created by the two public agencies, such as a city and its redevelopment agency.  
If a JPA is used, then the more typical financing is the use of certificates of participation, 
which are described below. 
 
Effective marketing of revenue bonds requires a well-established operating history of the 
enterprise to ensure that future revenues will meet required debt service.  The issuer may 
also have to covenant to establish rates and charges that are sufficient to meet debt service.   

Financing Leases and Certificates of Participation 
Slightly different than traditional revenue bonds, but used more frequently, is lease 
financing using certificates of participation (COPs).10  COPs would allow the Town to 

                                                 
10 The Town has previously issued certificates of participation.  In 1999, the Town sold COPs to finance the 
construction of the new Town Hall and new county office building.  In 2001, the Town sold variable rate 
demand COPs to refund the 1999 COPs.  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 33 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

enter into a tax-exempt lease financing arrangement in lieu of issuing bonds.  In this 
arrangement, a third-party owner would purchase the water company and then lease the 
system back to the Town.  Security for the lease is supported solely by the net revenues of 
the Town’s water system.  The lease can be structured as an installment sale/purchase 
agreement11, in which the Town would assume ownership of the facilities at the closing of 
financing, typically two or three weeks after the COP sale. 
 
In the context of this proposed financing, a non-profit corporation or joint powers authority 
(like the Apple Valley Public Financing Authority) would purchase the utility and then 
subsequently lease or sell it on the basis of an installment sale to the Town of Apple 
Valley.  As with any lease or installment sale, structured payments have both principal and 
interest components and are tax-exempt.  The lessor assigns its rights to receive future 
lease or installment payments to a trustee, and undivided shares of these future payments 
can subsequently be issued as “certificates of participation” and marketed to third-party 
investors. In practice, the structure, marketing, and sale of COPs is very similar to that of 
traditional revenue bonds, and their security is provided only through the ability of the 
utility to produce net revenues sufficient to meet its payments. 
 
The use of COPs would offer Apple Valley the ability to finance this acquisition with 
revenues generated solely from the customers receiving service from the publicly owned 
water utility.  There would be no obligation on the Town to raise taxes or meet debt service 
with resources from its general fund.  Since the acquisition is paid back from water rates 
and service charges, the distribution of financial burden is judged equitable because it is 
spread proportionally among customers based on water use.  In addition, COPs do not 
require voter approval in a general election and do not count as indebtedness under state 
constitutional debt limitations. 
 
COPs may be the highest total cost method of financing the acquisition as they are viewed 
as riskier investments in the bond market and as such must carry higher interest rates.  A 
reserve fund is generally required.  In addition, COPs must comply with “debt service 
coverage requirements.”  This means that net revenues, after meeting all operating and 
maintenance expenses, must be 125% of the maximum annual debt service.12  This 
coverage requirement means higher rates for customers, but may also allow the Town to 
build capital reserves. 

                                                 
11 The Town has experience with an installment sale/purchase agreement.  In 2004, the Town entered into an 
installment purchase agreement with the Mojave Desert and Mountain Integrated Waste Management 
Authority.  The agreement was established when the Authority issued revenue bonds to refund bonds that 
were originally issued to fund the design and construction of a materials recovery facility.  The Town’s 
installment payments come from service revenues which consist primarily of rates and charges imposed by 
the Town for solid waste management services.   
12 This is similar to the debt service coverage requirement applicable to the Mojave Waste Management 
Authority’s installment purchase agreement.   



 

Update of Feasibility Study 34 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

FINANCING COSTS 
For the purposes of this feasibility analysis, financing includes funding for the purchase of 
water facilities and all transaction costs.   
 
Table 11 summarizes overall financing costs for the four different financing methods 
discussed in the previous section.  Each method results in a different annual debt service.   
 
The analysis assumes a total acquisition cost of $52.2 million at the stock price and a total 
acquisition cost of $125.7 million at the RCNLD price for AVR which include the high 
estimate (condemnation) for transaction costs of $4,248,000.   
 
Financing methods differ in terms of interest rate, need for a debt service reserve fund, 
issuance cost, and underwriter’s discount.  GO bonds are significantly cheaper to issue, as 
they do not provide for underwriter’s discount and have lower fees associated with the use 
of outside consultants and bond counsel.  They also do not require a reserve fund and carry 
the lowest interest rate which BWA estimates in the range of 5.25%.  Overall debt service 
on GO bonds is estimated to range from $3.8 million to $9.2 million per year over 25 
years. 
 
For a special tax bond, the average interest rate is 6.25% reflecting the lower security of 
that method of financing.  Issuance costs are greater because of the complexity of the 
special tax bonds and the need for a special tax consultant.  Bond underwriters are allowed 
to charge a discount with special tax bonds, which is assumed to be 1.5% of the total issue.  
A reserve fund equal to one year’s debt service would be required.  Special tax levies are 
also subject to delinquencies (assumed to be 1.5% of the total annual levy) and annual 
administration costs (assumed to be $50,000).  The annual debt service for a special tax 
bond is estimated to range from $4.8 million to $11.4 million. 
 
An assessment bond is assumed to have an interest rate of 7.00%, as they are among the 
highest risk of municipal financings.  Issuance costs, underwriter’s discount, and annual 
delinquencies are also assumed to be about the same as for a special tax bond.  Annual 
administration is assumed to be $75,000.  In total, the average annual debt service plus 
admin costs for an assessment bond is estimated to range from $5.2 million to $12.3 
million.  
 
The average interest rate for COPs is assumed to be 6.75% for this feasibility analysis.  
Issuance costs would be lower than special tax and assessment bonds, but the COPs would 
need to be rated and would need an investment grade rating to be sold.  A reserve fund 
equal to one year’s debt service would be required.  Because of market acceptance, the 
underwriter’s discount for COPs would be lower than for special tax or assessment bonds 
(estimated at 1%).  The average annual COP payment is estimated to range from $4.9 
million to $11.7 million.  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 35 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

                  
Table 11 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Financing Options for Acquisition
                  

GO Bonds Special Tax Assessment COPs   
Stock Price RCNLD Stock Price RCNLD Stock Price RCNLD Stock Price RCNLD 

Total estimated acquisition cost (1) $52,188,000 $125,717,000 $52,188,000 $125,717,000 $52,188,000 $125,717,000 $52,188,000 $125,717,000 
Acquisition cost 47,940,000 121,469,000 47,940,000 121,469,000 47,940,000 121,469,000 47,940,000 121,469,000 
Transaction cost 4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000 4,248,000 

Issuance costs 275,000 275,000 495,000 495,000 455,000 455,000 295,000 295,000 
Financial advisor 100,000 100,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 100,000 100,000 
Bond counsel 100,000 100,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 100,000 100,000 
Expenses 20,000 20,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 20,000 20,000 
Trustee 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 
Bond ratings 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 0 0 60,000 60,000 
Special tax consultant 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 0 0 
Assessment engineer 0 0 0 0 100,000 100,000 0 0 

Underwriter's discount (2) 0 0 860,000 2,061,000 865,000 2,073,000 573,000 1,377,000 
Bond insurance + surety 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Miscellaneous 2,000 3,000 5,000 3,000 4,000 2,000 1,000 2,000 
Reserve fund (3) 0 0 4,662,000 11,169,000 5,023,000 12,038,000 4,858,000 11,649,000 
Total issue $52,465,000 $125,995,000 $58,210,000 $139,445,000 $58,535,000 $140,285,000 $57,915,000 $139,040,000 

Term (years) 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 
Interest rate (4) 5.25% 5.25% 6.25% 6.25% 7.00% 7.00% 6.75% 6.75% 
Annual debt service $3,816,000 $9,165,000 $4,662,000 $11,169,000 $5,023,000 $12,038,000 $4,858,000 $11,664,000 

        
Plus: Annual delinquency (1.5%) 0 0 70,000 168,000 75,000 181,000 0 0 
Plus: Annual administration 0 0 50,000 50,000 75,000 75,000 0 0 

Total annual debt service plus admin $3,816,000 $9,165,000 $4,782,000 $11,387,000 $5,173,000 $12,294,000 $4,858,000 $11,664,000 
  

(1) Purchase price estimate plus transaction costs (condemnation). 
(2) 0% for GO; 1.5% for Special Tax and Assessment; 1% for COPs. 
(3) A reserve fund equal to one year's debt service is assumed.  GO bonds do not require a reserve fund. 
(4) Estimated for financial planning purposes; rates may vary based on market conditions. 
Source: Analysis by Bartle Wells Associates. 

                  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 36 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Property Tax Impact of General Obligation Bonds 
Table 12 shows the impact of a general obligation bond issue on the property taxes of 
Apple Valley.  Total secured valuation in 2010 was $4.38 billion.  The issuance of GO 
bonds could increase property taxes by an estimated range of $87 to $209 per $100,000 
assessed value.   
 

    
Table 12 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Estimated Property Tax Impact of General Obligation Bonds 
    

Stock Purchase Price 
Annual Debt Service $3,816,000
Assessed value in Apple Valley (1) 4,378,000,000
Tax per $100 AV 0.087
Tax per $100,000 AV $87

RCNLD Purchase Price 
Annual Debt Service $9,165,000
Assessed value in Apple Valley (1) 4,378,000,000
Tax per $100 AV 0.209
Tax per $100,000 AV $209

  

(1) From 2010 Assessment Roll Re-cap Totals San Bernardino County, secured  value 
    

 

Special Tax Size for Mello-Roos Bonds 
Table 13 calculates the estimated special tax that would be levied on water customers 
should this acquisition be financed by Mello-Roos special tax bonds.  The annual tax is 
calculated based on the estimated number of equivalent meters in the Town.  With an 
annual debt service plus an administration charge and considering delinquencies, the total 
cost would range from $4.8 million to $11.4 million assuming approximately 34,653 
equivalent meters, a single family residence with one equivalent meter (5/8 x 3/4 inch) 
would face an annual special tax levy of $138 to $329.  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 37 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
    
Table 13 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Estimated Impact of Special Tax Bonds 
    

Stock Purchase Price 
Estimated number of customers 19,498 
Estimated number of equivalent meters 34,653 
Annual debt service plus administration and delinquency $4,782,000 
Annual cost per equivalent meter $138 

RCNLD Purchase Price 
Estimated number of customers 19,498 
Estimated number of equivalent meters 34,653 
Annual debt service plus administration and delinquency $11,387,000 
Annual cost per equivalent meter $329 
    

 

Impact of COP Issuance on Water Rates 
Certificates of participation (COPs) would be secured by net water revenues generated 
from the water enterprise.  Table 14 estimates the impact on rates of a COP issuance.  Of 
note, the findings in this table (specifically, the estimated annual net revenues at current 
rates) are drawn in part from the findings summarized in Table 15, in section PROJECTED 

NET REVENUES AT CURRENT RATES. 
 
With an annual debt service ranging from $4.9 million to $11.7 million, total net revenues 
before debt service would need to be at least $6.1 million to $14.6 million (125% of the 
estimated annual debt service) to meet required coverage tests.  Using current net revenues 
of AVR under public ownership of $6 million (see Table 15), the utility may have to 
generate additional revenues to meet the net revenue requirement of the debt.   
 
If the RCNLD is the purchase price of the AVR system, revenues would need to increase 
by about $8.6 million to meet the debt coverage requirement, meaning that rates would 
need to increase about 44%.   
 
If the AVR system is acquired using the stock purchase price, then current revenues would 
nearly be sufficient to meet debt coverage of 125% of the annual debt service cost. An 
addition $57,000 in revenues would need to be generated in order to meet the debt 
coverage requirement, which equates to a 0.3% rate increase. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 38 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
    
Table 14 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Estimated Impact on Water Rates of COP Issuance 
    

Stock Purchase Price 
Annual debt service (estimated) $4,858,000

Net revenue requirement (125% annual debt service) $6,073,000
Less net revenues (at current rates) 6,016,000

Additional revenue needed ($57,000)

Total projected revenues (current rates) (Table 15) $19,483,000
Required 2012 rate increase to repay COPs 0.3%

RCNLD Purchase Price 
Annual debt service (estimated) $11,664,000

Net revenue requirement (125% annual debt service) $14,580,000
Less net revenues (at current rates) 6,016,000

Additional revenue needed ($8,564,000)

Total projected revenues (current rates) (Table 15) $19,483,000
Required 2012 rate increase to repay COPs 44.0%
    



 

Update of Feasibility Study 39 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

OPERATION OF WATER UTILITY UNDER PUBLIC OWNERSHIP 
If the Town were to successfully acquire the water utility, it would begin operation of a 
water enterprise.  By definition, an enterprise fund of the Town must be self-sufficient; it 
must cover all expenses, including cost of operations, debt service, and capital, with its 
own revenues.  The following section reviews both the sources of revenue under public 
ownership, as well as projected expenses of operating the enterprise as a public, rather than 
private utility.    

Revenues under Public Ownership  

Water Rates and Charges   
The primary means of generating revenue will continue to be through water rates and 
charges. AVR levies “fixed plus variable” water rates, meaning all customers pay a fixed 
monthly charge for access to the system, and then a unit charge for each hundred cubic feet 
(ccf) of water consumed. For the variable charge, AVR switched to an inclining block rate 
structure during their last General Rate Case, with three tiers of different water rates.   
 
The meter service charge recovers in part the fixed costs to the utility, including meter 
reading and billing, that do not vary regardless of water use.   
 
It is anticipated that the Town would continue with the three-tiered structure of AVR that 
utilizes increasing block rates in order to promote conservation.   
 
The Town could also incorporate other elements into its rate design, such as standby 
service or drought pricing.  AVR has a low-income affordability program, and the Town 
would have to determine whether or not to maintain this program.   

Connection Fees   
The Town can also generate revenue through connection fee charges to new customers.  
Generally speaking, these fees have two components.  Part of the fee is calculated to 
reimburse the utility for the actual cost of the new connection, including the meter, as well 
as the cost required to connect the customer to the system and set up the customer account.  
The other portion of the fee recovers the proportional cost of both existing and future 
capital assets required to serve the new connection.   
 
Upon completing the acquisition, the Town would most likely complete a separate analysis 
of this fee to determine the proper amount to charge future new connections adding to the 
system.   

Advances    
Advances are another method that a utility can use to recover the costs associated with 
building new capital facilities and infrastructure to extend new service to new customers.  
Developers advance the utility the funds necessary to build new facilities such as collection 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 40 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

mains and the utility then repays those advances over a period of up to forty years, interest 
free.  
 
Importantly, AVR has financed a significant portion of its current infrastructure with 
advances.  According to its most recent rate case, it has over $31.1 million in outstanding 
advances. The yearly payments on those advances is estimated at $795,000 for 2012.  The 
Town could continue to use this method as a means for adding new infrastructure to the 
system, or, at the very least, it is assumed that the Town would have to continue to repay 
these advances under their current terms.   

Contributions    
The utility can also generate revenue through in-kind contributions of infrastructure.  In 
this arrangement, a developer will typically agree to build the necessary water facilities to 
connect a new development to existing facilities at his own expense.  Unlike an advance, 
contributions are not repaid.   

Taxes    
Under public ownership, the water utility would be eligible to receive tax revenue to 
support its activities.  Should the Town choose to finance this acquisition with GO bonds 
or Mello-Roos special tax bonds, it would also generate revenues to meet debt service from 
a property tax or a special tax.   

Costs under Public Ownership 
The operating costs for a publicly-owned utility will differ from those incurred by a private 
utility.  The publicly-owned water utility would not pay income taxes, property taxes, nor a 
profit. However, expenses for operations and maintenance (O&M) and administrative and 
general expenses (A&G) would be similar.  
 
Personnel  
The new Town water utility would require personnel to staff all of the required positions.  
This study assumes that the Town would continue to employ all employees from the utility 
with the exception of Mr. Wheeler.  The employees would fill necessary administrative, 
billing, and operations positions within the utility.  
 
Operations and Maintenance   
The Town’s water utility would incur expenses related to the operation and maintenance of 
the water system.  Major expenses in this category include funding for payroll, repairs of 
equipment, and maintenance of infrastructure.  The utility would also incur expenses for 
purchasing power to run pumps, and leasing water to meet demand in excess of its free 
pumping allowance.  To the extent that prices for commodities like power and water vary 
each year, the utility could face significant uncertainty in these expenses.  BWA assumes 
that under public ownership, the operations and maintenance costs would be reduced by 
$259,147, the portion of Mr. Wheeler’s salary that is booked as a utility expense, but that 
all other O&M expenses are similar to what AVR now incurs.    



 

Update of Feasibility Study 41 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
Administrative and General  
The Town’s water enterprise would also face expenses to cover administrative and general 
expenses of the utility, such as costs associated with rent for office space, the cost of office 
supplies, and periodic use of outside services such as accountants and engineers.  BWA 
assumes that payroll, office expenses, and employee benefits would be the same under 
public ownership with the exception of Mr. Wheeler’s salary. BWA assumes that under 
public ownership, payroll would be reduced by $297,665, the portion of Mr. Wheeler’s 
salary that is booked as a nonutility expense.  
 
Town Overhead    
While under public ownership there is no corporate overhead, there would be Town 
overhead.  A certain portion of the Town’s general overhead would likely be allocated as a 
cost to the utility.  This cost would cover the proportion of the Town’s facilities and 
personnel that support the utility.  This would include time spent by the Town Manager 
and Town Counsel in support of the utility, in addition to any general support provided by 
other town staff and facilities.   
 
For the purposes of this feasibility study, BWA assumes that under public ownership the 
overhead cost would be reduced by half and equal approximately $1.1 million. 
 
Capital Costs - Replacements    
The utility will also need to provide for yearly replacements of equipment and 
infrastructure as it ages.  This yearly replacement is primarily a function of the size and age 
of a system.  AVR is in the midst of an aggressive main replacement campaign, and has 
budgeted over $4.3 million over the next three years to replace the oldest mains in the 
system. 
 
Another method for estimating the annual cost of replacement is to examine total annual 
depreciation.  For the year 2012, AVR estimates a depreciation expense of $2.7 million. 
 
For the purposes of this analysis, BWA assumes that the utility would have an annual 
water main and equipment replacement program of $2 million.  This amount is included in 
Table 15 under Projected Operating Results Under Public Ownership.   
 
Capital Costs - Additions 
The Town would also need to provide for future capital additions to the systems.  In some 
cases, new extensions for service cannot be funded by advances or contributions, and the 
utility would face significant costs to develop these new additions.  AVR estimates in the 
current rate case that it will require about $13.1 million in additions to its system over the 
next three years, including well site and booster pump improvements.  (Details on the 
proposed capital additions to each utility are included in Table 7). 
  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 42 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

It is unknown at this time what, if any, additional costs would be required to connect the 
AVR and GSWC systems, or if there would be savings associated with combining the well 
capacity and storage of the two systems.   

Projected Net Revenues at Current Rates 
Using the historical operating results of the AVR, BWA has developed an estimate of the 
net revenues for the year 2012.  This estimate is based on the operating expenses included 
in the proposed AVR General Rate Case (Test Year 2012 Revenue Requirements). 
 
Importantly, a number of significant expenses are eliminated under public ownership, 
including taxes (Federal and state) as well as depreciation (which is not typically treated as 
a cash-funded expense in public utilities), and rate of return (or profit).  
 
In addition, BWA has assumed that Mr. Wheeler’s salary would be eliminated. The water 
utility would also incur Town overhead costs estimated at $1.1 million per year. As 
discussed under the costs under public ownership, BWA has also assumed a $2 million 
annual water main replacement requirement in overall expenses.  
 
Due to the controversy over the rate increase proposed in the AVR 2012 General Rate 
Case, revenues are projected based on the current rates.  
 
Table 15 details these findings.  In total, BWA estimates that at current rate level, the 
combined utility would have net operating revenues of approximately $6 million annually.   



 

Update of Feasibility Study 43 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

 
    
Table 15 
2011 Update of Potential Water System Acquisition of AVR 
Projected Operating Results Under Public Ownership 

   

2012 
Total operating revenues - AVR System (1) $19,483,000 

Operating Expenses - AVR System 
Operations 726,000 
Production 

Purchased power 1,042,000
Replenishment charges 234,000
Leased water rights and water purchases 1,664,000 
Chemicals 27,000 

Customer accounts 1,033,000 
Uncollectables 65,000 
Maintenance 1,185,000 
Clearings 399,000 
Total operating expenses - AVR 6,375,000 

Admin and General Expenses - AVR System 
Payroll and office expense $1,434,000 
Insurance, injuries and damages 785,000 
Employee benefits 1,480,000 
Regulatory expenses 93,000 
Outside services 274,000 
Rents 17,000 
Town overhead (General Fund transfer) 1,009,000 
Total Admin and General Expenses 5,092,000 

Annual water main replacement program 2,000,000 

Total revenue requirement - AVR System $13,467,000 

Net operating revenue - AVR System $6,016,000 
  

(1) Total of domestic and irrigation revenues at present rates 
    

 

Reserves 
Owning the water systems would require the Town to establish reserves at the beginning of 
public operation.  The Town would start with zero reserves and would need to fund them 
quickly.  Possible reserves would include: capital, operating, replacements, vehicles, 
equipment, emergency, and rate stabilization.  How much to fund and target levels to be 
held in the reserves would be established by policy decisions made by the Town Council.  



 

Update of Feasibility Study 44 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

Organization of the Town’s Water Enterprise 
The Town’s water utility would be organized like other public enterprises.  The Town 
Council would act as the Board of Directors and would set policy, establish rates and 
charges, and provide legislative oversight.  The Town Council would be politically 
accountable to the water utility’s ratepayers.  Under Town ownership, the utility would not 
be regulated by the CPUC. 
 
The Town’s water utility would have a General Manager, who would report to the Town 
Council.  Legal, financial, and accounting services would be provided as they now are for 
the sewer enterprise.  The water utility’s audit would be done at the same time as the audit 
of the Town’s other funds. 
 
BWA assumes that operation, maintenance, administration, billing, and human resources 
would be largely the same as it is now for the private water utility.  There would be no 
changes in staffing or personnel except for the reduction of Mr. Wheeler’s position.  

Lost Revenues 
Under public ownership, there will be the loss of two sources of revenues to local 
governments: property taxes and franchise fees.   
 
The privately owned utilities pay property taxes.  If the Town were to acquire the utility, 
this source of revenue (estimated at $425,000 in 2012) would be eliminated. The other lost 
revenue would be franchise fees.  AVR estimates that it will pay the Town approximately 
$192,000 in franchise fees in 2012.



 

Update of Feasibility Study 45 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

RISKS OF PUBLIC OWNERSHIP 
There are many risks and uncertainties that confront the Town if it were to acquire the 
water utility.  The Town would commence a new enterprise with a large number of 
employees and customers.  The Town does not currently own and operate a water 
enterprise.   While the Town owns and operates a sewer enterprise, a water enterprise 
would require many responsibilities including supplying water, billing and accounting for 
customers, maintaining water facilities, etc.  Operating costs may be higher than what is 
indicated in this feasibility study and what was authorized by the CPUC. 
 
The AVR and GSWC water systems are not interconnected and the Town would have to 
evaluate the connection of the two systems or whether to maintain separate services. 
 
The Town’s boundaries differ from service boundaries of the two water utilities, which 
would need to be resolved before acquiring the water facilities.  More than likely, the 
Town would acquire all water facilities and not exclude the facilities outside the Town 
limits.  The current owners would not want to be responsible for small separate water 
systems.  So, the Town would have to consider how to serve these areas. 
 
The costs of acquiring the AVR system is unknown.  This feasibility study presents 
preliminary estimates of acquisition, including transaction and financing costs.  
Acquisition costs depend upon the inventory and condition of the water facilities.  They 
depend upon negotiation or if eminent domain is employed, the condemnation judgment.  
Transaction and financing costs depend upon the complexity of the acquisition, how much 
time it takes to complete the acquisition, and the cooperation of the current owners. 
 
Furthermore, there could be some uncertainty with respect to accessing municipal debt 
markets to finance this acquisition and that uncertainty would impact the cost of the 
acquisition.  For one, there is a risk that voters approve a GO or special tax bond that is not 
sufficient for the final price that is determined, particularly if the final price is set by means 
of condemnation.  In addition, if financed by COPs, the security of the bonds depends on 
the ability to run the water enterprise and generate sufficient revenues; to the extent that 
the success of the acquisition is unresolved, this would impact the willingness of investors 
to underwrite securities for the transaction.   
 
Adequacy of water supply is unknown.  The Mojave basin is adjudicated and there is a 
ground water shortage.  The ground water basis is “overdraft” and is being depleted.  
Maintaining adequate water resources over time will require recharging the basin with 
surface water.  If the Town owned the water systems, the Town would be responsible for 
water supply and dealing with the problems faced in the basin.  There would be the risk of 
insufficient water for its customers. 
 
The Town Council would set the rates and charges under public ownership.  Town 
management would be responsible for collecting them.  High delinquencies in water 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 46 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

revenue collection could be a possible risk, especially given recent changes in the housing 
market.  Town management would have to engage in collection activities, which can be 
troublesome and time consuming. 
 
Under public ownership, the Town would be responsible for repayment of past customer 
advances.  The general rate case for AVR indicated advances are estimated at $31.1 
million in 2010 and would need to be returned to customers.  The Town would be 
responsible for their repayment, or would have to arrange with the current owner for the 
repayment when the water system is bought.  Future accounting for the advances and 
customer record keeping could be burdensome and time consuming. 
 
There is the risk of additional operation and maintenance expenses in the future due to 
federal and state regulations.  Also, additional O&M costs could result due to large 
increases in electric and chemical costs over which the Town has no control. 
 
The Town would be responsible for future water plant additions, improvements, and 
replacements.  The cost and timing of these future capital projects are unknown.  The 
Town would also be responsible for on-going investments in the water systems and need to 
establish a reserve fund for future replacements of utility assets.  Town water staff would 
also need to respond to water emergencies and prepare and enforce security plans. 
 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 47 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY 
The financial feasibility of purchasing the water system relies on a balancing of the 
benefits of public ownership with the costs of owning, maintaining, and managing the 
water facilities and the assumptions of risks of public ownership. 
 
The previous section discussed the risks of public ownership, which include the fact that 
ownership of the AVR water system would be a new venture for the Town, the service 
boundaries of the two water utilities differ from the Town’s boundaries, acquisition costs 
are unknown, water supply is not secure, the AVR system currently has significant water 
losses, the Town has the responsibility of collecting water revenues, the Town would have 
to repay past advances, and increases in future operating expenses. 
 
There are benefits of public ownership.  One of the more important benefits is local 
control.  The Town, and in a sense its residents and businesses, control the water system, 
not a distant corporation.  The Town Council directs the operation and management of the 
water system.  The Town Council decides on future capital improvements, system 
upgrades and expansion, and water programs. 
 
Importantly, rate setting would be accomplished locally; the Town Council would set 
water rates and charges and not the California Public Utilities Commission in San 
Francisco.  Currently, the private utility applies to the CPUC every three years for a 
general rate increase; under public ownership these general rate cases would not occur.  
One potential benefit to the Town and its residents of this change is that future rate 
increases, when needed, could be balanced with the policy priorities of the Town Council 
and needs of the customers, perhaps by making rates more “phased” over a number of 
years rather than through once-per-three-year large increases. 
 
Another benefit of Town ownership would be the implementation of public policies 
adopted by the Town and its residents and businesses.  Public policies regarding water 
conservation, discounts to low-income customers, different rates and charges for different 
classes of customers would be established and enforced by the Town not by the state or 
CPUC. 
 
Financial benefits of public ownership include the ability of the Town to use lower interest 
tax-exempt financing, the Federal and state tax exemption, than corporate borrowing.  
Other lower costs of ownership regard the Town’s not paying federal or state income taxes 
nor property taxes.  Another cost avoided under public ownership is depreciation expense, 
which is a non-cash expense, and under ratemaking by most public entities that set rates on 
a “cash basis”, annual depreciation expense is typically not included. 
 
However, the feasibility evaluation shows that public ownership could cause negative 
financial impacts.  In order to finance the acquisition of the water system, the Town would 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 48 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

issue debt which must be repaid through taxes or a rate increase. The magnitude of the tax 
or rate increase is dependent on the purchase price of the AVR.  
 
Property taxes would have to increase by a range of $87 to $209 per $100,000 of assessed 
value to complete the acquisition using General Obligation bonds.  A new special tax could 
range from $138 to $329 per equivalent meter would be necessary if Mello-Roos bonds are 
used.  If revenue-supported COPs were used, the Town may generate sufficient revenues 
under the current rates to repay the debt. Under the high purchase price scenario, a rate 
increase of approximately 44% would be necessary. 
 
The benefits that could result from ownership must be therefore balanced with the 
increases in taxes or rates and the assumption of risks associated with ownership. 
 
It would take approximately 21 years for the first year’s net revenues of $6 million to pay 
back the total RCNLD estimated acquisition costs of $125.7 million.  Using a discount rate 
of 5.25% (which roughly equals the Town’s cost of borrowing) and assuming 25 years as 
the expected remaining life of the water utility assets, the present value of the net revenues 
would be $82.7 million, about $43 million less than the total estimated acquisition costs.   
 
Assuming the lower estimated acquisition cost from the stock purchase price of $52.2 
million, it would take approximately 9 years to pay back the AVR acquisition. The 
discounted net revenues over 25 years would equal a net gain in revenue of $30.5 million. 
The Town could use these funds to build up reserves and make capital replacements as 
needed.  
 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 49 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

WATER RIGHTS 
The water systems in Apple Valley are located in the Mojave River Groundwater Basin, an 
adjudicated water basin.  Based on conversations between BWA and Mojave Water 
Agency, BWA assumes the water rights held by the AVR water company would be 
transferred to the Town as part of the acquisition and the water rights leased or purchased 
by the private company from other parties could be purchased or leased by the Town under 
the same terms and conditions.   
 
Water rights in the Mojave Basin, where the Town lies, were adjudicated by a "Final 
Judgment" entered in the case of City of Barstow, et al. v. City of Adelanto, et al. 
(Riverside County Superior Court Case No. 208568) (the “Mojave Adjudication”) on 
January 10, 1996.  Both the Town and AVR were parties to the adjudication and their 
current rights to extract water from the basin derive from the Final Judgment.  Under the 
Final Judgment, and primarily based on historic use as well as availability, parties were 
assigned the right to extract for free a certain quantity of water out of the basin (Free 
Production Allocation).  Any party pumping in excess of these free production rights 
would be required to pay replenishment costs to the Mojave Water Agency.  The cost of 
replenishment water as well as the amount of free production rights is subject to annual 
review by the watermaster tasked by the Court to administer the adjudication and is subject 
to approval by the Mojave Water Agency and, ultimately, the Court in the Mojave 
Adjudication.  Over the years, the free base production rights adjudicated to the parties to 
the adjudication have been reduced ("ramped down") ostensibly due to decrease recharge 
and availability of water in the basin.  
 
An annual report is published by the watermaster and approved by the Court and indicates 
the ramp downs. The 2010-2011 report was approved by the Court on or about May 1, 
2011.13 Among other things, the annual report indicated the ramp down amounts for the 
adjudicated parties (Free Production Allocation). Under the new ramp down figures, and 
over the years, AVR original 13,300 AFY (acre feet per year) BPAs (Base production 
Allocation) has been eventually reduced to 7,998 AFY of Free Production Allocation 
(FPA). The Town original allocation of 373 AFY BPAs has been reduced to 224 AFY 
FPAs. The Town is currently set to close escrow on the Apple Valley Country Club 
Property which would eventually give the Town access to the Country Club's original 
allocation of 709 AFY, which has been currently ramped down to 426 AFY. 
 
 

                                                 
13 see, http://www.mojavewater.org/home/watermaster/documents/17AR0910.pdf 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 50 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSION 
BWA finds the acquisition of the water utility financially feasible under both the high and 
low purchase price if the voters approve a new property or special tax.  If revenue-
supported borrowing is used, an increase in water rates would make the acquisition 
feasible at the higher cost.  While net revenues are estimated to be available under public 
ownership they may not be sufficient to repay any borrowings and rates would have to be 
increased to pay annual principal and interest and satisfy any debt service coverage 
requirements under the high purchase price. Under the lower purchase price, net revenues 
will likely be sufficient to meet the debt service coverage requirement. 
 
Total operating costs could be less under public ownership then under private ownership.  
The Town would not pay property taxes or income taxes.  In addition, payroll costs could 
be reduced and corporate overhead would be avoided.  Typically, public enterprises 
operate and set rates on a cash basis and annual depreciation would not be accounted for as 
an operating cost included in the revenue requirement to be recovered through rates and 
charges.  Most importantly, the Town would not earn a profit, while a private owner can 
earn a profit.   
 
The potential possible net revenue from the water enterprise would be available to fund 
facility replacements, capital improvements, and reserves.  Net revenues could also be used 
for debt service payments. 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 51 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

NEXT STEPS 
Based upon this updated financial feasibility study, legal advice from the Town attorney, 
and advice from Town management, the Town Council would decide if acquisition of the 
water systems should proceed. 
 
If the Town Council decides to continue with the water system acquisition, the following 
tasks would need to be completed. 
 

 The residents, taxpayers, ratepayers, and water utility will want to comment on the 
acquisition.  The Town Council would want to receive their input, comments, and 
opinions.  Public workshops and meetings would be the appropriate venue to 
receive the public input.   

 A consulting engineer would need to perform its “due-diligence” review of the 
water system and inspect the water facilities.  The consulting engineer would 
compile an inventory of water facilities, including their location and ages.  The 
engineer should prepare a report on the condition of the water facilities and indicate 
what type of capital improvements, repairs, replacements, upgrades, and 
expansions may be necessary. 

 
 An accountant would need to conduct a financial review of the books and records 

of the water utility.  This review would include billing records, accounts receivable, 
and customer advances.  The Town would need to know what customers would 
need to be repaid for their past advances and when repayment would be expected. 

 
 The Town should engage a utility appraiser to prepare a formal appraisal of the 

water system.   
 

 Based upon the appraisal, the Town would be able to make an offer price to acquire 
the water facilities.   

 
 The offer would more than likely be followed by negotiations with the current 

owner.  If negotiations fail, the Town has the right of eminent domain and could 
condemn the water facilities.  Condemnation would require a condemnation 
attorney and expert witnesses and could take several years. 

 
 Two significant future actions that would be necessary include: 

 
- Assuming the Town would want to serve all water customers, not just those 

within the town boundaries, the Town would have to apply to the Local Agency 
Formation Commission (LAFCO) to adjust the Town’s boundaries for the 
purpose of water service to coincide with water utility service areas. 

 



 

Update of Feasibility Study 52 Bartle Wells Associates 
Final Report July 2011   

- Vote by electorate if General Obligation or Special Tax bonds are to be used.  
(Formation of an assessment district would follow Proposition 218) 

 
The Town Council will also need to decide on the financing method.  The Town Council 
may want to place the water acquisition before the voters before pursuing the above tasks.  
A general obligation bond or special tax bond vote would indicate voter support for the 
acquisitions and would provide funding to pay for the tasks.   































   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

10/06/11
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $740,222 3.125% 07/01/10 5.87% 787 46
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $750,351 2.875% 07/01/10 5.95% 1326 79
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $702,919 1.125% 06/30/10 5.58% 153 9
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $801,683 $804,811 4.750% 07/19/10 6.38% 1481 95
*TB Federal National MTG Association 3136FR3N10 09/20/16 $723,188 $697,662 2.125% 09/20/11 5.53% 1784 99
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $751,142 4.125% 07/01/10 5.96% 711 42
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $746,382 3.000% 07/01/10 5.92% 1012 60
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $712,446 2.125% 06/30/10 5.65% 345 19
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACF40 12/15/11 $706,398 $701,323 1.125% 06/30/10 5.56% 69 4
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $748,559 3.000% 07/01/10 5.94% 1060 63
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,165,054 1.375% 07/06/10 9.24% 2439 225
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $718,375 1.500% 04/01/10 5.70% 805 46
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $736,092 2.125% 07/01/10 5.84% 1134 66
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $707,630 1.125% 06/30/10 5.61% 429 24
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,168,413 1.375% 07/01/10 9.27% 2979 276
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828ML10 12/31/11 $707,191 $701,589 1.000% 06/30/10 5.56% 85 5

Accrued Interest $58,062 $54,776

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,379,710 $12,607,747 85.45%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $441 $441 0.40% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,146,272 $2,146,272 0.80% Estimated 14.55%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $14,526,423 $14,754,460 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $14,532,423 $14,811,128

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $16,180,787 $16,315,017

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $2,690,678 $2,690,678
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $83 $83 0.010%
CASH IN PIMMA Money Market $501,171 $501,171

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $17,718,355 $17,946,392

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $16,417,689 $16,551,919

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	10-12-11 agenda.pdf
	9-28-11 min
	Reso Ernst & Young 2011
	ernst young
	Bill list
	Rec Minutes 10 03 2011
	Executive Minutes 10 04 2011
	boatgrantmemo revised 10062011
	Monterey.patrol.boat
	PatrolBoatGrantresolution09252011
	Trout purchase Board Recommed 2011chaulkmound
	2011 fish.bids
	Rec Fees 10 02 2011 memopublichearing (2)
	ResoRecRatesPublichearing2011
	award Upper Ojai PP Electrical Upgrades Memo
	Resolution347 Upper Ojai PP Electrical
	Board Memo Sanitary Survey
	Watershed Sanitary Survey 2011 Update Draft1
	Board Report - Montly Costs 20011-12
	Sheet1

	Rec Report08Aug.2011 (1)
	Information Memorandum 10 06 2011
	1 Ojai FLOW Request 04 13 2011
	2 Ojai FLOW Feasibility Analysis  - March 20 2011
	3 Ojai Flow Flyer
	4 Ojai FLOW Petition
	5 Petition Submittal Letter 05 23 2011
	6 Ojai FLOW Newsletter 07 23 2011
	7 City of Ojai Ord 382 Franchise Agt
	8 City Admin Report and Resolution 11-22
	8 City Admin Report 04 26 2011.pdf
	9 City of Ojai Resolution 11-22

	9 OUSD Resolution 10-11-36
	10 Water Bill 07 25 2011
	11 Ojai FLOW letter to PUC 07 30 2011
	12 GSWC Presentation 08 17 2011
	13Conner Biography
	14 Bennett Protest Letter to PUC 09 08 2011
	15 Reply Brief to PUC 08 13 2010
	16 GSWC Letter 9 13 2011
	17 Cal Am Letter to County of Santa Cruz 04 18 2005
	18 COunty of Santa Cruz Response to Cal Am 04 26 2005
	19 Apple Valley 08 18 2011 Agenda
	08.18.11 Agenda
	08.18.11 Agenda
	08.18.11 BRWC Agenda Item

	08.18.11 Agenda-June 11 minutes

	20 Final Report 2011 Apple Valley Water System Feasibility
	21 Selma Enterprise Article 04 27 2011
	22 American Water Eminent Domain
	23 Cal Am Water Customer letter Sonoma County 12 07 2006
	24 Water Solutions Felton Case Study
	news
	Investment Report 10-6-2011
	A




